
The YouTube channel "City of Franklin WI" will be live streaming the Common Council meeting so
that the public will be able to view and listen to the meeting.

https://yywy.youtube.com/c/Cityo[FranklinW[Goy

CITY OF FRANKLIN
COMMON COUNCIL MEETING*

FRANKLIN CITY HALL - COMMON COUNCIL CHAMBERS
9229 WEST LOOMIS ROAD, FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN

AGENDA
TUESDAY FEBRUARY 4, 2025 AT 6:30 P.M.

A. Call to Order, Roll Call and Pledge of Allegiance.

B. Citizen Comment Period.

C. Approval of Minutes: Regular Common Council Meeting of January 21, 2025.

D. Hearings.

E. Organizational. Mayoral Commission Appointments:

1. Mayoral Aldermanic Appointment: Alderwoman Michelle Eichmann-Plan
Commission, 1 year unexpired term expiring 04/14/25.

2. Mayoral Boards and Commission Appointments:
(a) Cathleen Richard, 10252 W. Deerwood Ln., Aid. Dist. 6-Economic

Development Commission, 1 year unexpired term expiring 06/30/25.
(b) Melissa Ferguson, 7612 S. 70th St., Aid. Dist. 5-Economic Development

Commission, 1 year unexpired term expiring 06/30/25.
(c) Melissa Ferguson, 7612 S. 70th St., Aid. Dist. 5-Comrnunity Development

Authority, 4 year unexpired term expiring 08/30/27.
F. Letters.

G. Reports and Recommendations.
1. A Resolution to Award the W. Saint Martins Rd. (STH 100) Water Main Extension

Project to the Lowest Bidder, Globe Contractors, Inc. in the amount of $501,977.00,
and to determine the process for funding therefore, including the special assessment
process.

2. A Resolution to Authorize a Professional Services Contract with Graef-USA Inc. to
Provide Construction Administration and Inspection Services for the 116th Street
Trail Project for a Fee of $178,100.00.

3. A Resolution Confirming the Appointment of Michael N. Paulos as City Engineer.
4. A Resolution Authorizing Certain Officials to Accept A Conservation Easement for

and as Part of the Approval of a Certified Survey Map and Natural Resource Special
Exception Upon Properties Located at 6311 and 6341 S. 27th Street and 2821 W.
College Avenue (College Avenue Associates, Applicant).



Common Counenl Meeting Agenda
February 4, 2025
Page 2

5 An Ordmance to Amend the Unufied Development Ordmance Text at Table 15-
3 0603 Standard Industrial Classification Title No. 7389 "Business Services, Not
Elsewhere Classified" to Allow Such Use as a Permitted Use in the B-3 Community
Busmess District (Pnme Pack, LLC, Applicant).

6 An Ordmance to Amend Planned Development Distnct No 18 as it pertains to the
Approval of Mmor Site Plan Amendments by Department of City Development
Staff

7 A Resolution Conditionally Approving a Land Combination for TKNS 899-9990
069; 899-9990-023; and 899-9990-024 (9600 S. 58th St. A and Adjacent Lots)
(Krones Inc., Applicant and Owner).

8 A Resolution to Approve a 3 Year Agreement with Southeast Wisconsin Chapter of
Pheasants Forever for Conducting Prescribed Fire to Maintain Pleasant View Park
Prairie

9 A Resolution to Approve Addendum No 1 in the amount of $2,500-$3,000 to Foth
Infrastructure and Environment, LLC

10. Consideration of an Imtrnl Resolution Regarding Industnal Development Revenue
Bond Fmancmg for Gebruder Peter LLC Project. Information with respect to the
job 1mpact of the project will be available at the time of consideration of the Initial
Resolution.

11. Agreement for Professional Services to provide Assessment Services between the
City of Franklin and Accurate Appraisal, LLC. The Common Council may enter
closed session pursuant to Wis. Stat§ 19.85(l)(e), for competitive and bargainmg
reasons, to deliberate and consider terms relating to the Agreement for Professional
Services to provide Assessment Services between the City of Franklm and Accurate
Appraisal, LLC entered mto on February 7, 2022, and the performance thereof, and
the mvestmg of pubhc funds and governmental actions in relat1011 thereto, and
pursuant to Wis. Stat.§ 19.85(l)(g), to confer with legal counsel for the Common
Council who is rendermg advice concerning strategy to be adopted by the body with
respect to litigat10n in which it is likely to become involved, and to re-enter open
session at the same place thereafter to act on such matters discussed therein as it
deems appropriate

12 Request from Krones, Inc for Krones Manufacturing Facility Geothermal Pond Use
of Pond on CDA Property Outlot at 5400 W. Ashland Way, TKN 899-0032-000.
The Common Council may enter closed session pursuant to Wis. Stat § 19 85( 1 )(e),
for market competition and bargammg reasons, to deliberate and consider terms
relating to the potent1al author1zat1on for the use of the CDA property outlot pond at
5400 W Ashland Way, TKN 899-0032-000 by Krones, Inc., and the governmental
act1ons m relation thereto and to effect such use, and to reenter open session at the
same place thereafter to act on such matters discussed therein as it deems
appropriate

H Licenses and Perm1ts. License Committee Meeting of February 4, 2025.



Common Council Meetmg Agenda
February 4, 2025
Page 3

I. Bills
Request for Approval of Vouchers and Payroll

J Adjournment.

*Supportmg documentation and details of these agenda items are available at City Hall durmg normal busmess hours

[Note Upon reasonable notice efforts wll be made to accommodate the needs of dsabled mndvduals through appropriate atds and
services For additional mnformatron contact the City Clerk s office at (414) 425-7500 ]

REMINDERS·

February 6
February 18
February 19
March 4
March 6

Plan Comm1ss1on
Spring Pnmary Elect10n
Common Council
Common Council
Plan Commiss1on

6.00 p.m.
7:00 a.m -8·00 pm.
6:30 p.m.
630 p.m
6:30 p.m.



BLANK PAGE



ROLL CALL

CITIZEN COMMENT

MINUTES
JANUARY 7, 2025

MAYORAL
APPOINTMENTS

ORD. 2025-2657
SALES START TIME
ST. MARTINS FAIR

RES. 2025-8251
ST. MARTINS FAIR
PORTABLE
RESTROOM
FACILITIES

A.

B

C.

E.

G.1.

G.2.

SCITY OF FRANKLIN
COMMON COUNCIL MEETING

JANUARY 21, 2025
MINUTES

The regular meeting of the Franklin Common Council was held on
January 21, 2025, and was called to order at 6:30 p.m. by Mayor
John R. Nelson in the Franklin City Hall Council Chambers, 9229 W.
Loomis Road, Franklin, Wisconsin. On roll call, the following were
present: Alderman Peccarelli, Alderwoman Eichmann, Alderman
Hasan, Alderman Barber, Alderwoman Day and Alderman Craig. Also
in attendance were Director of Administration Kelly Hersh, City
Attorney Jesse A. Wesolowski and City Clerk Shirley Roberts.

Citizen comment period was opened at 6:34 p.m. and was closed at
6:34 p.m.

Alderman Barber moved to approve the minutes of the Common
Council meeting of January 7, 2025, as presented. Seconded by
Alderman Hasan. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderwoman Eichmann moved to confirm the following Mayoral
appointments:

I. Melissa Ferguson, 7612 S. 70 St., Ald. Dist. 5- Personnel
Committee, 3 year unexpired term expiring 04/30/26.

2. Rebecca L Eberhardt, 8607 S. Deerwood Ln., Aid. Dist. 6 -
Board of Health, 2 year unexpired term expiring 04/30/26.

Seconded by Alderman Hasan. On roll call, all voted Aye. Motion
carried.

Alderwoman Eichmann moved to adopt Ordinance No. 2025-2657, AN
ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE MUNICIPAL CODE TO CHANGE
THE SALES START TIME OF MONDAY OF THE LABOR DAY
ST. MARTINS FAIR FROM 6:00 A.M. TO 7:00 A.M. Seconded by
Alderman Hasan. All voted Aye. Motion carried.

Alderman Hasan moved to adopt Resolution No. 2025-8251, A
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CERTAIN OFFICIALS TO
EXECUTE A SERVICE SANITATION PORTABLE RESTROOM
FACILITIES AGREEMENT FOR THE 2025 ST. MARTINS FAIR
WITH SERVICE SANITATION OF WISCONSIN, INC. Seconded
by Alderwoman Day. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderwoman Eichmann moved to approve the 2025-2026
memorandum of understanding between the Franklin Police
Department and the Franklin Public School District which contains

ADDITION OF G.3.
SECOND SCHOOL
RESOURCE OFFICER



Common Council Meetmg
January 21, 2025
Page 2

IN FRANKLIN PUBLIC
SCHOOLS

PURCHASE OF BODY- G 4
WORN CAMERAS

PURCHASE OF TASER G 5
l O ELECTRONIC
CONTROL DEVICES

CONCEPT REVIEW G 6
CONDOMINIUM
DEVELOPMENT

FRANKLIN PUBLIC G 7
SCHOOLS SPECIAL
EXCEPTION OF
NATURAL RESOURCE
PROVISIONS

language changes to reflect an increase to two School Resource
Officers. The second School Resource Officer would be an additional
sworn officer, raismg the police department's authorized sworn staffing
to 62 (effective August 1, 2025) With contract and content to be
returned to the Common Council for meeting m January 2026 for a
review of terms therein. Seconded by Alderwoman Day. All voted
Aye, motion carried.

Alderman Crag moved to authorize the acceptance of BJA FY24
Body-Worn Camera Policy and Implementation Program to Support
Law Enforcement Agencies Grant funding to ass1st in the cost of
Implementing a Body-Worn Camera program, with the Director of
Administration Kelly Hersh approved as the "Authorized
Representative" to accept the grant on behalf of the Franklin Police
Department. Seconded by Alderman Barber. All voted Aye; motion
earned.

Alderman Hasan moved to approve the Franklin Police Department to
enter mto the service agreement with Axon to finalize the purchase of
Taser 10 Electronic Control Devices and Services m relation there into
as finalized by the Police Department and City Attorney. Seconded by
Alderwoman Eichmann. All voted Aye; motion carried.

No action requested.

Alderwoman Eichmann moved to adopt the Standards, Findings and
Dec1son of the City of Franklin Common Council upon the
application of Andrew Chromy of the Franklin Pubhc Schools,
Applicant, for a special exception to certain natural resource
provisions of the City of Franklin Unified Development Ordinance.
Seconded by Alderman Craig. On roll call, Alderman Craig,
Alderman Barber, Alderman Hasan, Alderwoman Eichmann and
Alderman Peccarelli voted Aye. Alderwoman Day voted No Motion
carried.

RES. 2025-8253
CONTRACT PRICE
INCREASE TO

G9.

Alderwoman Day moved to adopt Resolution No. 2025-8252, A
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CERTAIN OFFICIALS TO
EXECUTE AMENDMENT NO. 2 TO THE GENERAL
MUNICIPAL ENGINEERING SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH
GRAEF-USA INC., and bring back a quarterly review of expenses.
Seconded by Alderwoman Eichmann. All voted Aye; mot1on carried.

Alderman Barber moved to adopt Resolution No. 2025-8253, A
RESOLUTION TO ISSUE CHANGE ORDER NO. 1 FOR THE
WATER TOWER TRANSMISSION MAIN CONTRACT C

RES 2025-8252 G 8
GRAEF-USA INC
AGREEMENT



Common Council Meeting
January 21, 2025
Page 3

VINTON
CONSTRUCTION CO

PROJECT TO INCREASE THE CONTRACT PRICE BY $11,193.80
TO VINTON CONSTRUCTION CO. Seconded by Alderman Hasan.
All voted Aye, motion carried.

RES. 2025-8254
CONTRACT PRICE
AND TIMELINE
INCREASE

RES. 2025-8255
SHIV SHAKTI
VENTURELLC
EASEMENTS

RES 2025-8256
CARMA
LABORATORIES
TEMPORARY
EASEMENT

G.10 Alderwoman Eichmann moved to adopt Resolution No 2025-8254, A
RESOLUTION TO ISSUE CHANGE ORDER NO. 2 FOR THE
WATER TOWER TRANSMISSION MAIN CONTRACT C
PROJECT TO INCREASE THE CONTRACT PRICE BY $10,271.79
AND THE CONTRACT TIMEFRAME BY 175 DAYS TO VINTON
CONSTRUCTION CO Seconded by Alderman Hasan All voted
Aye, motion earned

G.11. Alderwoman Eichmann moved to adopt Resolution No. 2025-8255, A
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CERTAIN OFFICIALS TO
ACCEPT THE SANITARY EASEMENT AND THE TEMPORARY
CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT FROM SHIV SHAKTI VENTURE,
LLC AT 7800 AND 8050 W. RYAN ROAD. Seconded by Alderman
Peccarelli. All voted Aye; motion carried.

G 12 Alderman Craig moved to adopt Resolution No. 2025-8256, A
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CERTAIN OFFICIALS TO
ACCEPT A 50-FOOT-WIDE TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION
EASEMENT FROM CARMA LABORATORIES, INC. TO THE
CITY OF FRANKLIN, ALONG THE SOUTH PROPERTY LINES
OF LOTS 3 AND 2 OF THE CARMA LABORATORIES, INC.
PROPERTY AT 9410 S 76TH STREET TKN 884-9003-000 and 884-
9002-000. Seconded by Alderwoman Eichmann. All voted Aye;
motion earned.

RES. 2025-8257 G.13
RECORD SANITARY
EASEMENT

RES. 2025-8258 G 14
FOTH
INFRASTRUCTURE
AND ENVIRONMENT,
LLC CONTRACT

Alderman Hasan moved to adopt Resolution No. 2025-8257, A
RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE STAFF TO EXECUTE AND
RECORD THE ATTACHED SANITARY EASEMENT FROM
7521 W RYAN RD. (JAMES B O'MALLEY, REVOCABLE
TRUST) TKN 897-9996-000. Seconded by Alderman Barber All
voted Aye, mot1on carried.

Alderman Barber moved to adopt Resolution No. 2025-8258, A
RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
CONTRACT WITH FOTH INFRASTRUCTURE AND
ENVIRONMENT, LLC TO PROVIDE DESIGN AND
CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR THE RYAN
ROAD TRUNK SEWER PROJECT FOR A FEE OF $84,000.00,
subject to changes approved by the Water and Sewer Dept., the City
Administrator and the City Attorney. Seconded by Alderwoman
Eichmann. All voted Aye; motion carried.



Common Council Meetmg
January 21, 2025
Page 4

RES. 2025-8259
RYAN ROAD TRUNK
SEWER PROJECT
AWARD

CROATIAN EAGLES
SOCCER CLUB
SPECIAL EXCEPTION
OF NATURAL
RESOURCE
PROVISIONS

ORD. 2025-2658
PLAN COMMISSION
MEMBERSHIP
CHANGES

ORD. 2025-2659
DEFINE
"DEVELOPER'S
DEPOSIT"

G 15 Alderman Hasan moved to adopt Resolution No 2025-8259, A
RESOLUTION TO AWARD THE RYAN ROAD TRUNK SEWER
PROJECT TO WANASEK CORP. IN THE AMOUNT OF
$236,780 00, with technical corrections Seconded by Alderman
Barber On roll call, Alderman Peccarelli, Alderwoman Eichmann,
Alderman Hasan, Alderman Barber and Alderman Craig voted Aye.
Alderwoman Day abstained. Motion carried.

G.16. Alderman Barber moved to adopt the Standards, Findmgs and Decision
of the CIty of Franklin Common Council upon the application of
Croatian Eagles Soccer Club, Applicant, for a special except1on to
certain natural resource provisions of the City of Franklin Unified
Development Ordinance. Seconded by Alderwoman Eichmann. All
voted Aye; motion carried.

G 17. Alderman Barber moved to adopt Ordinance No. 2025-2658, AN
ORDINANCE TO AMEND §15-10.0102 MEMBERSHIP, OF THE
UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE (UDO) TO CHANGE
THE PLAN COMMISSION MEMBERSHIP TO REMOVE THE
CITY ENGINEER MEMBER AND IN PLACE THEREOF
PROVIDE AN ALDERPERSON TO SERVE ON THE PLAN
COMMISSION (CITY OF FRANKLIN, APPLICANT). Seconded by
Alderwoman Eichmann. All voted Aye; motion carried.

G.18 Alderman Barber moved to adopt Ordinance No. 2025-2659, AN
ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT
ORDINANCE (UDO) TO DEFINE "DEVELOPER'S DEPOSIT" IN
SECTION 15-11 0103 SPECIFIC WORDS AND PHRASES (CITY
OF FRANKLIN, APPLICANT). Seconded by Alderwoman
Eichmann All voted Aye; motion carried.

Mayor Nelson called a recess at 8.07 p.m.

Mayor Nelson reconvened at 8: 15 p.m.

ORD. 2025-2660 G19
CHANGES TO PARKS
COMMISSION AND
ENVIRONMENTAL
COMMISSION

Alderman Barber moved to adopt Ordinance No. 2025-2660, AN
ORDINANCE TO AMEND $10-7 PARKS COMMISSION, OF THE
MUNICIPAL CODE TO ADD AND INCORPORATE THE
POWERS AND DUTIES OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL
COMMISSION AND TO ADD THE CURRENT MEMBERS
THEREOF TO BE MEMBERS OF THE PARKS COMMISSION,
AND TO REPEAL AND RESCIND §10-14 ENVIRONMENTAL
COMMISSION, OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE Effective May 1,
2025, the Parks Commission shall consist of 7 members and that the
draft Ordinance presented to the Common Council will be amended
accordmgly. Seconded by Alderwoman Eichmann. All voted Aye;
mot1on carried.



Common Council Meetmg
January 21, 2025
Page 5

PUBLIC HEALTH
STRATEIST JOB

DONATION FROM
FRANKLIN LIONS
CLUB

RES. 2025-8260
2024-2025 ALLIANCE
FOR WISCONSIN
YOUTH MINI GRANT

G20 Alderman Barber moved to approve the Public Health Strategist job
description and authorization to fill the positon Seconded by
Alderwoman Day All voted Aye; motion earned.

G.21. Alderman Barber moved to approve acceptance of a monetary donation
for Health Education in the amount of $1,000 00. Seconded by
Alderman Hasan. All voted Aye; motion carried

G 22 Alderwoman Eichmann moved to adopt Resolution No. 2025-8260, A
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING FRANKLIN DIRECTOR OF
HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES TO ACCEPT AND EXECUTE
THE 2024-2025 ALLIANCE FOR WISCONSIN YOUTH MINI
GRANT. Seconded by Alderman Hasan. All voted Aye; motion
earned.

RES. 2025-8261 G 23.
2024-2025 DIVISION
OF PUBLIC HEALTH
PREVENTION GRANT

Alderman Barber moved to adopt Resolution No 2025-8261, A
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING FRANKLIN DIRECTOR OF
HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES TO ACCEPT AND EXECUTE
THE 2024-2025 DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH PREVENTION
GRANT CONTRACT. Seconded by Alderwoman Day All voted
Aye, mot1on carried

RACINE COUNTY
SOIL TESTER AND
EVALUATION
AGREEMENT

GEOGRAPHIC
MARKETING
ADVANTAGE LLC
AGREEMENT

ORD. 2025-2661
LIQUOR LICENSE
PUBLICATION FEE

CLOSED SESSION

G 24 Alderman Barber moved to approve the 2025 Professional Services
Agreement between the Caty of Franklin and Racine County for
services to verify a certified soil tester's soil and site evaluation at
designated properties when needed and to authorize the Director of
Admmistration to execute such agreement. Seconded by Alderman
Hasan. All voted Aye; motion carried.

G.25 Alderman Barber moved to approve the agreement with Geographic
Marketing Advantage, LLC for Geographic Information System (GIS)
Support and Database Maintenance Services for 2025, and authorize
the Director of Admimstration to execute and administer the contract
effective January 1, 2025. Seconded by Alderwoman Eichmann. All
voted Aye; motion carried.

G 26 Alderwoman Eichmann moved to adopt Ordinance No. 2025-2661,
AN ORDINANCE TO INCREASE THE PUBLICATION OF
LIQUOR LICENSE FOR A NEW LICENSE YEAR FROM $10.00
TO $15.00 AND INCREASE THE PUBLICATION OF LIQUOR
LICENSE FOR PUBLICATION DURING THE LICENSE YEAR
FROM $15 00 TO $30.00. Seconded by Alderman Barber. All voted
Aye, mot1on carried.

G.27. Alderman Craig moved to enter closed session at 9 02 p.m. pursuant to
Wis Stat. $19.85(1)(€), to deliberate the public business process and



Common Council Meetmg
January 21, 2025
Page 6

STEVEN SHARRATT
CLAIM

terms wth regard to the Steven Sharratt claim, and Wis.
Stat.§ 19 85(l)(g), to confer with legal counsel for the Common
Council who is rendermg advice concerning strategy to be adopted by
the body with respect to the subject claim and litigation mn which it is
likely to become involved, and to reenter open session at the same place
thereafter to act on such matters discussed therein as it deems
appropriate. Seconded by Alderman Barber. On roll call, all voted
Aye Motion carried.

Upon reentering open session at 9:04 p.m, Alderwoman Eichmann
moved to proceed as discussed in closed sesson. Seconded by
Alderman Hasan.

CLOSED SESSION
POTENTIAL
DEVELOPMENT
AGREEMENT

RES 2025-8262
TID 8 DEVELOPMENT
AGREEMENT WITH
MODINE
MANUFACTURING

G 28 Alderwoman Eichmann moved to enter closed session at 9:06 p.m.
pursuant to Wis. Stat. $19.85(1)(e), for market competition and
bargaining reasons, to deliberate and consider terms relating to
potential development and proposal and the investing of public funds
and governmental actions in relation thereto and to effect such
development, including the terms and provisions of a potential
development agreement for the development of property located at
3303 W Oakwood Road, bearing TKN 951-9994-002, wthn Tax
Incremental D1strict No. 8. Seconded by Alderman Hasan. On roll
call, all voted Aye. Motion carried.

Upon reentering open session at 9: 14 p.m., Alderwoman Eichmann
moved to adopt Resolut10n No. 2025-8262, A RESOLUTION
AUTHORIZING CERTAIN OFFICIALS TO EXECUTE A TAX
INCREMENTAL DISTRICT NO. 8 DEVELOPMENT
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF FRANKLIN AND
MODINE MANUFATURING COMPANY Seconded by Alderman
Peccarell. All voted Aye; motion carried.

CLOSED SESSION G 29
CITYOF FRANKLIN V
BPCMASTER
DEVELOPER, LLC AND
MICHAEL
ZIMMERMAN

Alderwoman Eichmann moved to enter closed sess1on at 9.16 p.m.
pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 19.85(l)(g), to confer with legal counsel for the
Common Council who is rendering advice concerning strategy to be
adopted by the body with respect to the Cty ofFranklin v BPC Master
Developer, LLC andMchael Zmmerman, Milwaukee County CIrcurt
Court Case No. 24-CV-7479 litigation and/or possible litigation related
to the 2024 shortfall payment under the TID 5 Development
Agreement, and to reenter open session at the same place thereafter to
act on such matters discussed therein as it deems appropriate.
Seconded by Alderman Hasan. On roll call, all voted Aye. Motion
carried.

Upon reentering open session at 9:53 p.m., Alderman Hasan moved to
proceed as discussed in closed session. Seconded by Alderwoman
Eichmann. On a roll call, Alderman Barber, Alderman Hasan,



Common Council Meeting
January 21, 2025
Page 7

MISCELLANEOUS
LICENSES

VOUCHERS AND
PAYROLL

ADJOURNMENT

H.

I.

J.

Alderwoman Eichmann, Alderman Peccarell voted Aye. Alderman
Craig and Alderwoman Day voted no, motion carried. (4-2-0)

Alderwoman Eichmann moved to approve the followmg licenses of the
License Committee Meeting of January 21, 2025.

Grant New 2024-25 Operator License to: Connor Petkovich, Angelo
Rinell1, && Jacob Trask,
Grant Renewal 2025-26 Operator License to Dennis Fons & William
Tietjen,
Approved Police Incident Reports from 5/15-12/26 for On The Border,
Gerald Hay, Class B Establishment;
Grant Temporary Class "B Beer License to Franklm Noon Lions
Club-Independence Celebration & St Martin's Fair, William Tietjen,
9229 W Loomis Rd & St Martin's Rd, 7/3/25-7/5/25 & 8/31/25-9/1/25;
Grant 2024-25 Class B Combination License Change of Agent to
Chli's Grll & Bar, Brinker Restaurant Corporation, Lindsay Brieske,
6439 S 27 St: and
Grant Temporary Entertainment & Amusement License to Rainbow
Valley Rudes, Inc, Ronald Kedrowicz, Independence Celebration, City
Hall-9229 W Loomis Rd, 7/3-7/6/25.

Seconded by Alderman Craig. All voted Aye, motion carried.

Alderman Hasan moved to approve City vouchers with an ending date
of January 16, 2025, in the amount of $3,991,057.79, and payroll dated
January 10, 2025 in the amount of $481,357.28 and payments of the
vanous payroll deductions in the amount of $268,761.14 plus City
matching payments, and estimated payroll dated January 24, 2025 1

the amount of$587,000 and payments of the various payroll deductions
in the amount of $600,000 plus City matchmg payments. Seconded by
Alderman Barber. On roll call, all voted Aye. Motion carried.

Alderwoman Eichmann moved to adjourn the meeting of the Common
Council at 9.54 p.m Seconded by Alderman Peccarelli. All voted
Aye, motion carred



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

ORGANIZATIONAL
BUSINESS

REQUEST FOR
COMMON COUNCIL ACTION

Mayoral and Aldermanic Board and
Commission Appointments

MEETING
DATE

2-4-2025

ITEM
NUMBER

Et-,

1. Mayoral Aldermanic Appointment: Alderwoman Michelle Eichmann-Plan Commission,
1 year unexpired term expiring 04/14/25.

2. Mayoral Boards and Commission Appointments:
(a) Cathleen Richard, 10252 W. Deerwood Ln., Aid. Dist. 6- Economic Development

Commission, 1 year unexpired term expiring 06/30/25.
(b) Melissa Ferguson, 7612 S. 70th St., Aid. Dist. 5- Economic Development

Commission, 1 year unexpired term expiring 06/30/25.
(c) Melissa Ferguson, 7612 S. 70th St., Aid. Dist. 5- Community Development

Authority, 4 year unexpired term expiring 08/30/27.

COUNCIL ACTION

Motion to confirm the following Mayoral Aldermanic Appointments:

1. Mayoral Aldermanic Appointment: Alderwoman Michelle Eichmann-Plan Commission,
1 year unexpired term expiring 04/ 14/25.

2. Mayoral Boards and Commission Appointments:
(d) Cathleen Richard, 10252 W. Deerwood Ln., Aid. Dist. 6- Economic Development

Commission, 1 year unexpired term expiring 06/30/25.
(e) Melissa Ferguson, 7612 S. 70th St., Aid. Dist. 5 -Economic Development

Commission, 1 year unexpired term expiring 06/30/25.
(f) Melissa Ferguson, 7612 S. 70th St., Aid. Dist. 5- Community Development

Authority, 4 year unexpired term expiring 08/30/27.

ROLL CALL VOTE
CLERKDEPT



Maggie Poplar

From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

volunteerfactsheet@franklinw info
Tuesday, January 28, 2025 10 56 PM
Lisa Huening, Shurley Roberts, Maggie Poplar
Volunteer Fact Sheet

Name:
PhoneNumber:
EmailAddress:
YearsasResident:
Alderman:
ArchitecturalBoard:
CivicCelebrations:
CommunityDevelopmentAuthority:
EconomicDevelopmentCommission: on

Cathleen Mare RIchard

cmrchard27@gmail com
115
6

EnvironmentalCommission:
Fina nceCommittee:
FairCommission:
BoardofHealth:
FirePoliceCommission:
ParksCommission:
LibraryBoard:
PlanCommission:
PersonnelCommittee:
BoardofReview:
Board ofPublicWorks:
QuarryMonitoringCommittee:
TechnologyCommission:
TourismCommission:
BoardofZoning:
WasteFacilitiesMonitoringCommittee:
BoardWaterCommissioners:
CompanyNameJobl:
CompanyAddress.Job1:
TelephoneJobl:
StartDateandPositionJobl:
EndDateandPositionJobl:
CompanyNameJob2:
Add ressJob2:
TelephoneJob2:
StartDateandPositionJob2:

Ardagh Glass
10252 W Deerwood Ln

11/10/2006
11/7/2016

1



EndDateandPositionJob2:

CompanyNameJob3:

AddressJob3:

TelephoneJob3:

StartDateandPositionJob3:

EndDateandPositionJob3:

Signature:

Date:

Signature2:

Date2:

SourceDoclD:

SourceNavName:

Address:

Prioritylisting:

WhyInterested:

DescriptionofDutiesJobl:

DescriptionofDutiesJob2:

DescriptionofDutiesJob3:

AdditionalExperience:
See Current Results

Cathleen Richard
1/28/2025
Cathleen Richard
1/28/2025
9278
Volunteer Fact Sheet
10252 W Deerwood Ln

I want to serve my community

Inspected glass Ran Machines Worked mn the lab Was a union off1cal On the
safety committee On the accident investgaton team

l garden Ran a daycare Was the financial secretary for the union

2



Maggie Poplar

From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

volunteerfactsheet@franklinwr mnfo
Tuesday, January 28, 2025 10 30 PM
Lusa Huening, Shurley Roberts, Maggie Poplar
Volunteer Fact Sheet

Name:
PhoneNumber:
EmailAddress:
YearsasResident:
Alderman:
ArchitecturalBoard:
CivicCelebrations:
CommunityDevelopmentAuthority: on
EconomicDevelopmentCommission: on
EnvironmentalCommission:
FinanceCommittee:
FairCommission:
BoardofHealth:
FirePoliceCommission:
ParksCommission:
LibraryBoard:
PlanCommission:
PersonnelCommittee:
BoardofReview:
BoardofPublicWorks:
QuarryMonitoringCommittee:
TechnologyCommission:
TourismCommission:
BoardofZoning:
WasteFacilitiesMonitoringCommittee:
BoardWaterCommissioners:
CompanyNameJob1:
CompanyAddressJobl:

Melissa Ferguson

mferg83@hotmail com
55

Orthopedic Institute of Wisconsin

TelephoneJobl:
StartDateandPositionJobl:
EndOateandPositionJobl:
CompanyNameJob2:
AddressJob2:
TelephoneJob2:
StartDateandPositionJob2:

10/2021
11/2024

1



End Dateand PositionJob2:

CompanyNameJob3:

Add ressJob3:

TelephoneJob3:

StartDateandPositionJob3:

EndDateandPositionJob3:

Signature:

Date:

Signature2:

Date2:

Address:

Prioritylisting:

Whylnterested:

DescriptionofDutiesJobl:

DescriptionofDutiesJob2:

DescriptionofDutiesJob3:

AdditionalExperience:

See Current Results

Melissa A Ferguson
01/28/2025
Melissa A Ferguson
01/28/2025
7612 S 70th St, Franklin, WI 53132
1 Community development authority 2. Economic development commission
I want to be able to be more involved tn our great city I feel that a hands on
method is the best way to make changes and to keep making our crty great
Reception Medical Assistant Surgery scheduler

l am organized, social, dedicated, motivated, computer savvy I love to learn
new things, meet new people and am very dedicated to our city of Franklin, WI

2



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION MEETING DATE

2/4/2025

REPORTS & A RESOLUTION TO AWARD THEW. SAINT ITEM NUMBER
MARTINS RD. (STH 100) WATER MAIN

RECOMMENDATIONS EXTENSION PROJECT TO THE LOWEST BIDDER, I.GLOBE CONTRACTORS, INC. IN THE AMOUNT OF
$501,977.00

BACKGROUND

The City of Franklin sought bids for the W Saint Martins Rd. (STH 100) Water Main Extension Project to
install a critical piece of water main for future growth of the southwest part of the City.

ANALYSIS

The bid form had three sections, the Base Bid, Mandatory Alternate Bid No. 1, and Mandatory Alternate Bid
No. 2. Mandatory Alternate Bid No. 1 included 8-inch water main for assessment purposes only. Mandatory
Alternate Bid No. 2 included the water laterals to either accept or reject as part of the bid. Seven bids were
received on January 30, 2025, for the W. Saint Martins Rd. (STH 100) Water Main Extension project. Below
are the bids received showing the Base Bid Only and Base Bid plus Mandatory Alternate Bid No. 2 (bid tab is
included in the packet):

Base Bid Only
Engineer 's Estimate $606,000. 00
Globe Contractors, Inc. $417,977.00
OF Tomasini Contractors, Inc. $438,362.00
Vinton Construction Company $460,743.50
The Wanasek Corp $468,393.00
UPI Construction LLC $481,848.00
Mid City Corporation $558,518.00
Reesmans Excavating & Grading, $565,565.65
Inc.

Base Bid plus Mandatory
Alt. Bid No. 2

Engineer 's Estimate $715.000. 00
Globe Contractors, Inc. $501,977.00
OF Tomasini Contractors, Inc. $513,597.00
Vinton Construction Company $534,773.50
The Wanasek Corp $564,928.00
UPI Construction LLC $580,353.00
Reesmans Excavating & Grading, $667,465.65
Inc.
Mid City Corporation $707,518.00



Followmg the bid openmg on January 30, 2025, Globe Contractors, Inc. emerged as the lowest responsible
bidder for both opt1ons

The City staff recommends awarding the Base Bid ($417,977.00) plus the Mandatory Alternate Bid. No. 2
($84,000) for a total of $501,977.00, given that the price has come in significantly below the engineer's
estimate of $715,000, presentmg a cost-effective opportunity for both the City and affected property owners.

Prequahfication reviews confirm Globe Contractors, Inc. capability to meet project requirements. This
project 1s contingent upon the receipt of necessary permit from WDNR.

FISCAL NOTE

The 2025 Water Budget was adopted on January 21, 2025. This project would include special assessments
and will be partially repaid to the City following the City's assessment policy.

Staff will bring to the Council a preliminary resolution declaring intent to exercise special assessment powers
at a later date

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends that the Council authonze the awarding of the W. Saint Martins Rd. (STH 100) Water
Main Extension Project to Globe Contractors, Inc for the base bid plus mandatory alternate bid no. 2 amount
of $501,977.00, contmgent upon secunng reqmred permits. Staff is also recommendmg rejecting Mandatory
Alternate Bid No 1.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED
(Optional) Moton to adopt Resolution No 2025 -,aresolution to award the W. Saint Martins Rd.
(STH 100) Water Mam Extens1on Project to Globe Contractors, Inc. in the amount of $501,977.00.

DOA - KH; Engineering - MNP, S&W- GEB



STATE OF WISCONSIN· CITY OF FRANKLIN: MILWAUKEE COUNTY

RESOLUTION NO 2025----

A RESOLUTION TO AWARD
THE W SAINT MARTINS RD. (STH 100) WATER MAIN EXTENSION PROJECT

TO GLOBE CONTRACTORS, INC, IN THE AMOUNT OF $501,977 00

WHEREAS, the City of Franklin advertised and solicited buds for the W. Saint Martins
Rd. (STH 1OO) Water Main Extens1on Project, and

WHEREAS, seven bids were received on January 30, 2025 and Globe Contractors, Inc.
was the lowest responsive and responsible bidder, and

WHEREAS, Globe Contractors, Inc.is a qualified public works contractor, and

WHEREAS, it 1s 1n the best mnterest of the City as recommended by the City's Staff to
award the contract for the W Samt Martms Rd (STH 100) Water Main Extension Project in the
amount of $501,977.00 to Globe Contractors, Inc..

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Common Council of the City
of Franklin, Wisconsm, to award the W. Samnt Martins Rd (STH 100) Water Main Extension
Project to Globe Contractors, Inc

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor and City Clerk are author1zed and directed
to execute a contract with Globe Contractors, Inc on behalf of the City.

Introduced at a regular meetmg of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
day of_2025 by Alderman _

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin
this day of,2025

APPROVED.

John R. Nelson, Mayor
ATTEST:

Shirley J. Roberts, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT



..,.MNMMN.-t t--ooN ............

.-'I t",1 U'.I OM NM
M 2 ~

:;: 8
g ~
3a



APPROVAL

REPORTS AND
RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

A RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE A
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT WITH
GRAEF-USA Inc. TO PROVIDE CONSTRUCTION

ADMINISTRATION AND INSPECTION
SERVICES FOR 'THE 116T STREET TRAIL

PROJECT FOR A FEE OF $178,100.00

MEETING DATE
2/4/2025

ITEM NUMBER

BACKGROUND
The II6" St Trail contract includes a proposed multi-use pathway within the Wisconsin Electric Power Company
(WE Energies) property, from City Limits to approximately W Mayers Drive.

The project was bid in October of 2024 and is anticipated to begin as early as April 14", 2025, with completion
by October 31, 2025. It is the contractor's option when to begin, but once construction is started, the contractor
has 60 days to complete.

Attached is the agreement between the City of Franklin and GRAEF-USA. GRAEF is to provide services outlined
in the attached proposal which includes construction observation and construction administration duties. This
scope of work is set to a do not exceed fee of $178,100.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Approve GRAEF-USA Inc. to provide construction administration and inspection services for the I16" St. Trail
Project for a to not exceed fee of $178,100.00.

FISCAL NOTE

This is a federally funded project through the State of Wisconsin. The federal funding for this project will be 80%
of the construction costs, up to $832,000.00.

Funding for the project is in alignment with current budget allocations under the approved capital
improvement plan. No additional funds are required beyond 20% of the construction costs.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion to authorize professional services contract with GRAEF-USA Inc. to provide construction
administration and inspection services for the 116" St. Trail project for a to not exceed fee of $178.100.00.

Engineering-MNP; DOA- KH, Finance - DB



STATE OF WISCONSIN: CITY OF FRANKLIN: MILWAUKEE COUNTY

RESOLUTION NO. 2025---

A RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT WITH
GRAEF-USA INC. TO PROVIDE CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION AND

INSPECTION SERVICES FOR THE 116TH ST. TRAIL PROJECT FOR A FEE OF
$178, I 00.00

WHEREAS, The 116th St Trail contract includes a proposed multi-use pathway withm the
Wisconsin Electric Power Company (WE Energies) property, from City Limits to approximately
W. Mayers Dnve., and

WHEREAS, The project was bid mn October of 2024 and 1s anticipated to begin as early as Apnl
14, 2025, with completion by October 31, 2025. It is the contractor's option when to begin, but
once construction 1s started, the contractor has 60 days to complete., and

WHEREAS, GRAEF is to construction administration and inspection services for the
project,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Mayor and Common Council of the
City of Franklin, WIsconsmn, agree to authorize a Professional Services Contract with GRAEF
USA Inc. to provide construction administration and inspection services for the 116" St. Trail
project for a fee of $178,100,

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
day 0f 2025 by [dermanl

Passed and adopted at a regular meetmg of the Common Council of the City of Franklin
this day of,2025

APPROVED.

John R Nelson, Mayor
ATTEST:

Shirley J. Roberts, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT-- -- --



AGREEMENT

This AGREEMENT, is made and entered mto this 4th day of February 2025, between the
City of Franklm, 9229 West Loomis Road, Franklm, Wisconsmn 53132 (hereinafter "CLIENT") and
GRAEF_USA, INC. (hereinafter "CONTRACTOR"), whose prnc1pal place of busmess is 275 W.
Wisconsm Avenue, Smte 300, Milwaukee, WI 53203

WITNESS ETH

WHEREAS, the CONTRACTOR 1s duly quahfied and expenenced as a mumcipal services
contractor and has offered services for the purposes specified m this AGREEMENT; and

WHEREAS, In the judgment of CLIENT, 1t 1s necessary and advisable to obtain the services
of the CONTRACTOR to provde Construction Inspect1on Servces;

NOW, THEREFORE, 1n cons1deraton of these premises and the following mutual
covenants, terms, and conditions, CLIENT and CONTRACTOR agree as follows·

I. BASIC SERVICES AND AGREEMENT ADMINISTRATION

A CONTRACTOR shall prov1de services to CLIENT for Construction Inspect1on
Services, as descnbed mn CONTRACTOR's proposal to CLIENT dated
December 13, 2024, annexed hereto and mcorporated herem as Attachment A.

B. CONTRACTOR shall serve as CLIENT's professional representative m matters
to which th1s AGREEMENT applies. CONTRACTOR may employ the services
of outside consultants and subcontractors when deemed necessary by
CONTRACTOR to complete work under this AGREEMENT followmg approval
by CLIENT.

C. CONTRACTOR is an independent contractor and all persons fumishmg services
hereunder are employees of, or mdependent subcontractors to, CONTRACTOR
and not of CLIENT. All obligations under the Federal Insurance Contnbutlon Act
(FICA), the Federal Unemployment Tax Act (FUTA), and mcome tax
withholding are the responsibility of CONTRACTOR as employer. CLIENT
understands that express AGREEMENTS may exist between CONTRACTOR
and its employees regarding extra work, compet1tton, and nondisclosure.

D. Dunng the term ofth1s AGREEMENT and throughout the penod of performance
of any resultant AGREEMENT, Including extensions, modifications, or add1tons
thereto, and for a penod of one (I) year from the conclusion of such actvty, the
parties hereto agree that neither shall solicit for employment any techmcal or
profess1onal employees of the other without the pnor written approval of the
other party.

II. FEES AND PAYMENTS

Page-1



CLIENT agrees to pay CONTRACTOR, for and m consideration of the performance of Basic
Services further described m Attachment A, [at our standard b1llmg rates] [with a not-to-exceed
budget of $178,100.00], subJect to the terms detailed below

A. CONTRACTOR may bill CLIENT and be pad for all work satisfactonly
completed hereunder on a monthly basis CLIENT agrees to pay
CONTRACTOR's mvo1ce within 30 days of mvo1ce date for all approved work.

B. Total price will not exceed budget of $178,100.00. For services rendered,
monthly mvmces will mclude a report that clearly states the hours and type of
work completed and the fee earned dunng the month bemg mvmced

C. In consideration of the faithful performance of thus AGREEMENT, the
CONTRACTOR will not exceed the fee for Basic Services and expenses without
wntten authonzation from CLIENT to perform work over and above that
described m the ongmal AGREEMENT.

D. Should CLIENT find deficiencies m work performed or reported, 1t wll notify
CONTRACTOR m writing wthmn thirty (30) days of receipt of mnvo1ce and
related report and the CONTRACTOR will remedy the deficiencies within thrty
(30) days of receiving CLIENT's rev1ew. Thus subsection shall not be construed
to be a lmmitat1on of any nghts or remedies otherwise available to CLIENT.

III. MODIFICATION AND ADDITIONAL SERVICES

A. CLIENT may, m wnting, request changes m the Basic Services reqmred to be
performed by CONTRACTOR and reqmre a specification of mcremental or
decremental costs pnor to change order agreement under this AGREEMENT.
Upon acceptance of the request of such changes, CONTRACTOR shall submit a
"Change Order Request Form" to CLIENT for authorzaton and notice to
proceed signature and return to CONTRACTOR. Should any such actual
changes be made, an eqmtable adJustinent will be made to compensate
CONTRACTOR or reduce the fixed pnce, for any mcremental or decremental
labor or d1rect costs, respectively. Any claim by CONTRACTOR for adjustments
hereunder must be made to CLIENT m wntmg no later than forty-five (45) days
after receipt by CONTRACTOR of notice of such changes from CLIENT.

IV. ASSISTANCE AND CONTROL

A. The Assistant City Engineer will coordmate the work of the CONTRACTOR,
and be solely responsible for communication within the CLIENT's organ1zat1on
as related to all issues ongmatmg under this AGREEMENT.

B CLIENT wll timely prov1de CONTRACTOR with all available Information
concermng PROJECT as deemed necessary by CONTRACTOR

C. CONTRACTOR will appomt, subject to the approval of CLIENT, Ryan
Cournoyer CONTRACTOR's Project Manager and other key providers of the
Bas1c Services. Substituton of other staff may occur only with the consent of
CLIENT.

Page-2



V. TERMINATION

A This AGREEMENT may be termmated by CLIENT, for its convenience, for
any or no reason, upon written notice to CONTRACTOR. This
AGREEMENT may be termmated by CONTRACTOR upon thirty (30) days
written nonce. Upon such termmnaton by CLIENT, CONTRACTOR shall be
entitled to payment of such amount as shall fairly compensate
CONTRACTOR for all work approved up to the date of termmat10n, except
that no amount shall be payable for any losses of revenue or profit from any
source outside the scope of this AGREEMENT, mcludmg but not limited to,
other actual or potent1al agreements for services with other part1es.

B In the event that this AGREEMENT is termmated for any reason,
CONTRACTOR shall deliver to CLIENT all data, reports, summaries,
correspondence, and other written, pnnted, or tabulated material pertamnmng 1n
any way to Basic Services that CONTRACTOR may have accumulated. Such
matenal is to be delivered to CLIENT whether mn completed form or 1n
process. CLIENT shall hold CONTRACTOR harmless for any work that 1s
mcomplete due to early termmatlon

C. The rights and remedies of CLIENT and CONTRACTOR under this section
are not exclusrve and are mn add1ton to any other rghts and remed1es
provided by law or appearing many other article ofth1s AGREEMENT.

VI. INSURANCE

The CONTRACTOR shall, during the hfe of the AGREEMENT, mamtam msurance coverage with
an authonzed msurance carrier at least equal to the minimum hmits set forth below:

A. General/Commercial Liability (Must $1,000,000 per each occurrence for bodily mJury,
have General/Commercal) personal mnyury, and property damage

$2,000,000 per general aggregate,

CITY shall be named as an additional insured on a
prmary, non-contrbutory bass

B. Automobile L1abihty (Must have $1,000,000 combmed smgle hm1t
auto lablty)

CITY shall be named as an addtonal nsured on a
prmary, non-contrbutory bass

C. Contractor's Pollution Liabihty (If $1,000,000 per occurrence
applicable) $2,000,000 aggregate

CITY shall be named as an additional insured on a
prmary, non-contrbutory bass

Page-3



D. Umbrella or Excess Liabihty $10,000,000 per occurrence for bodily tnJury,
Coverage for General/Commerc1al, personal mnyury, and property
Automobile Liability, and Contractor's
Pollution L1abl1ty

CITY shall be named as an addtonal nsured on a
prmary, non-contrbutory bass

E. Worker's Compensat10n
Employers' L1abl1ty (Must
workers compensation)

and Statutory
have

Contractor wll provde a waver of subrogaton
and/or any rights of recovery allowed under any
workers' compensation law

F. Professional L1ab1l1ty (Errors & $2,000,000 single limit
Omissions) (If applcable)

Upon the execution of this AGREEMENT, CONTRACTOR shall supply CLIENT with a smtable
statement certifying said protection and definmg the terms of the pohcy issued, which shall specify
that such protection shall not be cancelled without thirty (30) calendar days pnor notice to CLIENT,
and nammg CLIENT as an add1tonal insured as required above

VII. INDEMNIFICATION AND ALLOCATION OF RISK

A. To the fullest extent permitted by law, CONTRACTOR shall mndemnfy and hold
harmless CLIENT, CLIENT'S officers, directors, partners, and employees from and
agamst costs, losses, and damages (mcludmg but not hmited to reasonable fees and
charges of engmeers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals, and reasonable
court or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) caused solely by the negligent
acts or omiss10ns of CONTRACTOR or CONTRACTOR'S officers, directors,
partners, employees, and consultants mn the performance of CONTRACTOR'S
services under th1s AGREEMENT.

B. Nothrng contamed w1thrn this AGREEMENT is mtended to be a waiver or estoppel
of the contractmg mumc1pahty CLIENT or its msurer to rely upon the hmitat10ns,
defenses, and mmmun1ties contained within Wisconsin law, mcludmg those contamed
withm W1sconsm Statutes §§ 893.80, 895.52, and 345.05. To the extent that
mndemnficaton 1s available and enforceable, the mumcipahty CLIENT or its msurer
shall not be liable in mdemnity or contnbution for an amount greater than the limits
of h1abluty for mun1cmpal clamms established by Wisconsin Law.

VIII. TIME FOR COMPLETION

CONTRACTOR shall commence work immediately havmg received a Notice to Proceed.

IX. DISPUTES

This AGREEMENT shall be construed under and governed by the laws of the State of Wisconsm
The venue for any actions ansmg under this AGREEMENT shall be the Circmt Court for Milwaukee

Page-4



County. The prevailing party shall be awarded 1ts actual costs of any such lit1gaton, including
reasonable attorney fees.

X. RECORDS RETENTION

CONTRACTOR shall mamtam all records pertammg to this AGREEMENT durmg the term of this
AGREEMENT and for a period of 7 years followmg its completion. Such records shall be made
available by the CONTRACTOR to CLIENT for mspect1on and copymg upon request.

XI. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

A. Professionalism. The same degree of care, skull and diligence shall be exercised mn the
performance of the services as 1s possessed and exercised by a member of the same
profession, currently practicing, under smm1lar circumstances, and all persons
providing such services under th1s AGREEMENT shall have such active
certifications, licenses and permissions as may be reqmred by law.

B. Pursuant to Law. Notw1thstandmg anythmg to the contrary anywhere else set forth
w1thm this AGREEMENT, all services and any and all matenals and/or products
provided by CONTRACTOR under this AGREEMENT shall be in compliance with
all apphcable governmental laws, statutes, dec1s1ons, codes, rules, orders, and
ordinances, be they Federal, State, County or Local.

C. Conflict of Interest. CONTRACTOR warrants that neither 1t nor any of its affihates
has any financial or other personal interest that would conflict in any manner with the
performance of the services under this Agreement and that neither it nor any of its
affihates will acquire directly or indirectly any such interest. CONTRACTOR
warrants that it will immediately notify the CLIENT if any actual or potential conflict
of interest arises or becomes known to the CONTRACTOR Upon receipt of such
notification, a CLIENT review and wntten approval ts reqmred for the
CONTRACTOR to continue to perform work under this Agreement

C. This AGREEMENT may only be amended by wntten instrument signed by both
CLIENT and CONTRACTOR.

Page-5



XII. CONTROLLING TERMS AND PROVISIONS

The aforesad terms and prov1s1ons shall control over any conflicting term or prov1s1on of any
CONTRACTOR proposal, Attachment, Exhibit, and standard terms and provis10ns annexed hereto.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused thts AGREEMENT to be executed on the day
and year first above written

CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN

BY _

PRINT NAME John R Nelson

TITLE Mayor

[)p'],.-

BY _

PRINT NAME Darnelle L Brown

TITLE Director of Fmance and Treasurer

DATE

BY _

PRINT NAME Shirley J Roberts

TITLE City Clerk

DATE

Approved as to form

Jesse A Wesolowski, City Attorney
DATE _

GRAEF-USA INC.

a hdt------
PRINT NAME MaryBeth Pettt, PE

TITLE Vice Pres1dent, Principle-In-Charge

DATE February 4, 2025

Page-6



The Avenue
275West Wisconsin Avenue, Suite 300
Milwaukee, WI 53203
414 1259 1500
414 / 259 0037 fax
wwwgraef-usa.com

GR EF
Attachment A

December 13th, 2024

Mrs. Kelly Hersh
Director of Administration
Franklin City Hall
9229 W. Loomis Road
Franklin, Wisconsin 53132

SUBJECT: Construction Administration & Inspection for Project I.D. 2976-00-02
116Street Trail, City of Franklin
Milwaukee County

Dear Mrs. Hersh,

We are very pleased to provide you with this proposal for professional services. When
accepted, this proposal will become the formal Agreement between Graef-USA Inc.
(GRAEF) and City of Franklin (Client).

This proposal is for Construction Administration and Inspection Services for the construction
of the 116Street Trail (Project) that is being constructed under the Congestion Mitigation
and Air Quality Improvement Program (CMAQ). It is subject to GRAEF's Standard Terms
and Conditions, a copy of which is attached and incorporated by reference.

For this Project, GRAEF proposes to provide the Basic Services as described below:

Construction Observation
Provide construction observation for the duration of project construction. Construction
observation duties include, but may not be limited to:

•

•

Construction Inspection
o Tracking pad construction and maintenance
o Erosion Control Inspections
o Clearing & Grubbing
o Topsoil stripping/stockpiling
o Grading (excavation and fill areas)
o Imported topsoil placement
o Gravel placement & compaction
o HMA paving operations
o Topographical survey for final quantities
o Construction Documentation

Contaminated Soils
o Coordinate with TRC for locations and quantities
o Assist TRC with GPS locations for testing sites
o Construction Documentation



-GR EF
The inspections will include full-time observation every day the contractor is working during
the tasks listed above (approximately 12 weeks of full-time inspection).

Construction Administration
Provide construction administration duties for the duration of project construction. It is
estimated that the construction administration task will require approximately 2-4 hours
per week. Construction administration duties include, but may not be limited to:

• Administer preconstruction meeting
• Running progress meetings at agreed to frequency
• Pay Requests
• Construction Schedule Review
• Review and process Request for Information (RFI) requests from the Contractor
• Record drawings
• Earthwork quantities derived from topographical surveys
• Final Construction Records

TRC Subcontract
GRAEF has partnered with TRC Environmental Corporation to assist with the Wisconsin
Department of Natural Resources (WDNR)-required construction documentation, barrier
maintenance plan, additional subsurface investigation, and associated reporting. The
proposal specifically addresses the requirements outlined in the WDNR correspondence
dated August 1, 2024, including:

Approval to Manage Contaminated Soil underWis. Admin. Code & NR 718.12, August 1,
2024
' Review of Interim Action Report - Trail Construction, August 1, 2024

The requirements include Path Construction Documentation, a Construction Completion
Report, and a Revised Barrier Maintenance Plan.

Additional proposed TRC Environmental Corporation tasks are further scoped in
Attachment B

Schedule
GRAEF will endeavor to perform the proposed Basic Services per the project
construction schedule. It is required that all aspects of the trail construction will be
completed within 90 calendar days of starting.

-2



-GR EF
Fee Overview

TRC Environment Corporation Services

TRC proposes to perform the Scope of Services on a time-and-materials basis in
accordance with the attached Cost Breakout (# 3 in Attachment 8). The total project
budget is $86,100. Should GRAEF request TRC to make changes in the services or to
perform additional services, TRC will prepare a Change Order for GRAEF's acceptance
prior to execution of the work. Additional services will also be performed in accordance
with the Cost Breakout in Attachment B.

GRAEF (Construction Services)

For all Basic Services, Client agrees to compensate GRAEF as follows as a time and
material contract with a not-to-exceed fee of $92,000.00.

GRAEF (Prime Contract)
For all services, GRAEF & TRC, Client agrees to compensate GRAEF as follows as a time
and material contract not-to-exceed fee of $178,100.00
The total contract limit shall not exceed $178,100.00 without written amendment and
approval by the Client.

You agree to compensate GRAEF for any Additional Services with an additional fee to be
negotiated at a later date.

To accept this proposal, please sign and date below and return one copy to us. Upon written
authorization, GRAEF will commence work on the project.

We look forward to working with you on this important project. Please call us at 414-266
9175 if you have any questions regarding this proposal.

Sincerely,

Graef-USA Inc.

Ryan Cournoyer, P.E.
Construction Inspector, Project Manager

-3-

Accepted by:
City of Franklin

(Signature)

(Name Printed)



GR-EF
frVl
Mary Beth Pettit, P.E.
Vice President, Principal-In-Charge

-4-.



The Avenue
275 West Wisconsin Avenue, Suite 300
Milwaukee, WI 53203
414 / 259 1500
4141259 0037fax
www graef-usa com

GR EF
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 2025 FEE SCHEDULE (effective January 1, 2025)

1% - "re . , w »

«i

3? ,,;

k
.• ¥ go4

Senior Group Manager (P9) $ 240.00

Group Manager (PS) $ 225.00

Senior Professional (P7) $ 220.00

Professional (P6) $ 215.00

Professional (PS) $180.00

Professional (P4) $ 150.00

Professional (P3) $ 135.00

Professional (P2) $ 125.00

Professional (P1) $110.00
,,,

± +'
,MM

4

Senior Technician/Inspector (T6) $145.00

Senior Technician/lnspector (T5) $130.00

Senior Technician/Inspector (T4) $ 120.00

Technician/Inspector (T3) $110.00

Technician/Inspector (T2) $ 95.00

Technician/Inspector (T1) $ 85.00

Survey Crew - 1 Person $140.00

Survey Crew - 2 Person $ 250.00

Administrative $ 85.00

Automobile travel will be billed at the current federal rate of 70.0 cents per mile.
Survey vehicles will be billed at 75 cents per mile.
LIDAR scanner will be billed at $150/hour.
Unmanned Aircraft System (UAS) will be billed at $75/hour.
Expenses such as travel and supplies will be billed at actual cost.
Contracted services and consultants will be billed at actual cost.



N 0, gi e -~0 0 0

:si g, &' n0.Q. 3 i,l i ' fj"'Q. a Ir (i n % % ,iii
&iJll

.,
<1> I 6'.
3 3<1> ta B. a;·

0 i :
::,

i
..,,

11

~ f '
1:1

Y
"

l '

n·, .,
a1.' Id~-. ·l ~

,~_·11·
±

I; !~ 1q , --< , ': I0, :i ..,

u,1 !
Ii :,,

al
,-,,

:; _iE

E
1r.,1

IU R . '7
·-l

I9$

jj

j ,, ~ J '
hj

±
23 n

11·, iiJ~ :l .,
Ii"'' '\< .:

-0
!Ji

en 0, d
l

0 0 --~0

..
IH ~ ·l

l

.,. .,, I
N;;; gJ
0 0 -

n
0a
5 ~"',.::, ,, ~.Q ;c .,_
:c :c :r
0 0 0
C C C
.I .I .I
II II II

I'

i if[ ~
II II

10' N O c:,?gs&

..._, m
~""" oo o o

000
0>g b o o

..
OO O O 00

~ ~ 0 0 o

''
'I

Ii
]

11

II

IJ

I

Ii
h

l

11 a .,. o o ~o oII Ob C)

Ii ~
II :·Ii ]#lsss

$4ij 1-1-+-+-+-t--t-t-+--t-t-+---t-+-+---t-+-+-+-t-t-+-t-t-+-t-t--+-+-+--+-+-t-

hi#Fl=]=/=/

It

Ii
Ii
II



December 9, 2024

999 Fourier Dr Ste 101
Madison WI53717

T 608 826 3600
TRCcompanies com

Attachment B

Mary Beth Pettit
GRAEF
275 West Wisconsin Avenue, Suite 300
Milwaukee, WI 53203

Subject· Proposal for Trail Construction Documentation and Soil Sampling
116h Street Trail, W Ryan Rd. to Mayers Dr
City of Franklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin
TRC Proposal No 643179 9990 0000

Dear Mary Beth:

This letter presents TRC's proposal to assist GRAEF with the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources
(WDNR)-required construction documentation, barrier maintenance plan, additional subsurface investIgatIon, and
associated reporting The proposal specifically addresses the requirements outlined m the WDNR
correspondence dated August 1, 2024, including·

■ Approval to Manage Contaminated Soil under Wis Admin Code & NR 718 12, August 1, 2024

■ Review of Interim Action Report- Trail Construction, August 1, 2024

The requirements include Path Construction Documentation, a Construction Completion Report, and a Revised
Barrier Maintenance Plan

Additionally, it incorporates recommendations from the Interim Actton Report (July 2024) prepared by TRC,
including the preparation of a Site Investigation Work Plan (SIWP), Soil Sampling, a Site Investigation Report, and
a Closure Report

We have included work items that are associated with the trail construction but understand that future work at the
site maybe required by the responsible party, WEC Energy Group (WEC), or by the City of Franklin (City)
Additional work may be required that is not included with this proposal We are pleased to offer this assistance to
GRAEF and the City of Franklin Please contact me, at 608-826-3628, if you would like to discuss any aspect of
our proposal.

Sincerely,

TRC

Roal4
Daniel Haak, P E
Project Manager

Attachments· 1 Proposal
2 Work Authorization
3 Cost Breakout
4 Terms and Conditions

MDN/643179



GRAEF

Attachment 1
Proposal

12/09/24 ] Proposal No. 634179.9990
TRC - Madison, Wisconsin

MDN/643179

Proposal for Trail Construction Documentation and Soil Sampling
116th Street Trail, City of Franklin



GRAEF Proposal for Trail Construction Documentation and Soil Sampling
116th Street Trail, City of Franklin

1.0 Scope of Services
TRC will perform the following services

■ Coordinate construction documentation with the City of Franklin, WEC, and GRAEF

■ Attend the preconstruction meeting to discuss the requirements for the management of excavated
material

■ Update the site-specific Health and Safety Plan for TRC on-site personnel

• Complete up to 10 periodic site visits to document the path construction, including the management of
excavated materials and the placement of clean topsoil, path subgrade, and asphalt Site visits will
include photo-documentation of placement of clean topsoil and path subgrade and asphalt

Prepare a Construction Completion Report documenting the management of excavated materials, and
soil cover and asphalt placement

• Prepare an updated Barrier Maintenance Plan.

Prepare a SIWP to address items in the Interim Action Report including

Update the site-specific Health and Safety Plan for TRC on-site personnel

Install up to 20 hand-augured borings along the side slopes of the railroad corridor stepped out
approximately 10 feet from the previous sample locations The borings along the side slopes will
be advanced to an approximate depth of one foot below ground surface (bgs)

Collect two soil sample from each boring from depth intervals anticipated to be the O to O 5 foot
interval and the O 5 to 1foot interval

Complete three hand augers at locations where arsenic results have shown elevated
concentrations including SB-13 (0 5-1), SB-27 (0 5-1), and SB-34 (0 5-1) The samples will be
collected below 1 foot and above the inferred water table to a maximum depth of 4 ft bgs to
delineate the vertical extent of arsenic impacts in the railroad fill material

Submit up to 50 soil samples for laboratory analyses of total arsenic Samples will be analyzed on
a standard 10-day turnaround time

Soil cuttings will be returned to borings due to their shallow depth

Discuss the soil analytical findings with GRAEF, the City of Franklin, WEC, and the WDNR

• Prepare a Site Investigation Report summarizing the results of the investigation

• Prepare Closure Report Form 4400-202 assuming analytical data 1s supportive of closure A $1,350
Closure Review and GIS fee will be required by the WDNR and ts included in this proposal

• Discuss draft reports wth the City of Franklin, WEC, and GRAEF

Finalize reports

■ Participate in up to five 1-hour calls with GRAEF, the City of Franklin, WEC, and/or the WDNR to
discuss work completed or proposed for the trail

12/09/24 ] Proposal No. 634179.9990
TRC - Madison, Wisconsin

MDN/643179

1



GRAEF Proposal for Trail Construction Documentation and Soil Sampling
116th Street Trail, City of Franklin

2.0 Deliverables
TRC will provide GRAEF wth the following deliverables'

■ Construction Completion Report per NR 724 05 (2) and NR 724 15 (3)

■ Barrier Maintenance Plan and Form 4400-305 (R7/20)

■ Site Investigation Work Plan

NR716 Site Investigation Report

■ NR 726 Closure Report

3.0 Schedule
TRC can begin work on the project immediately after receiving your notice to proceed Trail construction is
expected to take place in 2025 Following construction the Construction Completion Report and Barrier
Maintenance Plan will be completed In addition, the Site Investigation Work Plan and site investigation can
be completed during or after trail construction The Site Investigation Report and Closure Report will follow
the site investigation, anticipated late 2025

4.0 Budget
TRC proposes to perform the Scope of Services on a time-and-materials basis in accordance with the
attached Cost Breakout (Attachment 3) The total project budget is $86,100 Should GRAEF request TRC
to make changes in the services or to perform additional services, TRC will prepare a Change Order for
GRAEF's acceptance prior to execution of the work. Additional services will also be performed in
accordance with the attached Cost Breakout

4.1
■

■

■

■

■

■

Budget Assumptions
Ten half-days have been budgeted to complete the construction observations

Two TRC employees are budgeted for three full days to perform the hand auger soil borings

No lane closures will be necessary to complete the proposed scope of work Subcontracted traffic
control will not be required to complete borings in or adjacent to the traveled way

Site access to private property, if required, will be granted through reasonable means such as access
letter(s) and telephone notification(s)

A closure report will be prepared based on closure-appropriate soil sample concentrations, 1f
appropriate

Report revisions following WDNR review will be minimal 10 TRC staff hours have been included for
revisions

Additional work such as additional soil borings or soil sampling, and future investigations related to the
closure of the site are not included and can be included under a change order

12/09/24 I Proposal No. 634179.9990
TRC - Madison, Wisconsin

MDN/643179

2



GRAEF Proposal for Trail Construction Documentation and Soil Sampling
116th Street Trail, City of Franklin

4.2 Basis for Payment
TRC will submit invoices monthly in accordance with the rate schedule that ism effect when the work is
performed

4.3 Terms of Contract
TRC proposes to perform the Scope of Services under the terms and conditions of the Proposal, the Work
Authorization, the Terms and Conditions, and Cost Breakout (collectively the "Agreement") If this
Agreement is satisfactory to GRAEF, please sign in the required spaces on the Work Authorization and
return a fully executed copy to my attention and retain a signed copy of the Work Authorization for your
records If GRAEF requires a Purchase Order for payment purposes, please submit the Purchase Order
referencing and incorporating this Agreement, including TRC's Proposal and Proposal Number in addition to
the signed Work Authorization

12/09/24 ] Proposal No. 634179.9990
TRC - Madison, Wisconsin

MDN/643179

3



GRAEF

Attachment 2
Work Authorization

12/09/24 I Proposal No. 634179.9990
TRC - Madison, Wisconsin

MDN/643179

Proposal for Trail Construction Documentation and Soll Sampling
116th Street Trail, City of Franklin



GRAEF Proposal for Trail Construction Documentation and Soil Sampling
116th Street Trail, City of Franklin

Acceptance of TRC Proposal No. 643179.9990.0000
The signature below, by a duly authorized representative of GRAEF, indicates acceptance of the above
referenced proposal without exception Acceptance is limited to the terms stated in this Agreement, and any
additional or different terms are rejected unless expressly agreed to in writing by TRC

Approved and accepted as of the date shown below

TRC GRAEF

By By

Signature

Daniel Haak, P E
Printed Name

Project Manager
Title

December 9, 2024
Date

12/09/24 ] Proposal No. 634179.9990
TRC - Madison, Wisconsin

MDN/643179

1

Signature

Printed Name

Title

Date



GRAEF

Attachment 3
Cost Breakout

12/09/24 I Proposal No. 634179.9990
TRC - Madison, Wisconsin

MDN/643179

Proposal for Trail Construction Documentation and Soll Sampling
116th Street Trail, City of Franklin



Project Name

Cost
Oversight, Sampling, Construction Report, SIWP, Cap Maintent Revision,

TR; Project Number
116th St Trail, City of Franklin
633179 9990 0000

BASIS OF PAYMENT: TIME AND EXPENSE (NOT TO EXCEED) TOTAL $86,100.00

LABOR TOTAL: $79.295.94
TASK POSITION TITLE HOURS RATE COST
765- Envir IMP-Contaminated Contract Manager 20 $7181 $1,436 20
Sites Project Supervisor I 100 $56.48 $5,648 00

Engineer 150 $35 95 $5,392 50
Hydrogeologist ll 10 $5085 $508 50
Scientist 300 $3173 $9,519 00
Field Technician 20 $29 39 $587 80
CADD,GIS I 70 $34 66 $2,426 20
Administrative Support ll 50 $3405 $1,702 50
TOTAL LABORAT DIRECT RATE
OVERHEAD (1.7225)
PROFIT(7%)

1 7225
0 07

$27,220.70
$46,887 66
$5,18758

SUBCONTRACT COSTS TOTAL: $1 000.00
SUBCONTRACTOR SUBCONTRACTED SERVICES QUANTITY UNIT RATE COST
Eurofins Arsenic 50 Each $20 00 $1,00000

SUBTOTAL, LABORATORY COSTS $1,000 00

TOTAL· $5 804 06...
ITEM QUANTITY UNIT UNIT PRICE COST
Meals • Daily Allowance 10 Day $4500 $450 00
Vehicle Rental (Enterprise) 13 Day $7500 $975.00
Rental Vehicle Gas (at 15 mpg) 80 Gallon $310 $248.00
TRC Equipment Rental (GPS) 13 Day $150 00 $1,950 00
Sample Shipment Fee 5 Allowance $60 00 $300 00
Filing Fees/Permits/Closure GIS Fee 1 Each $1,350 00 $1,350 00
Misc Supplies 1 Allowance $531 06 $531 06

DIRECT EXPENSES

TOTAL DIRECT EXPENSES $5,804.06

TRC APPROVALS 'Rola 12/9/2024
Date·, o/ -, .>°

12/9/2024
TRC Quality Assurance Date

WISDOT APPROVAL
WisDOT Contract Manager Date

\ \madison-vfp\Records\ \ WPMSN\PJT2\ 643179\ 9990\Construction Documentation Cost Breakout.xlsx



GRAEF Proposal for Trail Construction Documentation and Soll Sampling
116th Street Trail, City of Franklin

Attachment 4
Terms and Conditions

12/09/24 I Proposal No. 634179.9990
TRC - Madison, Wisconsin

MDN/643179



GRAEF

Terms and Conditions

Proposal for Trail Construction Documentation and Soil Sampling
116th Street Trail, City of Franklin

TRC Environmental Corporation ("Consultant") will provide consulting and other professional services on
behalf of Client Unless otherwise stated, Consultant's Proposal to perform the Scope of Work expires sixty
(60) days from its date and may be modified or withdrawn by Consultant prior to receipt of Client's
acceptance Any additional or different terms and conditions proposed by Client are objected to and will not
be binding upon Consultant unless specifically agreed to in writing by Consultant An order or statement of
intent to purchase Consultant's services, or any direction to proceed with, or acquiescence in the
commencement of work shall constitute consent to these terms and conditions The offer and acceptance of
any services or goods covered by this Agreement is conditioned upon the terms and conditions contained
herein

1. Scope of Service

The Scope of the Services including the location of the Services required of Consultant for Client or Client
Affiliate are detailed in the Proposal which, upon execution by the Parties, shall become a part of this
Agreement.

The Services and schedule set forth mn the Proposal are based upon site conditions known by Consultant at
the time of contract and information regarding the site provided by Client. If the information proves to be
incomplete or inaccurate, or if site conditions are encountered which materially vary from those indicated by
Client, or if Client directs Consultant to change its original Services set forth in the Proposal, a written
amendment equitably adjusting the terms of cost, performance, schedule and/or conditions shall be executed
by Client and Consultant The parties agree that Consultant shall not start to perform the Services until the
Proposal describing the Services, including an agreed upon schedule of performance, has been authorized
by both Consultant and the Client, and has been provided to Consultant

The offer and acceptance of any services or goods covered by the Proposal 1s conditioned upon these terms
and conditions An order or statement of intent to purchase Consultant's services, or any direction to proceed
with, or acquiescence in the commencement of work shall constitute consent to these terms and cond1t1ons

2. Fees and Terms of Payment

Fees Fees for Services performed under thus Agreement shall generally be either in a "Tmme and Mater1als"
or "Fixed Price" basis The method of compensation shall be specified in the Proposal Prices or rates quoted
do not include state or local taxes where applicable

If Time and Materials: Compensation for Services performed on a Time and Materials basis
shall be in accordance with the rate schedule and terms set forth in the Proposal, which is
incorporated by reference and made a part of this Agreement

II If Fred Price' lf the compensation arrangements are specified in the Proposal as being flxed
price, Client shall be invoiced monthly either on the basis of percentage of project completion
or upon such payment schedule as set forth in the Proposal

Expenses Any expenses related to the performance of the Services shall be as set forth m the Proposal

Invoicing and Payment Consultant will submit invoices for Services on a monthly basis Payments for all
Invoices (Time and Materials and/or Fred Price) are due at the address appearing on the invoice within thirty
(30) days of Client's receipt of invoice.

12/09/24 I Proposal No. 634179.9990
TRC - Madison, Wisconsin

MDN/643179

1



GRAEF Proposal for Trail Construction Documentation and Soil Sampling
116th Street Trail, City of Franklin

If Client objects to all or any portion of the invoice, Client shall so notify Consultant in writing within ten (10)
days of the invoice date, identifying the cause of the disagreement and shall pay when due that portion of the
Invoice that is not in dispute Both parties shall use best efforts to resolve any dispute in an expeditious
manner If the parties are unable to resolve the dispute within thirty (30) days of receipt of Client's written
objection, the dispute shall be subject to Dispute Resolution procedures set forth in Article 15 below The
Client's obligation to pay for the Work is in no way dependent upon the Ghent's ability to obtain financing or
dependent upon the Client's successful completion of the project.

Interest will accrue on all overdue payments at the rate of 12% per annum, or the highest rate permissible
under applicable law, whichever is less, starting on the 31day after the date of an invoice. Additionally, if
Client does not pay Consultant within forty-five (45) days of the date of an mvoIce, then, upon seven (7)
days' written notice to Client, Consultant may suspend performance of the Services and any Deliverables
until it receives payment of the amount owing. Additionally, Client will reimburse Consultant for all reasonable
costs incurred by Consultant in collecting any overdue payments and related interest, including, without
limitation, reasonable attorneys' fees, other legal costs, court costs, and collection agency fees Consultant
may at its option withhold delivery of documents and other data pending receipt of payment for all Work
rendered and shall have no liability to the Client for delay or damage caused because of such withholding

3. Time of Performance

Consultant's Services under this Proposal will be considered complete at the earlier of (i) the date when
Consultant's Deliverables are accepted by Client or (ii) thirty (30) days after the date when the last of
Consultant's Deliverables are submitted for final acceptance 1f Ghent does not notify Consultant m writing
within such 30-day period that the Deliverables fail to conform to the requirements of the Agreement

4. Additional and Changed Services, Delays

Client has the right to add or make changes to the Services set forth mn the Proposal provided Consultant
receives an equitable adjustment in compensation and time for performance to the extent they are impacted
by the additional or changed Services Consultant has no obligation to proceed with additional or changed
Services until the Parties agree to the time and compensation adjustments associated with those Services
and Consultant receives a change order to that effect, signed by Client

Consultant will be entitled to an equitable adjustment in compensation and time for performance to the extent
Services to be performed by Consultant are impacted by the acts or omissions of Ghent, including, but not
limited to· a failure of Client to perform or cause performance of its obligations in accordance with the
Agreement, including, but not limited to, failure to provide Information or comments in connection with the
development of any Deliverables (defined below); interference with or delay of any of the Services caused by
Client, or other party for whom Chant is responsible; any error, omission, or ambiguity in information provided
by Client to Consultant and necessary to the performance of the Services as required under the Agreement,
and delays In obtaining, or the absence, suspension, termination, or failure of renewal of, any permit, hcense,
or governmental authorization

If the Services are not progressing in accordance with the project schedule due to Consultant's fault,
Consultant will take appropriate corrective measures, which may include working overtime or adding staff,
which will be at Consultant's expense to the extent the delays are caused by Consultant's fault

5. Force Majeure

Except for the obligation to pay for Services rendered and expenses incurred, no liability will attach to either
Party from delay in performance or nonperformance caused by circumstances and/or events beyond the
reasonable control of the Party affected, mcludmg, but not limited to acts of God, fire, flood, war, earthquake,

12/09/24 ] Proposal No. 634179.9990
TRC - Madison, Wisconsin

MDN/643179

2



GRAEF Proposal for Trail Construction Documentation and Soil Sampling
116th Street Trail, City of Franklin

epidemic, pandemic, quarantine restrictions, other natural occurrences, war, acts of terrorism, freight
embargoes, vandalism, strikes, lockouts, acts and/or omissions of Federal, State and local governmental
authorities and regulatory agencies, and other events which are beyond the reasonable control of the Party.
Should such delay occur, the parties will use best efforts to resolve any delay in a fair and equitable manner,
allowing for schedule adjustments as required to reasonably accommodate the delay and the interests of
both Parties.

While Consultant has made reasonable efforts to incorporate into its plan for the Project any known current
project impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic, Consultant has not accounted for, unknown future changes due
to the COVID-19 pandemic, including, without limitation, additional restrictions by government agencies or
others (such as the availability of the site for access or client or consultant staff or others), to the extent they
delay or otherwise impact the Project. In that event, Consultant will notify Client and work in good faith as to
how to address, time, costs, or other unexpected impacts. In addition, Consultant reserves the right to
receive compensation for increased PPE, social distancing, or other requirements that impact Consultant's
costs.

6. Consultant Responsibilities

Consultant shall perform all Services in accordance with the following (together, the "Standard of Care"):

I. Consultant will act as an independent contractor in performing the Services, and nothing
herein will at any time be construed to create the relationship of employer and employee,
partnership, or joint venture between Client and Consultant.

II. Consultant shall, in performing the Services, comply with all applicable federal, state, and local
laws, ordinances, regulations and orders published by a governmental agency and in place at
the time the Work is performed (collectively, "Laws").

Ill. Consultant, its employees, and subcontractors shall adhere to any and all policies regarding
workplace security, safety and other such policies as transmitted to Consultant by Client prior
to performing the Services.

IV Consultant shall obtain and maintain throughout the term of this Agreement or as required
under Law, the approvals, licenses and/or permits required under Law or by governmental
agency, board or other jurisdiction in order to provide the Services.

V Consultant will take reasonable precautions to minimize any damage to the property upon
which Services are performed and adjoining properties and any cost of correction, repair or
replacement to such property caused by Consultant or any subcontractor to Consultant shall
be borne by Consultant. If the Services require disturbance of the property, Consultant shall
return the property to substantially its original condition unless otherwise provided in the
Proposal.

VI. Consultant shall advise the Client at regular intervals of the status of the project and will make
reasonable efforts to coordinate its activities with Client and to accommodate other activities of
the Client at the site where the Services are being conducted. Consultant shall designate an
authorized representative to be available for consultation, assistance, and coordination of
activities.

VII. Consultant shall perform its Services in a manner consistent with the degree of professional
skill and care exercised by similar professionals on projects of similar scope, nature and
complexity in line with industry standards and practice and in accordance with generally

12/09/24 I Proposal No. 634179.9990
TRC - Madison, Wisconsin

MDN/643179

3 >TC



GRAEF

VIII

IX

Proposal for Trail Construction Documentation and Soil Sampling
116th Street Trail, City of Franklin

accepted engineering, environmental, and/or construction practices in effect at the time the
Services are rendered and utilized by environmental firms located in the United States and
performing Services of a similar nature This standard of care shall be judged as of the time
and place the Services are rendered, and not according to later standards A difference of
opinion on a question of professional judgment shall not excuse Client from paying for
Services rendered or result m liabihty to Consultant

In the event Consultant procures Materials pursuant to the Proposal, Consultant warrants to
Client that the Materials will be free of defects in workmanship ("Warranty")

Remedies If Consultant's Services fail to meet the Standard of Care ("Nonconforming Work"),
or if any materials fail to meet the Warranty ("Defective Materials"), and if Client provides
written notice to Consultant of such failure no later than one (1) year after completion of the
applicable Proposal or Work Authorization ("Correction Penod"), at Consultant's option,
Consultant shall, at its sole cost and expense, will withm a reasonable time, but not to exceed
thirty (30) days, after receipt of such written notice, to the extent requested by Client in such
notice· (a) re-perform the Nonconforming Work, (b) repair or replace the Defective Materials,
or (c) refund the amount of compensation paid to Consultant for such Nonconforming Work
and/or Defective Materials. In no event shall Consultant be required to bear the cost of gaming
access in order to perform its warranty obligations the Nonconforming Work or repair or
replace the Defective Materials

Warranty Limitation THE STANDARD OF CARE IS NOT A WARRANTY DR GUARANTEE, AND
CONSULTANT HAS NO SUCH OBLIGATION, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, WITH RESPECT TO
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES NOTHING IN THIS AGREEMENT WILL BE INTERPRETED TO REQUIRE
CONSULTANT TO PERFORM PROFESSIONAL SERVICES TO ANY HIGHER STANDARD OR HAVE ANY
OBLIGATION IN THE PERFORMANCE OF PROFESSIONAL SERVICES IN EXCESS OF WHAT IS
REQUIRED BY THE STANDARD OF CARE, AND THIS ARTICLE WILL CONTROL OVER ANY
CONTRARY PROVISION. OTHER THAN THE EXPRESS WARRANTIES CONTAINED HEREIN,
CONSULTANT DISCLAIMS ALL WARRANTIES, WHETHER STATUTORY, EXPRESS, OR IMPLIED,
INCLUDING ALL WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE,
AND ALL WARRANTIES ARISING FROM COURSE OF DEALING OR USAGE IN TRADE SUBJECT TO
CONSULTANT'S LIABILITY UNDER ARTICLE 10, CLIENT'S EXCLUSIVE REMEDIES AND
CONSULTANT'S ONLY OBLIGATIONS ARISING OUT OF A CLAIM FOR NONCONFORMING WORK OR
DEFECTIVE MATERIALS FOLLOWING SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION UNDER ANY TASK ORDER WILL
BE THOSE STATED IN THIS ARTICLE 6

7. Client Responsibilities

Client shall cooperate with Consultant so that the Services can be completed in a timely,
efficient and cost-effective manner. Client will designate m writing the authorized
representative(s) familiar with the Services who shall be available to Consultant and who shall
have the authority to make decisions necessary for Consultant to perform its Services

II Client shall be responsible for providing access to Consultant and its subcontractor(s) to enter
the property upon which Consultant's Serices are to be performed

Ill Client shall provide to Consultant all studies, reports, data and other relevant information
available to the Clent regarding the site and/or Servces Client shall authorize Consultant to
obtain additional data as required and furnish the Services of others as reasonably necessary
for the performance of the Services Consultant shall be entitled to use and rely upon such
information and Services.

12/09/24 ] Proposal No. 634179.9990
TRC - Madison, Wisconsin

MDN/643179

4



GRAEF Proposal for Trail Construction Documentation and Soil Sampling
116th Street Trail, City of Franklin

8.

IV If the Services include excavation or drilling, Client shall provide Consultant assistance in
locating underground structures or utilities in the vicinity of any exploration or investigation. If
despite commercially appropriate practices neither Client nor Consultant can confirm the
location, the Client agrees that Consultant is not responsible for any costs associated with the
repair, replacement or restoration of any damage associated with the non-negligent
performance by Consultant of the excavation or drilling.

Confidentiality

"Confidential Information" means all technical, economic, financial, pricing, marketing or other information
that has not been published and/or is not otherwise available to members of the public and includes, without
limitation, trade secrets, proprietary information, know-how, customer lists, scientific, technical and business
studies, analyses, processes, methods, procedures, policies and information. In the event that either Party
discloses Confidential Information to the other Party in connection with this Agreement (excluding
Consultant's Work Product that is delivered to Client), the Party receiving such Confidential Information
agrees to hold as confidential and to not disclose to others the Confidential Information for a period of five (5)
years from the date of disclosure. These restrictions shall not apply to information that (i) the Parties had in
their possession prior to disclosure; (ii) becomes public knowledge through no fault of the receiving Party; (iii)
the receiving Party lawfully acquires from a third party not under an obligation of confidentiality to the
disclosing Party; (iv) is independently developed by the receiving Party; or (v) is required to be disclosed by
law or court order.

9. Insurance

Consultant represents that it has, maintains, and at all times during performance of the Services and will
continue in effect at its own expense the following coverage:

I. Workers Compensation and occupational disease insurance in statutory amounts.

II. Employer's Liability insurance in the amount of $1,000,000.

Ill. Automobile Liability in the amount of $1,000,000.

IV Commercial General Liability insurance for bodily injury, death or loss of or damage to
property of third persons in the amount of $1,000,000 per occurrence, $2,000,000 in general
aggregate.

V Professional Liability insurance in the amount of $1,000,000.

Said liability coverage policies will name Client as an additional insured, except Workers Compensation,
Employer's Liability and Professional Liability Insurance, and include a waiver of subrogation against Client.
Consultant shall provide Client a certificate of insurance evidencing the required insurance. Consultant shall
not cancel such policies without thirty (30) days prior notice to Client.

10. Indemnification

Each Party assumes full responsibility for any claims, suits, accidents, injuries (including death), losses,
costs, liabilities or damages to the person or property of any third party (collectively, "Claims") resulting from
its own negligent acts, errors, omissions or reckless acts or those of any of its employees, representatives,
contractors, consultants and agents, and, to the extent of a Party's proportionate responsibility therefore, will
indemnify, defend and save harmless the other Party, its employees, representatives, contractors,
consultants and agents from any costs, liabilities or expenses arising out of such negligent acts, errors,

12/09/24 I Proposal No. 634179.9990
TRC -- Madison, Wisconsin

MDN/643179

5



GRAEF Proposal for Trail Construction Documentation and Soil Sampling
116th Street Trail, City of Franklin

omissions or willful misconduct. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event that Consultant performs
intrusive ground work as part of the Services, Client shall indemnify Consultant from and against any and all
claims, costs, liabilities or expenses, including reasonable attorneys' fees, resulting from, or arising out of,
damages to subsurface or underground utilities or structures, including but not limited to, gas, telephone,
electric, water or sewer utilities whose locations were not designated or identified to Consultant prior to the
commencement of any subsurface investigation or cleanup, including but not limited to, excavation, drilling,
boring, or probing required to be conducted by Consultant as part of srte investigation, characterization or
remediation work.

11. Allocation of Risk

NOTWITHSTANDING ANYTHING TO THE CONTRARY IN THIS AGREEMENT, CONSULTANT AND
CLIENT WAIVE ANY AND ALL CLAIMS AGAINST EACH OTHER FOR INCIDENTAL, CONSEQUENTIAL,
SPECIAL, MULTIPLE, AND PUNITIVE DAMAGES ARISING OUT OF OR RELATING TO THIS
AGREEMENT, REGARDLESS OF WHETHER SUCH DAMAGES WERE FORESEEABLE AND WHETHER
OR NOT THE CULPABLE PARTY WAS ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES, AND
REGARDLESS OF WHETHER A PARTY'S CLAIM AGAINST THE OTHER PARTY IS BASED IN
CONTRACT (INCLUDING CONTRACT TERMINATION), INDEMNITY, WARRANTY, TORT (INCLUDING
NEGLIGENCE), STRICT LIABILITY OR OTHERWISE THIS MUTUAL WAIVER INCLUDES, BUT IS NOT
LIMITED TO, RENTAL EXPENSES, LOSS OF USE, LOSS OF PRODUCTION, LOSS OF INCOME, LOSS
OF PROFIT (EXCEPT PROFIT ARISING DIRECTLY FROM THE SERVICES), LOSS OF FINANCING,
LOSS OF BUSINESS, AND LOSS OF REPUTATION

TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW, EXCEPT FOR (A) CLAIMS COVERED BY
INSURANCE, FOR WHICH CONSULTANT'S TOTAL AGGREGATE LIABILITY UNDER THIS AGREEMENT
SHALL BE LIMITED TO THE PROCEEDS OF APPLICABLE INSURANCE UP TO THE SPECIFIC LIMITS
OF SUCH INSURANCE SET FORTH IN THIS AGREEMENT, AND (B) THIRD PARTY INDEMNITY CLAIMS
FOR BODILY INJURY, DISEASE, OR DEATH, THE TOTAL LIABILITY IN THE AGGREGATE OF
CONSULTANT AND ITS EMPLOYEES, SUBCONTRACTORS, OR SUPPLIERS TO CLIENT AND ANYONE
CLAIMING BY, THROUGH OR UNDER CLIENT, ON ALL CLAIMS OF ANY KIND ARISING OUT OF OR IN
ANY WAY RELATED TO CONSULTANT'S SERVICES UNDER THE PROPOSAL, FROM ANY CAUSE OR
CAUSES WHATSOEVER, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, NEGLIGENCE, ERRORS, OMISSIONS,
STRICT LIABILITY, INDEMNITY, OR BREACH OF CONTRACT, WILL NOT EXCEED THE GREATER OF
$50,000 OR THE COMPENSATION RECEIVED BY CONSULTANT UNDER THE PROPOSAL. ALL SUCH
LIABILITY WILL TERMINATE UPON THE EXPIRATION OF THE CORRECTION PERIOD SPECIFIED IN
ARTICLE 6. THIS ARTICLE SETS FORTH CONSULTANT'S SOLE LIABILITY AND ENTIRE OBLIGATION
AND CLIENT'S EXCLUSIVE REMEDY FOR ANY ACTION BROUGHT AGAINST CONSULTANT

IF CONSULTANT FURNISHES CLIENT WITH ADVICE OR ASSISTANCE CONCERNING ANY
PRODUCTS, SYSTEMS OR SERVICES WHICH IS NOT REQUIRED UNDER THE SERVICES OR ANY
OTHER CONTRACT AMONG THE PARTIES, THE FURNISHING OF SUCH ADVICE OR ASSISTANCE
WILL NOT SUBJECT CONSULTANT TO ANY LIABILITY WHETHER IN CONTRACT, INDEMNITY,
WARRANTY, TORT (INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE), STRICT LIABILITY OR OTHERWISE.

12. Ownership of Documents

All original documents, reports, and materials including, without limitation, plans, drawings and specifications
("Dellverables") produced and delivered by the Consultant (or Consultant's subcontractors) to Client during
the term of and pursuant to this Agreement are instruments of service in respect of the project and shall
become the property of Client upon payment therefor However, this ownership shall not include any
ownership interest in the Consultant's preexisting information including, but not limited to, computer
programs, software, models, patents, patents pending, standard figures, details or specifications or the

12/09/24 I Proposal No. 634179.9990
TRC - Madison, Wisconsin

MDN/643179

6 >Tc



GRAEF Proposal for Trail Construction Documentation and Soil Sampling
116th Street Trail, City of Franklin

Consultant's or the licensed professional's seal, stamp, or certification Client may use said documents and
make and retain copies for information and reference in connection with the use and occupancy of the
project by Client and others; however, such documents are not intended or represented to be suitable for
reuse or modification by Client or others on extensions of the same project or on any other project Any
reuse or modification without written verification or adaptation by Consultant and Consultant's
subcontractors, as appropriate, other than for the specific purpose contemplated under this Agreement will
be at Client's sole risk and without liability or legal exposure to Consultant, or to Consultant's subcontractors.
Distribution or submission to meet official regulatory requirements or for other such purposes in connection
with the project 1s not to be construed as an act in derogation of Consultant's rights under this provision or
Agreement. Additionally, if Consultant provides any documents, reports, or materials including, without
limitation, plans drawings and specifications in both hard copy and on electronic media, then in all
circumstances the hard copy of any such document, report, and material including, without limitation, plans,
drawings, and specifications shall control in the event of any conflict or discrepancies between the hard copy
and the electronic media copy

Any report prepared as part of the Services will be prepared solely for use of the Client Third parties are not
to rely on the report unless both Consultant and Client consent in writing to such reliance Consultant may
assess a charge in connection with documenting such consent

13. Safety

Consultant commits to providing a safe and healthy work environment for its personnel and will require the
same of its subcontractors Consultant will not have any responsibility for overall job safety at the Project
Site If Consultant determines that its field personnel are unable to access required locations or perform
required Services tn conformance with applicable safety standards, Consultant may suspend performance
until its personnel can safely perform their Services Consultant will promptly provide Client with written
notice of the location and nature of the unsafe conditions If Client fails to provide safe access within a
reasonable time, Consultant may terminate its performance in accordance with Article 14 Neither the
Services rendered by Consultant nor the presence of Consultant's employees or subcontractors at the site
shall imply that Consultant has responsibility for any activ1t1es performed by personnel other than
Consultant's employees or subcontractors

Client shall inform Consultant of applicable site safety procedures and regulations known to Client as well as
any special safety concerns or dangerous conditions at the site Consultant shall adhere to such procedures
and regulations once written notice thereof has been given by Client

14. Termination

Either Party may terminate this Agreement by written notice given to the other Party at least thirty (30) days
prior to the effective date of such termination for cause or for convenience. If such termination occurs, and
Consultant is not in breach, Client shall pay Consultant all undisputed sums due to Consultant for Services
rendered and expenses incurred to the date of termination as well as reasonable cost for· (i) demobilization,
(11) non-cancellable commitments, and (u) reasonable Services provided to effectuate a professional and
timely project termination If either Party seeks to terminate the Agreement due to an alleged breach, the
non-breaching Party will provide the alleged breaching Party with notice and gve five (5) days to submit a
plan to cure such alleged breach and the Parties will expeditiously work to resolve the issue If the
termination ls the result of Consultant's breach which has not been cured in a reasonable time frame, prior to
paying Consultant, Client will be entitled to offset its reasonable, direct, documented losses to the extent
caused by Consultant's breach lf the suspension or termination is the result of Client's breach, in addition to
all other compensation to which Consultant is entitled, Consultant will be entitled to receive payment for its
reasonable, direct, documented losses to the extent caused by Ghent's breach

12/09/24 I Proposal No. 634179.9990
TRC - Madison, Wisconsin
MDN/643179

7



GRAEF Proposal for Trail Construction Documentation and Soil Sampling
116th Street Trail, City of Franklin

15. Dispute Resolution

The Parties will attempt in good faith to resolve any dispute, controversy, or claim arising out of or relating to
the project or the Agreement or the breach thereof ("Dispute") promptly by negotiation When either Party
determines it has exhausted its efforts to resolve a Dispute at the Project level, that Party may provide
written notice to the other Party of the Dispute. Within 15 days after the date of such notice, executlves of
both Parties who have authority to agree to a settlement of the Dispute and who are at a higher level of
management than the persons with direct responsibility for administration of this Agreement will meet at a
mutually acceptable time and place (or, otherwise, at the Project Site), and thereafter as often as they
reasonably deem necessary, to attempt to resolve the Dispute All negotiations pursuant to this subsection
are confidential and will be treated as compromise and settlement negotiations for purposes of applicable
rules of evidence.

This Agreement, and any act or transactions to which they will apply, or which are contemplated hereby or
hereunder, will be governed by, and construed and interpreted in accordance with, the laws of the state
where the Project is located and the federal laws applicable therein without reference or giving effect to the
conflicts of law or choice of law principles thereof This choice of law expressly includes the applicable
statutes of limitation. To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Parties hereby irrevocably submit to the
exclusive jurisdiction of the courts in Hartford, Connecticut and acknowledge their competence and the
convenience and propriety of the venue and agree to be bound by any judgment thereof and not to seek, and
hereby waive, review of its merits by the courts of any other junsdicton.

EACH PARTY ACKNOWLEDGES AND AGREES THAT ANY DISPUTE IS LIKELY TO INVOLVE
COMPLICATED AND DIFFICULT ISSUES THAT MAKE A JURY DETERMINATION NEITHER DESIRABLE
NOR APPROPRIATE AND, THEREFORE, TO THE EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW, EACH PARTY
IRREVOCABLY AND UNCONDITIONALLY WAIVES ANY RIGHT IT MAY HAVE TO A TRIAL BY JURY IN
REGARD TO ANY CONTRACT, TORT, OR STATUTORY CLAIM, COUNTERCLAIM, OR CROSS-CLAIM
AGAINST THE OTHER ARISING OUT OF OR RELATING TO THE PROJECT OR THIS AGREEMENT

16. Litigation Support

At the request of Client, Consultant agrees to provide testimony and other evidence in any litigation, hearings
or proceedings to which Client is or becomes a party m connection with the work performed under this
Agreement. Client agrees to compensate Consultant at its then current rates for its time and other costs in
connection with such evidence or testimony Similarly, if Consultant is compelled by legal process to provide
testimony or produce documents or other evidence in connection with work performed, Consultant agrees to
contact Client and cooperate with Client and Client's counsel. Client agrees to compensate Consultant at its
then current rates for its time and expense in connection with such testimony, document production or other
evidentiary production. For avoidance of doubt, this provision is not intended to apply to Disputes arising out
of this Agreement

17. Disposal of Contaminated Materials

It is understood and agreed that Consultant is not, and has no responsibility as, a generator, operator,
owner, treater, arranger, or storer of any substances, materials or wastes (hazardous or non-hazardous)
found or identified at work sites including drilling and cutting fluids and other samples Ownership of all
samples obtained by Consultant from the site for Services shall be mamtamed by Client Consultant will store
such samples in a professional manner for the period of time necessary to complete the Services Upon
completion of the Services, Consultant will return any unused samples or portions thereof to Client or, at
Client's option using a manifest signed by Client as generator, dispose of the samples in a lawful manner
and bill Client for the costs related thereto.

12/09/24 ] Proposal No. 634179.9990
TRC - Madison, Wisconsin

MDN/643179

8



GRAEF Proposal for Trail Construction Documentation and Soil Sampling
116th Street Trail, City of Franklin

Before any substances, materials or wastes are removed from the site, Client will sign manifests naming
Client as the generator of the waste (or, If Client is not the generator, Client will arrange for the generator to
sign). Client will select the treatment or disposal facility to which any waste is taken Consultant shall not
directly or indirectly assume title to such substances or wastes and shall not be liable to third parties alleging
that Consultant has or had title to such materials Consultant will not have responsibility for or control of the
site or of operations or activities at the site other than its own and those of its agents or subcontractors
Consultant will not undertake, arrange for or control the handling, treatment, storage, removal, shipment,
transportation or disposal of any wastes or contaminated materials at or removed from the site, other than
any laboratory samples it collects or tests. Client will indemnify and hold harmless Consultant from and
against all losses, damages, costs and expenses, including but not limited to attorneys' fees, resulting from
its performance of the Services and arising or resulting from actions brought by third parties alleging or
identifying Consultant as a generator, operator, storer, treater, arranger or owner of pre-existing substances
or wastes found or identified at work sites. Client shall pay all costs and expenses associated with the
collection, storage, transport and disposal of samples and wastes, unless otherwise set forth in the Proposal.

18. Environmental or Subsurface Risks

Client and Consultant acknowledge that, prior to the start of this Agreement, Consultant has not generated,
handled, stored, treated, transported, disposed of, or in any way taken responsibility for any substances,
materials or wastes (hazardous or non-hazardous) that may be found at the site. Further, Client and
Consultant acknowledge that the Services undertaken pursuant to this Agreement, including any subsurface
activities, entail uncertainty and risk of injury or damage and that Consultant has not been retained to serve
as insurer of the site conditions to the Client, third parties or the public Client releases Consultant from any
claims for damages resulting from or arising out of the preexisting environmental conditions at or associated
with the site for Services, which condition was not directly caused by and/or did not result from any negligent
act or omission of Consultant, or a subcontractor to Consultant, their representatives, agents, employees and
invitees

Subsurface sampling may result in unavoidable contamination of certain subsurface areas, as when a probe
or boring is advanced or drilled through a contaminated area, into a clean soil or a water-bearing zone
Because of the risks posed by such Services, the Client hereby agrees to waive all claims against Consultant
that in any way arise out of subsurface sampling, including claims relating to cross-contamination

Client recognizes the inherent nsks connected with construction activities, geotechnical investigations,
environmental investigations, and assessments. Client also recognizes that actual conditions at the site may
vary from those observed by Consultant when performing the Services Client specifically acknowledges and
agrees that the interpretations and recommendations of Consultant are based on information actually
reviewed and conditions actually observed by Consultant Consultant shall not be responsible for the validity
or accuracy of data collected by others or interpretations made by others

If mn the performance of Services, Consultant encounters unanticipated environmental risks or conditions
then an amendment to the Proposal will be provided. Client acknowledges that discovery of such
unanticipated environmental risks also may require Consultant to take immediate measures to protect health
and safety and/or report such discovery as may be required by Law Client authorizes Consultant to take all
measures Consultant reasonably believes to be required under Law and/or immediately necessary to protect
Consultant, Client and the public. Further, Client shall compensate Consultant for all reasonable costs
associated with such actions.

19. Notice

All notices to either Party by the other shall be deemed to have been sufficiently given when made in writing
and delivered in person, by facsimile, certified mail or courier to the address of the respective Party or to

12/09/24 I Proposal No. 634179.9990
TRC - Madison, Wisconsin

MDN/643179

9



GRAEF Proposal for Trail Construction Documentation and Soil Sampling
116th Street Trail, City of Franklin

such other address as such Party may designate by providing notice as set forth herein Either Party may
change their address effective ten (10) days after written notice thereof to the other Party

20. Assignment

Except as otherwise agreed to in writing by both Parties, this Agreement will not be assigned by either Party,
either voluntarily, involuntarily, or by operation of law. Consent will not be unreasonably withheld,
conditioned, or delayed, provided that as a condition of any such written consent, such assignment will be
subject to the terms and conditions herein and no greater rights or remedies will be available to the assignee

21. Non-Solicitation

Each Party agrees that during the term of this Agreement and for a period of twelve (12) months following
any termination of this Agreement, directly or indirectly sohc1t for employment or hire any employee of the
other Party or its affiliates or subsidiaries Nothing herein shall be deemed to proh1b1t either Party from
conducting generalized solicitations or generalized advertisements for employment or hiring any employee of
the other Party who has responded to a generalized solicitation or generalized advertisement for
employment

22. Controlling Agreement

This Agreement and the Proposal embody the entire and integrated agreement and understanding between
the Parties pertaining to the subject matter of the Proposal, and supersedes all prior or contemporaneous
discussions, promises, agreements, understandings, negotiations, representations and communications
whether oral or written, of the Parties, pertaining to that subject matter Any additional or different terms and
conditions proposed by Client are objected to and will not be binding upon Consultant unless specifically
agreed to in writing by Consultant This Agreement may be amended or modified only by a written
amendment signed by both Parties. Client acknowledges and agrees that it has received and reviewed these
Terms and Conditions and that any rule of construction to the effect that ambiguities are to be resolved
against the drafting party shall not apply to the interpretation of this Agreement

If any term contained hereunder is declared invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, such declaration will
not affect the validity of any other of its terms The failure of either Party to exercise its rights under this
Agreement will not constitute a waver or forferture of such right The captions of the articles and sections In
this Agreement are intended solely for the convenience of reference and will not define, limit, or affect in any
way the provisions, terms, and conditions hereof or their interpretation

12/09/241 Proposal No. 634179.9990
TRC - Madison, Wisconsin
MDN/643179

10 >TC



APPROVAL

REPORTS &

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

A Resolution Confirming the Appointment of
Michael N. Paulos as City Engineer

MEETING DATE

2/4/2025

ITEM NUMBER

RECOMMENDATIONS
The Mayor requests the confirmation of Michael N. Paulos, PE, CDT, LEED AP, as City Engineer for the
City of Franklin, effective February 5, 2025, as outlined in the attached resolution.

The City of Franklin has worked extensively with Graef-USA, Inc., where Michael N. Paulos serves as
Principal Engineer and Municipal Market Area Leader. Mike has demonstrated a strong commitment to
municipal engineering, infrastructure planning, and community development throughout his career. His
expertise in water distribution, sanitary sewer, stormwater management, roadway design, and site
development has been instrumental in shaping Franklin's growth and sustainability.

His appointment as City Engineer will ensure the continuity of infrastructure projects, maintain regulatory
compliance, and support long-term strategic planning for Franklin.

QUALIFICATIONS OF MICHAEL N. PAULOS
• Education: B.S., Civil Engineering (Cum Laude), Michigan Technological University

• Professional Engineer (PE) License: Wisconsin

• Certifications:
o LEED Accredited Professional (Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design)
o Construction Documents Technologist (CDT)- The Construction Specifications Institute

• Professional Affiliations:
o American Society of Civil Engineers (ASCE)
o American Public Works Association (APWA)
o Wisconsin Rural Water Association (WRWA)
o Wisconsin Water Association (WIAWWA)

FRANKLIN-SPECIFIC PROJECT EXPERIENCE
Michael N. Paulos has led significant infrastructure projects in Franklin, contributing directly to water,
wastewater, stormwater, roadway improvements, and public works facilities. His work includes:

Water & Wastewater Infrastructure
• Over 100,000 linear feet of water main designed and implemented in Franklin
• Over 100,000 linear feet of sanitary sewer projects managed within the city
• Franklin Water and Wastewater Facility Expansion from 3,500 sq. ft. to over 20,000 sq. ft.,

addressing storage, administration, and vehicle maintenance needs.

Stormwater & Park Development
• Franklin Woods Park/Kayla's Playground - Managed stormwater, sanitary and water main extensions,

restroom facilities, and ADA-accessible infrastructure.



• Pleasant View Park - Led a significant park development project's grading, stormwater management,
parking, and utility mfrastructure

Roadway & Trail Expansion
• South 31st Street & Rawson Avenue Signals - Led roadway extension, stormwater management, and

traffic signal improvements
• West Drexel Avenue Reconstruct1on - Oversaw the transition of a two-lane rural road to a four-lane

urban divided roadway, mtegrating stormwater management, street lighting, and landscaping.
• 116th Street Trail Development & Puetz Pathway - Engmeered and managed the expansion of

pedestrian and cyclmg pathways.

Public Works & Utility Expansion
• City of Franklm DPW Expansion & Utilities - Oversaw the design and implementation of utility

expansions and facility improvements.

SUMMARY OF BROADER EXPERIENCE
Beyond Franklin, Michael N. Paulos has been a mumcipal engineer for multiple Wisconsin communities. His
work spans:

• Mum1c1pal Engineering Leadership - Serving as City Engineer for Muskego since 2016, overseeing
annual road programs, utlty projects, and private development reviews

• Major Publc Works Fac1lites -- Managed planning, des1gn, and construction of Germantown, Hales
Corners, and St. Francs municipal buildings.

• Extensive Water System Modeling- Led distribution system studies, fire flow assessments, and
hydraulic modeling for cities like Wauwatosa and Jackson, WI.

• Large-Scale Road & Utility Design Designed Wisconsin DOT projects, urban roadway
reconstructions, and stormwater mitigation systems in Greenfield, Oak Creek, and Wauwatosa

BENEFITS OF APPOINTING MICHAEL N. PAULOS
• Institutional Knowledge & Contmmty - As a long-time engineering consultant for Franklin, Mike is

already deeply familiar with the city's infrastructure needs and regulatory landscape.
• Cost-Effective & Efficient Hus experience with Franklin-specific projects ensures a seamless

transition, avoiding delays and reducing dependence on external consultants
• Commitment to Sustainability & Innovation- Mike's LEED accreditation and expertise in water

system modelmg, stormwater management, and roadway design align with Franklin's long-term
sustamabihty mitiatives

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion to adopt Resolution No. 2025- A Resolution Confirming the Appointment of Michael N.
Paulos as City Engineer

DOA - KH



STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN: MILWAUKEE COUNTY

RESOLUTION NO 2025-

A RESOLUTION CONFIRMING THE APPOINTMENT OF MICHAEL N PAULOS AS CITY
ENGINEER

WHEREAS, the City of Franklm has determmed the need for a City Engineer to oversee
mun1cipal engineering projects, infrastructure planning, and regulatory complance; and

WHEREAS, the Mayor has appointed Michael N. Paulos as City Engineer, subject to
confirmation by the Common Council; and

WHEREAS, Michael N Paulos brmgs over 30 years of engineering experience, having
successfully managed pubhc works projects, water system modeling, stormwater management,
and road design for multiple municipal1ties; and

WHEREAS, Michael N. Paulos has contributed significantly to Franklin's infrastructure,
mcluding water main and sanitary sewer expans10ns, stormwater management, roadway
development, park facility design; and

WHEREAS, the Common Council has determined that Michael N. Paulos possesses the
necessary qualifications, expertise, and leadership skulls to serve as City Engineer for the City of
Franklin;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, The Common Council of the City of Franklm
confirms the appomtment of Michael N Paulos as City Engineer, effective February 5, 2025.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the appomtment shall be in accordance with City
policies and the Master Services Agreement with Graef that the Common Council approved at
the January 21, 2025, meeting and shall mamtam all reqmred engineering licensure necessary for
the position.

Introduced at a regular meetmg of the Common Council of the City of Franklm on this
4th day of February 2025 by Alderperson

Passed and adopted by the Common Council of the City of Franklm this 4th day of
February 2025

APPROVED·

John R Nelson, Mayor

ATTEST

Shurley J. Roberts, City Clerk
AYES NOES ABSENT



City ofFranklin, WI
Friday, January 31, 2025

Chapter 55. Officers and Employees

Article I. General Provisions

§ 55-1. City officials; unclassified service.

[Amended 1-6-1998 by Ord. No. 98-1483; 6-2-1998 by Ord. No. 98-1501; 5-4-1999 by Ord. No. 99
1548; 5-18-1999 by Ord. No. 99-1549; 6-30-1999 by Ord. No. 99-1562]
City officials, unclassified service, shall be as follows:

Official Method of Selection Term
Mayor Elected in even-numbered years 3 years
[Amended 7-13-1999 by Ord.
No. 99-1567'h
6 Aldermen 3 elected each year 3 years
[Amended 7-15-1999 by Ord.
No. 99-15672l
Municipal Judge Elected (terms commencing in 4 years
[Amended 11-1-2011 by Ord. 2000)
No. 2011-2060]
City Attorney Mayor, subject to confirmation by Indefinite (removal by three-

majority of all members of Council fourths vote of all members of
Council)

Director of Administration Mayor, subject to confirmation by Indefinite (removal by three-
majority of all members of Council fourths vote of all members of

Council)

City Clerk("l Mayor, subject to confirmation by Indefinite (removal by three-
majority of all members of Council fourths- vote of all members of

Council)
Director of Health and Human Mayor, subject to confirmation by Indefinite (removal by three-
Services majority of all members of Council fourths- vote of all members of

Council)
Santtaran Mayor, subject to confirmation by Indefinite (removal by three-

majority of all members of Council fourths- vote of all members of
Council)

Civil Defense Director Mayor, subject to confirmation by Indefinite (removal by three-
majority of all members of Council fourths- vote of all members of

Council)

Weed Commissioner!fl Mayor, subject to confirmation by 1 year
mayonty of all members of Council

Building Inspector Mayor, subject to confirmation by Indefinite (removal by three-
majority of all members of Council fourths- vote of all members of

Council)



Mayor, subject to confirmation by Indefinite (removal by three-
majonty of all members of Council fourths- vote of all members of

Council)

Official
City Engineer
[Amended 5-21-2024 by Ord.
No. 2024-2619]

Method of Selection Term

City Assessor Mayor, subject to confirmation by Indefinite (removal by three-
[Added 1-23-2001 by Ord. No. majority of all members of Council fourths- vote of all members of
2001-1633] Council)
Planning Manager Director of Administration, subject
[Added 8-14-2001 by Ord. No. to confirmation by majority of all
2001-1671] members of Council
Community Development
DIrector
[Added 12-18-2001 by Ord.
No. 2001-1692]

Mayor, subject to confirmation by
mayonty of all members of Council

Indefinite (removal by three
fourths- vote of all members of
Council
Indefinite (removal by three
fourths- vote of all members of
Council)

Mayor, subject to confirmation by Indefinite (removal by three-
majonty of all members of Council fourths- vote of all members of

Council)

[4]

[3]

[2]

Director of Finance and
Treasurer
[Added 5-18-2004 by Ord. No.
2004-1797]
[1] Editor's Note This ordmance was approved by the electors at a referendum held 4-6-1999. ThIs

ordinance increased the term of office of the Mayor commencing on the third Tuesday in April
immediately following the spring election in 2002. A complete copy of this ordinance is included in Ch.
A254, Charter Ordinances.
Editor's Note This ordinance was approved by the electors at a referendum held 4-6-1999. This
ordinance increased the term of office of the Aldermen commencing on the third Tuesday in April
immediately followmg the spring election mn 2002 for the District 3, District 4 and District 6 aldermamc
positions subject to such election; commencing on the third Tuesday in April immediately following the
spring election in 2001 for the District 1, District 2 and District 5 aldermanic positions subject to such
election. A complete copy of this ordinance is included in Ch A254, Charter Ordinances
Editor's Note: Former entnes regarding the Treasurer and the Finance Officer, as amended 8-8-2000 by
Ord. No. 2000-1611, which immediately followed this entry, were repealed 5-18-2004 by Ord No. 2004
1797. Pursuant to Ord. No. 2004-1797, these positions were consolidated to become the Director of
Finance and Treasurer.
Editor's Note: Former entries regarding the City Plannmg and Zoning Administrator and the Assistant
Planning and Zonmg Administrator, which immediately followed this entry, were repealed 8-14-2001 by
Ord. No 2001-1673 and Ord. No 2001-1672, respectively. The entry for Human Resources Coordinator,
which immediately followed thus entry, was repealed 8-9-2005 by Ord. No. 2005-1847.



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

MEETING
DATE

2/4/2025

REPORTS & Resolution authorizing certain officials to
accept a conservation easement for and as part

RECOMMENDATIONS of the approval of a Certified Survey Map and
Natural Resource Special Exception upon

properties located at 6311 and 6341 South 27th
Street and 2821 West College Avenue (College

Avenue Associates, applicant)

ITEM NUMBER

Aid. Dist. #3

City Development staff recommends approval of the attached resolution to accept a
conservation easement for and as part of the approval of a Certified Survey Map and
Natural Resource Special Exception upon property located at 631 I and 6341 South
27th Street and 2821 West College Avenue.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

A motion to adopt Resolution No. 2025-__, authorizing certain officials to accept
a conservation easement for and as part of the approval of a Certified Survey Map and
Natural Resource Special Exception upon properties located at 6311 and 6341 South
27th Street and 2821 West College Avenue (College Avenue Associates, LCC,
applicant).

Department of City Development: NJF



STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-

MILWAUKEE COUNTY

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CERTAIN OFFICIALS TO ACCEPT A
CONSERVATION EASEMENT FOR AND AS PART OF THE APPROVAL OF A

CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP AND NATURAL RESOURCE SPECIAL EXCEPTION
UPON PROPERTIES LOCATED AT 6311 AND 6341 SOUTH 27TH STREET AND 2821

WEST COLLEGE AVENUE (COLLEGE AVENUE AS SOCIATES, LLC, APPLICANT)

WHEREAS, the Common Council having approved a Certified Survey Map and
Natural Resource Special Exception upon the application of Ted Balistreri, College Avenue
Associates, LLC, on September 3, 2024, and the Plan Commission having conditioned
approval thereof in part upon Common Council approval of a Conservation Easement to
protect on-site wetland, wetland buffer, and young woodlands; and

WHEREAS, §15-4.0102K, §15-7.0201H., and §15-9.0309E. of the Unified
Development Ordinance requires the submission of a Conservation Easement and Natural
Resource Protection Plan in the land division review process and the Unified Development
Ordinance requires conservation easements to be imposed for natural resource features
identified within such Plan to protect such features, all as part of the approval process for a
Certified Survey Map; and

WHEREAS, the City Engineering Department, Department of City Development and
the Office of the City Attorney having reviewed the proposed Conservation Easement and
having recommended approval thereof to the Common Council.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Common Council of
the City of Franklin, Wisconsin, that the Conservation Easement submitted by Ted Balistreri,
College Avenue Associates, LLC, in the form and content as annexed hereto, be and the
same is hereby approved, subject to review and approval by the Department of City
Development and technical corrections by the City Attorney; and the Mayor and City Clerk
are hereby authorized to execute such Easement as evidence of the consent to and acceptance
of such easement by the City of Franklin.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Clerk be and the same is hereby
directed to obtain the recording of the Conservation Easement in the Office of the Register of
Deeds for Milwaukee County, Wisconsin.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
4th day of February, 2025.

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of
Franklin this 4th day of February, 2025.



A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CERTAIN OFFICIALS TO ACCEPT A
CONSERVATION EASEMENT
TED BALISTRERI, COLLEGE AVENUE ASSOCIATES, LLC
RESOLUTION NO. 2024-
PAGE 2

APPROVED:

John R. Nelson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Shirley J. Roberts, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT-- -- --



CONSERVATION EASEMENT

Thus Conservation Easement 1s made by and between the Cty ofFranklin, a municipal corporation of the State of
Wisconsin, hereinafter referred to as "Grantee," and College Avenue Assoc1ates, LLC, a Wisconsin l1muted lab1l1ty company,
heremafter referred to as "Grantor," and shall become effective upon the recordmg of this Grant of Conservation Easement,
together with the Acceptance following, wth the Office of the Register of Deeds for Milwaukee County, pursuant to $
700 40(2)(b) of the W1sconsm Statutes

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, Grantor 1s the owner in fee simple of certam real property, located within the City of Franklm,
MIiwaukee County, Wisconsin, described m Exh1b1t A attached hereto and hereby made a part hereof (protected property),
and

WHEREAS, the Grantor desires and mntends that the natural elements and the ecological and aesthetic values of the
protected property mcludmg, without lnmtatlon, wetlands, wetland buffer and young woodland as such on the Natural
Resource Protection Plan revised July 27, 2024 and prepared by JSD Profess1onal Services, Inc (JSD), whch Plan 1s on file
111 the office of the City of Frankhn Department of City Development, be preserved and mamtamed by the contmuat1on of
land use that will not mterfere with or substantially disrupt the natural elements or the workmgs ofnatural systems, and

WHEREAS, Grantee Is a "holder", as contemplated by§ 700 40(l)(b)l. of the Wisconsin Statutes, whose purposes
mclude, while exerc1smg regulatory authority granted to 1t, nter aha, under § 62.23 and § 236.45 of the Wisconsin Statutes,
the conservation of land, natural areas, open space and water areas, and

WHEREAS, the Grantor and Grantee, by the conveyance to the Grantee of the conservation easement on, over and
across the protected property, desire to conserve the natural values thereof and prevent the use or development of the
protected property for any purpose or many manner mcons1stent With the terms ofth1s conservation easement, and

WHEREAS, the Grantee 1s willmg to accept this conservat10n easement subJect to the reservations and to the
covenants, terms, cond1tions and restrict10ns set out herem and imposed hereby;

NOW, THEREFORE, the Grantor, for and m consideration ofthe foregomg rec1tat10ns and of the mutual covenants,
terms, cond1tions, and restnct1ons subsequently contamed, and as an absolute and uncond1tional ded1cation, does hereby grant
and convey unto the Grantee a conservation easement m perpetuity on, over and across the protected property

Grantee's rights hereunder shall consist solely ofthe following
I To view the protected property m its natural, scenic, and open condition,
2 To enforce by proceedmg at law or mn equuty the covenants subsequently set forth, mcludmg, and 111 addition to all other

enforcement proceedmgs, proceedings to obtam all penalties and remedies set forth under D1v1s1on 15-9 0500 of the
Unified Development Ordmance of the City of Franklm, as amended from time to time, any v10lat10n of the covenants
subsequently set forth bemg and constrtutmg a violation of such Unified Development Ordinance, as amended from time
to time, or such local applicable ordmance as may be later adopted or m effect to enforce such covenants or the purposes
for which they are made, 1t bemng agreed that there shall be no waiver or forfeiture of the Grantee's rght to msure
complance with the covenants and conditions ofthus grant by reason ofany prior falure to act, and

3 To enter the protected property at all reasonable times for the purpose ofmspectmg the protected property to determme 1f
the Grantor 1s complymg with the covenants and conditions ofthus grant

And m furtherance of the foregoing affirmatrve rghts of the Grantee, the Grantor makes the followmg covenants which shall
run with and bmnd the protected property m perpetuity, namely, that, on, over or across the protected property, the Grantor,
without the pnor consent ofthe Grantee, shall not
1 Construct or place buldmngs or any structure,
2 Construct or make any improvements, unless, notw1thstandmg Covenant 1 above, the improvement 1s specifically and

previously approved by the Common Council ofthe City ofFranklin, upon the advice ofsuch other persons, entrtes, and
agencies as 1t may elect, such improvements as may be so approved bemg mtended to enhance the resource value of the
protected property to the environment or the public and mncludmng, but not l1muted to animal and bird feeding stat1ons,



park benches, the removal ofanimal blockage ofnatural dramage or other occurring blockage ofnatural drainage, and the
hke,

3. Excavate, dredge, grade, mmne, drll or change the topography of the land or its natural condition 111 any manner,
mcluding any cutting or removal ofvegetation, except for the removal ofdead or diseased trees,

4 Conduct any filling, dumpmg, or depositmg of any material whatsoever, mcludmg, but not lmrted to sod, yard waste or
other landscape matenals, ashes, garbage, or debns,

5 Plant any vegetation not native to the protected property or not typical wetland vegetation,
6 Operate snowmobiles, dune buggies, motorcycles, all-terram vehicles or any other types ofmotonzed vehicles.

To have and to hold this conservation easement unto the Grantee forever Except as expressly lumuted herein, the Grantor
reserves all rights as owner of the protected property, mcludmng, but not limited to, the nght to use the protected property for
all purposes not inconsistent with this grant Grantor shall be responsible for the payment ofall general property taxes levied,
assessed or accruing agamst the protected property pursuant to law

The covenants, terms, conditions and restrictions set forth in this grant shall be bmdmg upon the Grantor and the Grantee and
their respective agents, personal representatrves, heirs, successors, and assigns, and shall constitute servitudes runnmng with
the protected property in perpetuity This grant may not be amended, except by a wrrtmng executed and delivered by Grantor
and Grantee or their respective personal representatives, heirs, successors, and ass1gns. Notices to the parties shall be
personally delivered or mailed by U.S Mail registered mad, return receipt requested, as follows

To Grantor
College Avenue Associates, LLC
Attn Theodore J Bahstren
W225 N3178 Duplamnvlle Road
Pewaukee, Wisconsin 53072

To Grantee
City ofFranklm
Office ofthe City Clerk
9229 West Loomis Road
Franklin, WIscons1 53132

In witness whereof, the Grantor has set its hand on this date ofFebruary,2025.

COLLEGE AVENUEASSOCIATES, LLC

By.
Theodore J Bahstren, Manager

STATE OF WISCONSIN )
) ss

COUNTY OF MILWAUKEE )

This mstrument was acknowledged before me on the day of,2025, by Theodore J Balistren, as
Manager of College Avenue Associates, LLC, a Wisconsm hm1ted hab1hty company, to me known to be the person who
executed the foregomg conservation easement and acknowledged the same as the voluntary act and deed of said College
Avenue Assoc1ates, LLC

Notary Pubhc

My comm1ss1on €XplrS

Acceptance

The undersigned does hereby consent to and accepts the Conservation Easement granted and conveyed to rt under and
pursuant to the foregoing Grant of Conservation Easement In consideration of the making of such Grant Of Conservat10n
Easement, the undersigned agrees that thus acceptance shall be bmndmng upon the undersigned and 1ts successors and ass1gns
and that the restnctions imposed upon the protected property may only be released or waived 111 wntmg by the Common
Councl ofthe City ofFranklin, as contemplated by $ 236 293 ofthe Wisconsmn Statutes

2



In witness whereof, the undersigned has executed and delivered this acceptance on the day of> 20_

CITY OF FRANKLIN

By
John R. Nelson, Mayor

By
Shurley J Roberts, Cty Clerk

STATE OF WISCONSIN )
) ss

COUNTY OF MILWAUKEE )

Personally came before me this day of> 2025, the above named John R. Nelson,
Mayor and Karen L Kastenson, City Clerk, of the above named mumc1pal corporation, City of Frankhn, to me known to be
such Mayor and City Clerk of sad munucmpal corporation, and acknowledged that they executed the foregomng instrument as
such officers as the Deed of said mumcipal corporat10n by its authonty and pursuant to Resolution No .
adopted by its Common Council on the day of,2025

Notary Public

My comm1ss1on exp1res

This mstrument was drafted by the City ofFranklm

Approved as to contents

Nicholas Fuchs
Associate Planner
Department of City Development

Approved as to form only

Jesse A Wesolowski
City Attorney

Date

Date

3



Exhibnt A

4



EXHIBIT A

JSD
COLLEGE AVE ASSOCIATES
W225N3178 DUPLAINVILLE RD
PEWAUKEE, WI 53072

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION
Legal Description

(Parcel Tax Key No. 714-9973-000)

The West 135.42 feet of the East 540.64 feet of the North 25 acres on the Northeast
Quarter (NE ¼) of Section 1, Township 5 North, Range 21 East, in the City of Franklin,
Milwaukee County, Wisconsin.

Excepting therefrom the North 55 feet taken for Highway purposes.



1
SHEET NUMBER:

SOUTHEAST CORNER
NORTHEAST 1/4
SECTION 1-5-21

SCALE IN FEET

P"
0 30'

DAlE:
9/09/2024

DRA\\tl BY:
SMN

PROJECT NUMBER:
18-8450

NOR1HEAST CORNER
-·-, NORTHEAST 1/4

1 SECTION 1--5-21
I

}
I <
I h
I , H-
t co, n
I l"'l <-.. d~---------- ~z
1 405.21' w
t 1E
1 to
I I l"'lLI..
1 oo
I rw
I Ozlco 5l ::i

H-y& u
JI() I w5

! P.O.B.

8.37

12.11

11.10

24.00'

22.07'

16.68'

SHEET TiltE:

CONSERVATION
EASEMENT
EXHIBIT

23.89'

22.00'

16.64'

CONSERVATION
EASEMENT
22,246 S.F.
0.5107 ACRES

--s48"45'44"W
5.50'

PARCEL TAX KEY NO
714-9973-00

CURVE TABLE

S48'54'01"E

S35'01'59"E

S66'02'42"E

CHORD BEARING CHORD ARC LENGTI-1 TANGENT LENGTH

PROJl::CT:
COLLEGE AVENUE
ASSOCIATES, LLC
W225N3178 DUPLAIN\IILLE RD
PEWAUKEE Wl 53072

DELTA

015'19'28"

018'57'54"

012'24'35"

S88"47'37"W 135.43'
SOUTH LINE OF THE NORTH 25 ACRESOF THE NE 1/4 OF SECTION 1

---------------------r---------------------

J,,.
I
I N88'44'45"E

31.73'

72.50'

82.50'

77.00'Cl

C3

C2

CURVE RADIUS

3SD
MILWAUKEE REGIONAL OFFICE
W238 1'!161C BUSSE ROAD, SUITE mo

WAUKESHA, WISCONSIN 53188
P. 282.513.0666

i

E



EXHIBIT B

JSD
COLLEGE AVE ASSOCIATES
W225N3178 DUPLAINVILLE RD
PEWAUKEE, WI 53072

CONSERVATION EASEMENT
Legal Description

Part of the Northeast 1/4 of the Northeast 1/4 of Section 01, Township 05 North, Range
21 East, in the city of Franklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin, bounded and described
as follows:

Commencing at the Northeast corner of Northeast 1/4 of said Section 1; thence
S00°16'38"W along the East line of the said Northeast 1/4 a distance of 238.03 feet;
thence S88°47'37"W 405.21 feet; thence S00°16'38"W, 54.56 feet to the Point of
Beginning of lands to be described; thence continuing S00°16'38"W 120.43 feet;
thence S88°47'37"W, 135.43 feet; thence N00°16'38"E 203.26 feet; thence
N88°44'45"E 31.73 feet to a point of curvature; thence Southeasterly 16.68 feet along
the arc of a 77 .00 foot radius curve to the left with a interior angle of 12°24'35" and a
chord bearing S35°01'59"E 16.64 feet; Thence S48°45'44"W, 5.50 feet to a point of
curvature; thence Southeasterly 22.07 feet along the arc of a 82.50 foot radius curve to
the left with an interior angle of 15°19'28" and a chord bearing S48°54'01"E 22.00 feet;
thence S56°33'45"E, 71.23 feet to a point of curvature; thence Southeasterly 24.00 feet
along the arc of a 72.50 foot radius curve to the left with an interior angle of 18°57'54"
and a chord bearing S66°02'42"E 23.89 feet to the Point of Beginning.

Containing 22,246 square feet or 0.5107 acres.



APPROVAL

REPORTS&

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE UNIFIED
DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE TEXT AT

TABLE 15-3.0603 STANDARD INDUSTRIAL
CLASSIFICATION TITLE NO. 7389

"BUSINESS SERVICES, NOT ELSEWHERE
CLASSIFIED" TO ALLOW SUCH USE AS A

PERMITTED USE IN THE B-3
COMMUNITY BUSINESS DISTRICT
(PRIME PACK, LLC, APPLICANT)

MEETING
DATE

02/04/2025

ITEM NUMBER

At its January 23, 2025 meeting the Plan Commission recommended approval of an
ordinance to amend the Unified Development Ordinance Text at Table 15-3.0603
Standard Industrial Classification Title No. 7389 "Business Services, Not Elsewhere
Classified" to allow such use as a permitted use in the B-3 Community Business
District.

The vote was 4-0-1, four "ayes", no "noes" and one absents.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

A motion to approve Ordinance No. 2025- an ordinance to amend the
Unified Development Ordinance Text at Table 15-3.0603 Standard Industrial
Classification Title No. 7389 "Business Services, Not Elsewhere Classified" to allow
such use as a permitted use in the B-3 Community Business District. (Prime Pack,
LLC, Applicant)



STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN

ORDINANCE NO. 2025

MIL WAUKEE COUNTY

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE TEXT
AT TABLE 15-3.0603 STANDARD INDUSTRIAL CLASSIFICATION TITLE NO. 7389

"BUSINESS SERVICES, NOT ELSEWHERE CLASSIFIED" TO ALLOW SUCH USE AS
A PERMITTED USE IN THE B-3 COMMUNITY BUSINESS DISTRICT

(PRIME PACK, LLC, APPLICANT)

WHEREAS, Table 15-3.0603 of the Unified Development Ordinance sets forth the
permitted and special uses in the nonresidential zoning districts; and

WHEREAS, Prime Pack, LCC having applied for a text amendment to Table 15
3.0603 to amend the Unified Development Ordinance text at Table 15-3.0603 Standard
Industrial Classification (SIC) Title No. 7389 "Business Services, Not Elsewhere Classified",
to allow for such use as a Permitted Use in the B-3 Community Business District.

WHEREAS, the Plan Commission having reviewed the proposed amendment to
change SIC Code No. 7389 "Business Services, Not Elsewhere Classified" to a Permitted
Use in the B-3 Community Business District, and having held a public hearing on the
proposal on the 23rd day of January, 2025 and thereafter having recommended approval of
such amendment; and

WHEREAS, the Common Council having accepted the recommendation of the Plan
Commission and having determined that the proposed amendment is consistent with the 2025
Comprehensive Master Plan of the City of Franklin, Wisconsin and will serve to further
orderly growth and development and promote the health, safety and welfare of the
Community.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Mayor and Common Council of the City of Franklin, Wisconsin,
do ordain as follows:

SECTION 1: Table 15-3.0603 of the Unified Development Ordinance of the
Municipal Code of the City of Franklin, Wisconsin, only as it pertains
to: Standard Industrial Classification Title No. 7389 "Business
Services, Not Elsewhere Classified", is hereby amended as follows:
insert "P" (Permitted Use) in the B-3 column

SECTION 2: The terms and provisions of this ordinance are severable. Should any
term or provision of this ordinance be found to be invalid by a court of
competent jurisdiction, the remaining terms and provisions shall remain
in full force and effect.



ORDINANCE NO. 2023
Page 2

SECTION 3: All ordinances and parts of ordinances in contravention to this
ordinance are hereby repealed.

SECTION 4: This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its
passage and publication.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
4th day of February, 2025.

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of
Franklin this 4th day of February, 2025.

APPROVED:

John R. Nelson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Shirley J. Roberts, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT--- --- ---



City of Franklin
Department of City Development

Date:
To:
From:
RE:

December 27, 2024
Christopher Smith, Von Briesen & Roper, S.C.; Prime Pack LLC
Department of City Development. Luke Hamill, Associate Planner.
Staff Comments, City-Wide UDO Text Amendment

Please be advised that city staff has reviewed the above application received on December
6, 2024, for a proposed UDO Text Amendment to change the Standard Industrial Code
7389 "Business Services, Not Elsewhere Classified" from a prohibited use, to a permitted
use within the B-3 Community Business District. The following comments are for your
review and consideration.

City Development Comments

Your public hearing is scheduled for the January 23, 2025 Plan Commission Meeting at 6:00 PM
at the Common Council Chambers at Franklin City Hall and the Final Decision at the February 4"
Common Council Meeting at the same location

Please provide 12 copies of your application materials to the City Development Window no later
than Monday, January 13, 2025 at 4:30 PM.



Item No. C.3
CITY OF FRANKLIN

REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION

Meeting of January 23, 2025

Unified Development Ordinance Text Amendment

RECOMMENDATION: City Development Staff recommends approval of the Unified
Development Ordinance application, subject to the staff recommended conditions of approval.

Project Name:

Project Address:

Applicant:

Agent:

Property Owner(s):

Current Zoning:

2025 Future Land Use:

Introduction:

Prime Pack LLC Unified Development Ordinance Text
Amendment

City-wide/7127 S. 76 Street

Prime Pack LLC.

Chris Smith, Von Briesen & Roper, S.C.

Franklin Village Properties, LLC

B-3 - Community Business District

Commercial

The applicant has filed a Unified Development Ordinance Text Amendment applications, to
locate and operate a packing supplies sales and ancillary shipping use (similar to a UPS Store) at
7127 $. 76 Street.

Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) Text Amendment
The UDO Text Amendment requests to allow Standard Industrial Classification No. 7389,
Business Services, Not Elsewhere Classified, as a Permitted Use in the B-3 Community Business
District. Currently this SIC Code is not allowed in B-3, but is a permitted use in B-1, B-2, and B-
4.

Note this would allow uses classified under this SIC Code as a Special Use for all B-3 District
zoned properties. SIC Code No. 7389 includes the following (applicants proposed use is
highlighted):

7389 Business Services, Not Elsewhere Classified
Establishments primarily engaged in furnishing business services, not elsewhere
classified, such as bondspersons, drafting services, lecture bureaus, notaries public, sign
painting, speakers' bureaus, water softening services, and auctioneering services, on a
commission or fee basis. Auctions of used cars and agricultural commodities, such as
livestock and produce, are classified in Wholesale Trade.

• Agents and brokers for authors and
nonperforming artist

• Apparel pressing service for the trade



• Appraisers, except real estate • Drawback service, customs
appraisers • Drive-a-way automobile service

• Arbitration and conciliation services • Embroidering of advertising on
• Artists' agents and brokers, except shirts, etc.

performing artists • Engrossing, e.g., diplomas and
• Auctioneering service on a resolutions

commission or fee basis • Exhibits, building of: by industrial
• Authors' agents and brokers contractors
• Automobile recovery service • Field warehousing, not public
• Automobile repossession service warehousing
• Automobile shows, flower shows, • Filling pressure containers (aerosol)

and home shows: promoters of with hair spray, insecticides, etc.
• Bartering services for businesses • Fire extinguishers, service of
• Batik work (handprinting on textiles) • Firefighting service, other than
• Bondspersons forestry or public
• Bottle exchanges • Flagging service (traffic control)
• Bronzing baby shoes • Floats, decoration of
• Business brokers (buying and selling • Florists' telegraph service

business enterprises) • Folding and refolding service: textile
• Charge account service (shopping and apparel

plates) collection by individual • Fundraising on a contract or fee basis
• Check validation service • Gas systems, contract conversion
• Cloth: cutting to length, bolting, or from manufactured to natural gas

winding for textile distributors • Handtool designers
• Contractors' disbursement control • Handwriting analysis
• Convention bureaus • Hosiery pairing on a contract or fee
• Convention decorators basis
• Copyright protection service • Hotel reservation service
• Correct time service • Identification engraving service
• Cosmetic kits, assembling and • Inspection of commodities, not

packaging connected with transportation
• Cotton inspection service, not • Interior decorating consulting

connected with transportation service, except painters and paper
• Cotton sampler service • Interior designing service, except
• Coupon redemption service, except painters and paper hangers

trading stamps • Inventory computing service
• Credit card service (collection by • Labeling bottles, cans, cartons, etc.

individual firms) for the trade: not printing
• Decoration service for special events • Laminating of photographs (coating
• Demonstration service, separate from photographs with plastics)

sale • Lecture bureaus
• Directories, telephone: distribution • Lettering service

on a contract or fee basis • Liquidators of merchandise on a
• Divers, commercial contract or fee basis
• Drafting service, except temporary • Mannequin decorating service

help • Map drafting service

2



• Mapmaking, including aerial • Safety inspection service, except
• Message service, telephone automotive

answering except beeper service • Salvaging of damaged merchandise,
• Metal slitting and shearing on a not engaged in sales

contract or fee basis • Sampling of commodities, not
• Meter readers, remote connected with transportation
• Microfilm recording and developing • Scrap steel cutting on a contract or

servIce fee basis
• Mounting merchandise on cards on a • Shoe designers

contract or fee basis • Showcard painting
• Music distribution systems, except • Shrinking textiles for tailors and

coin-operated dressmakers
• Notariespublic • Sign painting and lettering shops
• Packaging and labeling service (not • Solvents recovery service on a

packing and crating) contract or fee basis
• Paralegal service • Speakers' bureaus
• Parcel packing service (packaging) • Sponging textiles for tailors and
• Patent brokers dressmakers
• Patrol of electric transmission or gas • Styling of fashions, apparel,

lines furniture, and textiles
• Photogrammetric mapping service • Styling wigs for the trade

(not professional engineers) • Swimming pool cleaning and
• Photographic library service, still maintenance
• Photography brokers • Switchboard operation of private
• Pipeline and power line inspection branch exchanges

services • Tape slitting for the trade (cutting
• Playwrights' brokers plastics, leather, etc. into widths)
• Post office contract stations • Tax collection agencies: collecting
• Presorting mail service for a city, county, or State
• Press clipping service • Tax title dealers: agencies for city,
• Printed circuitry graphic layout county, or State
• Process serving service • Telemarketing (telephone marketing)
• Produce weighing service, not service on a contract or fee basis

connected with transportation • Telephone answering, except beeper
• Product sterilization service service
• Promoters of home shows and flower • Telephone solicitation service on a

shows contract or fee basis
• Racetrack cleaning, except buildings • Textile designers
• Radio broadcasting music checkers • Textile folding and packing services
• Radio transcription service • Time-share condominium exchanges
• Recording studios on a contract or • Tobacco sheeting service on a

fee basis contract or fee basis
• Redemption of trading stamps • Tourist information bureaus
• Repossession service • Trade show arrangement
• Restaurant reservation service • Trading stamp promotion and sale to
• Rug binding for the trade stores

3



• Trading stamp redemption
• Translation service
• Water softener service
• Weighing foods and other

commodities not connected with

• Welcoming service
• Window trimming service
• Yacht brokers

Project Description/Analysis:
The SIC Code 7389 is listed as a permitted use in the 8-1, 8-2, and B-4 business districts
respectively, but not the 8-3 district. All of these business zoning districts are relatively similar
in requirements and allowed uses.

The proposed UDO rewrite simplifies the use table, and the most recent draft proposes this use as
"General Service", which would be a permitted use in the subject property's new proposed
Zoning District, which is 8-R (Regional Business District).

Staff Recommendation:
City Development Staff recommends approval of the Unified Development Ordinance
application for Prime Pack LLC., subject to the staff recommended conditions of approval.

4



---~ -·-··
APPLICATION DATE:

Planning Department c 58 i 1'£9\' +±i ; ., •'
::•:;,,·.,-·

9229 West Loomis Road FranklinFranklin, Wisconsin 53132
(414) 425-4024 _.,
franklinwigo )·\/ I s (~ u i! ,:; J ti

COMMON COUNCIL REVIEW APPLICATION
---- PROJECT INFORMATION [print legibly]

APPLICANT [FULL LEGAL NAMES] APPLICANT IS REPRESENTED BY [CONTACT PERSON]
NAME: NAME: CHRIS SMITH

..
COMPANY: PRIME PACK LLC COMPANY: VON BRIESEN & ROPER, S.C.

MAILING ADDRESS: 3408 WWALNUT ST MAILING ADDRESS: 411 EWISCONSIN AVE STE 1000

CITY/STATE:
MILWAUKEE/ WI

ZIP:
53208

CITY/STATE: MILWAUKEE/ WI ZIP: 53202

PHONE: (414)) 578-0441 PHONE: (414) 287-1499

EMAIL ADDRESS: ADMIN@PARCELPOINTPLUS.COM EMAIL ADDRESS:
CHRISTOPHER.SMITH@VONBRIESEN.COM

PROJECT PROPERTY INFORMATION
··--

PROPERTYADDRESS: 7127 S. 76TH STREET TAX KEY NUMBER: 7550038001
·- -

PROPERTYOWNER: FRANKLIN VILLAGE PROPERTIES, LLC PHONE: (773) 412-3599

MAILING ADDRESS:
P.O. BOX 11097

EMAIL ADDRESS: FRANKLINVILLAGE111@GMAIL.COM

CITY/STATE:
SHOREWOOD/ WI

ZIP: DATE OF COMPLETION: (,;_•_ .. ,·;

53211
----·-

APPLICATION TYPE -·-··-· --
Please check the application type that you are applying for

□Concept Review D Comprehensive Master Plan Amendment D Planned Development District D Rezoning

D Special Use/ Special Use Amendment [} Unified Development Ordinance Text Amendment

Most requests require Plan Commission review and Common Council approval.
Applicant is responsible for providing Plan Commission resubmittal materials up to 11 copies pending staff request and comments.

., . SIGNATURES ---··
The applicant and property owner(s) hereby certify that: (1) all statements and other information submitted as part of this application are true and correct to the best
of applicant's and property owner(s)' knowledge; (2) the applicant and property owner(s) has/have read and understand all information in this application; and (3) the
applicant and property owner(s) agree that any approvals based on representations made by them in this Application and its submittal, and any subsequently issued
building permits or other type of permits, may be revoked without notice if there is a breach of such representation(s) or any condition(s) of approval. By execution of
this application, the property owner(s) authorize the City of Franklin and/or its agents to enter upon the subject property(ies) between the hours of 7:00 a.m. and 7:00
p.m. daily for the purpose of inspection while the application is under review. The property owner(s) grant this authorization even if the property has been posted against
trespassing pursuant to Wis. Stat. 6943.13.

(The applicant's signature must be from a Managing Member if the business is an LLC, or from the President or Vice President If the business is a corporation. A signed
applicant' s authorization letter may be provided In lieu of the applicant's signature below, and a signed property owner's authorization letter may be provided in lieu
of the property owner's signature[s] below. If more than one, all of the owners of the property must sign this Applicatian}.

, the applicant, certify that I have read the following page detailing the requirements for plan commission and common council approval and
submittals and understand that incomplete applications and submittals cannot be reviewed.

PROPERTYOWNER)lr:J"-1JR,~:::..j---. APPLL()C,T SIGNATURE:

12El24 au"rg7 7et } DATE: NAMTITLE DATE: 12/6/24's0cl-A 163 ,Av s,e Jany Vang. Owner
PROPERTYOWNER SIGNATURE: APPLICANT REPRESENTATIVE SIGNATURE:

~ ---
NAME & TITLE: DATE: NAME &TITLE: DATE:

12/6/24Chris Smith, Attorney
-- -



vonBriesen
von Briesen & Roper, s.c.[ Attorneys at Law

Christopher H. Smith
Direct 'Telephone

411-287-1199
ehristoper.smith@vonbriesen.com

November 26, 2024

To Whom It May Concern,

On behalf of Prime Pack LLC, we respectfully request the City of Franklin amend its Unified
Development Ordinance (UDO). Specifically, we request that the City amend the allowed uses within
the B-3 zoning district to permit SIC No 7389 (Business services, not elsewhere classified). Per the
Occupational Safety and Health Administration, Industry 7389 contains establishments, such as ours,
primarily engaged in packaging and labeling merchandise for purposes other than shipping (retail
packaging). Prime Pack LLC's business model focuses on retail sales of packing supplies and
ancillary shipping, like a UPS Store, which falls under Industry 7389. Prime Pack LLC does not
engage in industrial warehousing and shipping, and its business model fits comfortably within similar
customer-focused businesses open to the public.

The UDO currently permits these businesses in both the B-2 (General Business) and B-4 (South 27
Street Mixed Use Commercial) districts. We believe the Industry 7389 fits within the B-3 district's
AUTO-URBAN character and compatibility with the SUBURBAN character as set forth in the City's
Comprehensive Master Plan and referenced in $ UDO-3-15-3.0300.0303A5. Furthermore, under the
draft update to Franklin's UDO, the draft ordinance permits General Service uses, including ours, in
the subject zoning district. Therefore, we find ourselves in the position where the City would permit
the use under new rules potentially within the next year, depending on the City's schedule for
adoption, but not currently.

The applicant wishes to occupy the subject tenant space and establish their business presence within
the City as quickly as possible. We understand that the City will not schedule the draft UDO for
adoption until 2025; therefore, instead of waiting for the new ordinance, we request that the city
amend its current ordinance so that our business may re-submit a zoning compliance application and
quickly commence operations per all other applicable City ordinances.

Thank you for your consideration.

Very truly yours,

von BRIESEN & ROPER, s.c.

Christopher R. Smith

vonbriesen.com 4II East Wisconsin Avenue, Suite 1000 Milwaukee, Wisconsin 53202-4409 Phone 414-276-1122 Fax 414-276-628I



B-3 City Wide & 7127 S. 76th Street



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

REPORTS &

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND PLANNED
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO. 18 AS IT

PERTAINS TO THE APPROVAL OF MINOR
SITE PLAN AMENDMENTS BY

DEPARTMENT OF CITY DEVELOPMENT
STAFF

MEETING
DATE

02/04/2025

ITEM NUMBER

At its January 23, 2025 meeting the Plan Commission recommended approval of a an
ordinance to amend Planned Development District No. 18 as it pertains to the approval
of Minor Site Plan Amendments by Department of City Development Staff.

The vote was 4-0-1, four "ayes", no "noes" and one absents.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

A motion to approve Ordinance No. 2025- an ordinance to amend Planned
Development District No. 18 as it pertains to the approval of Minor Site Plan
Amendments by Department of City Development Staff.



STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN

ORDINANCE NO. 2025-

MILWAUKEE COUNTY

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO. 18
AS IT PERTAINS TO THE APPROVAL OF MINOR SITE PLAN AMENDMENTS

BY DEPARTMENT OF CITY DEVELOPMENT STAFF

WHEREAS, § 15-3.0423 of the Unified Development Ordinance provides for
and regulates Planned Development District No. 18 (Franklin Business Park), same
having been created by Ordinance No. 93-1279 and later amended by Ordinance Nos.
1997-1437, 2000-1627, 2003-1743, 2005-1851, 2012-2094, 2015-2196, 2020-2442,
and 2022-2512; and

WHEREAS, said Planned Development District having previously been part
of the Zoning Ordinance No. 221, as Section 13.21, same having later been
incorporated into the City of Franklin Unified Development Ordinance as Section 15
3 .0423, as it is currently codified; and

WHEREAS, Subsection (2) of Planned Development District No. 18 provides
that the administration of applicable laws associated with Planned Development
District No. 18, including the review and approval of land use and building plans for
structures and improvements, shall be carried out by the Community Development
Authority of the City of Franklin, Wisconsin ("CDA''); and

WHEREAS, the Unified Development Ordinance Section 15-7.0107 requires a
Minor Site Plan Amendment for any reasonable and bona fide change in
circumstances occurring since the prior approval, and which does not: i) significantly
alter the character, functionality, safety, or appearance of the development; ii) result
in a significant decrease in the amount or quality of the approved amenities; iii) result
in significant changes in architectural styles, colors or building materials that are
inconsistent with the approved Site Plan; iv) result in changes to such items as a
phasing plan or developer control, that substantially impact the development or
development in the area; or v) result in any amendment that would modify any aspect
or portion of an adopted Site Plan for which a specific condition was retained or
added from input at a public hearing or other public input of record by the Plan
Commission and/or the Common Council. in the City of Franklin, and Ordinance No.
93-1279 requires approval by the CDA as a prerequisite to site plan approvals in the
Franklin Business Park; and

WHEREAS, the CDA having reviewed the site plan approvals administered
pursuant to Planned Development District No. 18 and the administrative process
established by the Unified Development Ordinance whereby minor site plan
amendments are issued as an administrative function of the Planning Manager or the



ORDINANCE NO. 2024
Page 2

Department of City Development for all minor site plans within the City and having
determined that the efficient administration of the Franklin Business Park would be
further served by the approval of minor site plan amendments by the Department of
City Development in the Franklin Business Park; and

WHEREAS, the subject petition was before the Community Development
Authority on the 23rd day of January, 2025, the Authority having recommended
approval thereof to the Common Council; and

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held before the City of Franklin Plan
Commission on the 23rd day of January, 2025, and the Plan Commission having
reviewed the proposed amendment to Planned Development District No. 18 after
hearing the public and having made its recommendations to the Common Council.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Mayor and Common Council of the City of
Franklin, Wisconsin, do ordain as follows:

SECTION 1: § 15-3.0423(2), entitled "Administration", of the Unified
Development Ordinance of the City of Franklin, be and the
same is hereby amended to read as follows [note deletons appear n
strke-through text, addtons appear n underlined text, unchanged text as not
hghlghted]:

The administration of applicable laws associated with Planned
Development District No. 18, including the review and approval
of land use and of site and building plans, shall be carried out by
the Community Development Authority of the City of Franklin,
Wisconsin ("CDA''); excepting that the Common Council shall
administer the review and approval process (following Plan
Commission review as is required for such matters not affecting
lands within this District, and following such review and
recommendation as the CDA may make thereon), upon any
rezoning, land division, land combination and other
application as required by law; and excepting that the review
and approval of a zoning compliance permit for any use by any
person or entity other than that as originally approved by the
CDA in conjunction with its approval of any new construction,
shall be carried out by the City of Franklin Planning Manager or
the Planning Manager's designee within the Planning and
Zoning Department of City Development, pursuant to § 15-
9.0102 of the Unified Development Ordinance; and excepting
that the review and approval of Minor Site Plan Amendments,
herein defined as 1) A change of less than 5% of the structures'
floor area, and 2) no increase in the off-street parking located on



ORDINANCE NO. 2024
Page 3

site; shall be carried out by the City of Franklin Department of
City Development, pursuant to Unified Development Ordinance
§15-7.0107.

SECTION 2:

SECTION 3:

SECTION 4:

The terms and prov1s1ons of this ordinance are severable.
Should any term or provision of this ordinance be found to be
invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining terms
and provisions shall remain in full force and effect.

All ordinances and parts of ordinances in contravention to this
ordinance are hereby repealed.

This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after
its passage and publication.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of
Franklin this day of > 2025, by Alderman

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of
Franklin this day of> 2025.

APPROVED:

John R. Nelson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Shirley J. Roberts, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT



CITY OF FRANKLIN Item C.2.

REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION

Meeting of January 23, 2025

Major Amendment to Planned Development District No. 18

RECOMMENDATION: City Development Staff recommends approval of Option 2 of this
Planned Development District amendment to allow for administrative review of minor site plan
amendments in the Franklin Business Park

Project Name:

Location:

Applicant:

Zoning:

2025 Comprehensive Plan:

Action Requested:

Planner:

Administrative review for Minor Site Plans in the Franklin
Business Park

Franklin Business Park (Planned Development District No. 18)

City of Franklin, City Development Department

Planned Development District No. 18

Commercial

Recommendation to the Common Council for approval of this
Major Amendment to Planned Development District No. 18.

Luke Hamill, Associate Planner

In order to streamline the minor site plan approval process in the Franklin Business Park, City
Development Department staff is proposing an ordinance to allow for administrative review of
Minor Site Plan Amendments by this department, without the prerequisite of an additional review
and approval by the Community Development Authority (CDA).

The current review and approval process for a minor amendment to site plans in the Franklin
Business Park is as follows:

• Review by City Development staff of a Site Plan Amendment application, and approval by
the CDA in a regular meeting.

• Separate approval from the Franklin Business Park Review Board.

Currently, the Unified Development Ordinance allows for administrative approval for Minor Site
Plan Amendments for non-PDD zoning. The current UDO defines a minor site plan amendment
as follows:

Any minor amendment is an amendment(s) which is supported by an application request due to a
reasonable and bona fide change in circumstances occuring since the prior approval, and which
does not: i) significantly alter the character, functionality, safety, or appearance of the
development; ii) result in a significant decrease in the amount or quality of the approved amenities;
iii) result in significant changes in architectural styles, colors or building materials that are
inconsistent with the approved Site Plan; iv) result in changes to such items as a phasing plan or
developer control, that substantially impact the development or development in the area; or v)
result in any amendment that would modify any aspect or portion ofan adopted Site Plan for which



a specific condition was retained or added from input at a public hearing or other public input of
record by the Plan Commission and/or the Common Council.

This definition is vague and does not give any sort of statistical definition for what is a Minor Site
Plan Amendment and what is a major Site Plan Amendment.

However, even that vague definition is not in the current POD 18 ordinances and there is no
mention of a Minor Site Plan Amendment. Any slight change to a lot within PDD 18 requires the
submittal of a Site Plan application that needs to be reviewed by CDA, which only meets once a
month, which can delay very minor projects that do not significantly alter the use or architectural
styles of a property and wastes CDA members and staffs time. Therefore, City Development Staff
is recommending that standards for Minor Site Plan Amendments that is approved by staffwithin
POD 18 be enacted. City Development Staff has brought two options for the Plan Commission to
consider:

Option 1: Approve an Ordinance that enacts Minor Site Plan Amendments with the current
language of the UDO, which is provided earlier in the document. City Development Staffdoes not
recommend this option, as the definitions are vague and there is gray area on which is a Major Site
Plan and which is a Minor Site Plan Amendment.

Option 2: This option would be to approve an ordinance that would enact the definitions for Minor
Site Plan Amendments that are currently proposed within the Draft UDO, which is part of the
larger UDO rewrite project. The definitions are as follows:

Major Amendment. A major amendment is an amendment which results in one of the
following:

1. A change of five (5) percent or more of the structures' floor area.
2. An increase in the off-street parking located on site.

Minor Amendment. A Minor Site Plan amendment is any change that does not qualify as a
major site plan amendment per Section above.

This would make a Minor Amendment any changes to a site that is 1) less than 5 percent change
in a structures area, 2) no increase in off-street parking, and 3) No significant change in
architectural styels, colors or building materials that are inconsistent with the approved Site Plan.

This gives a much more concrete and less vague definition ofwhat is a Minor Site Plan than Option
1. City Development Staff recommends Option 2 be adopted.

RECOMMENDATION

A motion to determine the proposed amendment to Planned Development District No. 18 to be a
major amendment.
A motion to recommend approval of Option 2 of this Planned Development District Amendment.

2



APPROVAL

REPORTS &

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

A Resolution Conditionally Approving a Land
Combination for Tax Key Nos. 899 9990 069;

899 9990 023; and 899 9990 024

(9600 S 58' ST. A and Adjacent Lots)

(Krones INC., Applicant and Owner)

MEETING
DATE

02/04/2025

ITEM NUMBER

Aid. Dist. 4

At its January 23, 2025, regular meeting, the Plan Commission recommended
approval of this resolution. The vote was (4-0-2), 4 'ayes', no 'noes', and 2 absences.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

A motion to adopt Resolution 2025- , conditionally approving a Land
Combination for Tax Key Nos. 899 9990 069; 899 9990 023; and 899 9990 024
(9600 S 58TH ST. and Adjacent Lots) (Krones, Inc., applicant).

Department of City Development: MX



STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN

RESOLUTION NO. 2025

MILWAUKEE COUNTY
Draft 01/14/25

A RESOLUTION CONDITIONALLY APPROVING A LAND COMBINATION FOR
TAX KEY NOS. 899 9990 069; 899 9990 023; AND 899 9990 024

(9600 S 58TH ST. AND ADJACENT LOTS)
(KRONES INC., APPLICANT AND OWNER)

WHEREAS, the City of Franklin, Wisconsin, having received an application for
approval of a proposed land combination for Krones, Inc. to combine 9600 S 58th St., Tax
Key No. 899 9990 069 (19.2 acres); 899 9990 023 (1.2 acres); and 899 9990 024 (0.8 acres),
properties more particularly described as follows:

Parcel 1 of Certified Survey Map No. 5511 and Parcel 1 of Certified Survey Map No.
6167 located in the Northwest 1 /4 and Southwest 1/4 of the Northwest 1 /4 of Section
26, Township 5 North, Range 21 East, in the City of Franklin, Milwaukee County,
Wisconsin, bounded and described as follows: Commencing at the Northwest corner
of said Northwest 1/4 of Section; thence North 88°20'31" East along said North line
964.60 feet to a point; thence South 00°26'07" East 110.02 feet to a point on the South
line of W. Ryan Road (S.T.H. 100) also being the beginning of the lands hereinafter
described; thence North 88°20'31" East along said South line 347.06 feet to a point;
thence South 00°30'49" East 514.98 feet to a point; thence South 00°32' 13" East
1108.16 feet to a point; thence South 88°20'31" West 399.79 feet to a point; thence
North 00°26'07" West 185.93 feet to a point; thence South 88°20'31" West 50.00 feet
to a point; thence North 00°26'07" West 250.00 feet to a point; thence South
88°20'31" West 250.00 feet to a point on the East line of South 58th Street; thence
North 00°25'49" West along said East line 922.27 feet to a point; thence North
88°20'31" East 349.99 feet to a point; thence North 00°26'07" West 265.00 feet to the
point of beginning; and

WHEREAS, the Plan Commission having reviewed such application and
recommended approval thereof and the Common Council having reviewed such application
and Plan Commission recommendation and the Common Council having determined that
such proposed land combination is appropriate for approval pursuant to law upon certain
conditions, all pursuant to § 15-9.0312 of the Unified Development Ordinance, Land
Combination Permits.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Common Council of
the City of Franklin, Wisconsin, that the proposed land combination for Krones, Inc., as
submitted by Krones, Inc., as described above, be and the same is hereby approved, subject
to the following conditions:



KRONES INC. -- LAND COMBINATION
RESOLUTION NO. 2025-
Page 2

1. Krones Inc., successors and assigns shall pay to the City of Franklin the amount of all
development compliance, inspection and review fees incurred by the City of Franklin,
including fees of consults to the City of Franklin, for the Krones, Inc. land
combination project, within 30 days of invoice for same. Any violation of this
provision shall be a violation of the Unified Development Ordinance, and subject to
§ 15-9 .0502 thereof and $1-19 of the Municipal Code, the general penalties and
remedies provisions, as amended from time to time.

2. The approval granted hereunder is conditional upon Krones, Inc. and the Krones, Inc.
land combination project for the properties located at approximately 9600 S 58th St.,
Tax Key No. 899 9990 069; 899 9990 023; and 899 9990 024, and vacated service
road): (i) being in compliance with all applicable governmental laws, statutes, rules,
codes, orders and ordinances; and (ii) obtaining all other governmental approvals,
permits, licenses and the like, required for and applicable to the project to be
developed and as presented for this approval.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
day of,2025.

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of
Franklin this day of,2025.

APPROVED:

John R. Nelson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Shirley J. Roberts, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT--- --- ---



Item E.2.

5man CITY OF FRANKLIN "haw
REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION

Meeting of January 23, 2025

Land Combination

RECOMMENDATION: City Development Staff recommends approval of the Land Combination
Application for properties located at approximately 5921 W. Ryan Road bearing Tax Key Nos. 899
9991 002, 899 9991 003 and 899 9991 005, subject to the conditions in the draft resolutions.
Project Name:
Property Owner:
Applicant:
Property Address/TKN:

Aldermanic District:
Agent:
Zoning District:
Use of Surrounding Properties:

Application Request:
Staff Planner:

Krones Land Combination
Krones Inc./ Holger Beckmann President & CEO
Dan Knoblauch, Krones Inc.
9600 S 58"St./ 899 9990 069: 899 9990 023:
899 9990 024
District 4
Jesse Bartol, Krones Inc.
M-1 Limited Industrial District
PDD 25 (residential) to the north,
PDD 18 (industrial) to the east,
M-1 Limited Industrial District to the south and west
Approval ofa Land Combination
Marion Eeks, AICP

Project Analysis
The subject property is an industrial property housing operations for Krones, Inc. The applicants
previously obtained approval ofa land Combination (RES 2023-7966) to absorb a lot on the south of
the 19 acre parcel to accommodate solar infrastructure. The current request is a consolidation; there are
no proposed changes to the use of these properties or the site plan as part ofthis request.

The Land Combination is requesting to combine the three existing lots listed below to create a single
21.1742 Acre / 922,348 Square Feet parcel.

• 9600 S 58th St., Tax Key No. 899 9990 069 (19.2 acres or 834,870 Square Feet);
• 899 9990 023 (1.2 acres or 52,487 Square Feet); and
• 899 9990 024 (0.8 acres or 34,991 Square Feet)

All lots are zoned M-I Limited Industrial District. The proposed lot configuration meets the
requirements ofthe M-I District development standards with respect to uses, lot size, and general
building dimensions. Some buildings have nonconforming setbacks which will not be altered by this
approval. The lot with TKN 899 9990 024 does not have a primary structure, so combining this parcel
will the other lots will eliminate this nonconformity.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION
The Department ofCity Development staff recommends approval ofthe Land Combination Application
for properties located at approximately 9600 S 58th St., bearing Tax Key Numbers 899 9990 069; 899
9990 023; and 899 9990 024, subject to the conditions in the draft resolutions.



9600 S. 58th Street

Planning Department
(414) 425-4024

0 250 500 1,000 Feet A
NORTH

2021 Aerial Photo
This map shows the approximate relative location ofproperty
boundaries but was not prepared by a professional land surveyor
This map is providedfor informational purposes only
and may not be sufficient or appropriatefor legal, engineering,
or surveying purposes.



9600 S. 58th Street

8
t \ I

1////#V,
I

r;Ji\.
I :1'1i .I -

'T77A

~ U PropertyIv
I 1;

I /' -~; 11

I

?:
II

~
i

:!: •\~

%~
./ f I \ ·"- =i I

• I -. ..,,.'f.•, I,,: I\1

\ II

I
I

Planning Department
(414) 425-4024

0 250 500 1,000 Feet A
NORTH

2021 Aerial Photo
'lhis map shows the approximate relative location ofproperty
boundaries but was 110/prepared bya professional land surveyo1:
This map is providedfor informational purposes only
and may 1101 be suflicien/ or appropriatefor legal, engineering,
or surveying purposes.



City of Franklin
Department ofCity Development

Date:
To:
From:
RE:

January 6, 2025
Dan Knoblauch, Krones Inc.
Department of City Development. Marion Eeks, AICP, Principal Planner.
Staff Comments, Krones Land Combination, 9600 S. 58th St. etc.

Please be advised that city staff has reviewed the above application received on December 17,
2024, for a proposed Krones Land Combination, 9600 S. 58th St. etc. The following comments are
for your review and consideration.

PART Or PARCEL A
±:
Mr tu 409. 4)

'' '}E r
., 't , '-.MJ·,,';

survey:
a. Zoning District
b. Future Land Use
c. Present use
d. Combined area in acres/square feet

4. Please furnish to the City a copy of the recorded land
combination from the Register of Deeds when recording is
complete.

Department of City Development
1. All lots to be combined are zoned M-1 Limited Industrial District, and subject to the

Development Standards of that zoning. Future Land Use designation is Industrial.
2. Provide setback information for 1 Story Metal Building in

northwest corner of Parcel A (Figure 1):
3. Include the following information ($15-9.0312) on the

Figure 1- Label setbacks



9%
( :: .. ~.: ,., ... ,,

~:. ~,:...._;.1~-tt!.1~:.~~f~k--,..

:-{-

#%
' ~. -.._...

,.; ... ·_v

,_ •,.-2::~~~;1,~~·~u-H·~~;t,.",;,..,~h~l...;&~..,..J:iii,..,;.,;;~'"" ,'-·j.&,;:.,_;;,i,,\i,_,;;-.: · ,i



(

l

.. , ..cocos.ccscccictusrc-ts.SE; _gSSsssi.ls±st:.Li2±&tlet±sissiisis±.±25$ts



(_

L



Said lands also described as:

Parcel 1 of Certified Survey Map No 5511 and Parcel 1 of Certified Survey Map No 6167 located in the
Northwest 1/4 and Southwest 1/4 of the Northwest 1/4 of Section 26, Township 5 North, Range 21 East,
in the City of Franklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin, bounded and described as follows. Commencing at
the Northwest corner of said Northwest 1/4 of Section; thence North 8820'31" East along said North
line 964 60 feet to a point; thence South 00°26'07" East 110.02 feet to a point on the South line of W
Ryan Road (S.T H. 100) also bemng the beginning of the lands hereinafter described; thence North
8820'31" East along said South line 347 06 feet to a point; thence South 00°30'49" East 514 98 feet to a
point; thence South 00°32'13" East 1108.16 feet to a point; thence South 88°20'31" West 399.79 feet to
a point; thence North 00°26'07" West 185 93 feet to a point; thence South 8820'31" West 50 00 feet to
a point; thence North 00°26'07" West 250.00 feet to a point; thence South 88°20'31" West 250.00 feet
to a point on the East hne of South 58th Street, thence North 00°25'49" West along said East line 922 27
feet to a point, thence North 88°20'31" East 349 99 feet to a point; thence North 00°26'07" West 265 00
feet to the point of beginning.



SURVEYOF

LE'.DOYE OL 4 AZ3REV;AT 'ON
ea£$ FM3+As
OAS S' tJ0 Roen 'E
gt, w-¢ tug A

"'"t:J.,:Gnsro.,,ux;v.t
ft«st

CO' S FA2. w"ass oe

922,35a+
211224es

3A 0 3£A1ING8
x,, "'' ••e re•,·e·•nc :o,, et' tescrsn$ate?sec"date$ate
[So.:.., la,,e) \l'.>17, wtern nee'teewes/o$et 15,
cw$mt, age2ast,terse#3

!'OT ES
"7,".,eerred ware¢v:rte¢ rd.srs et

+N 3ts #e
!l,OC,CI\C'l

'
''

''

'
'

'''

,,..!;'{'<!RO(
9,%
ll!.O

PARCCLB
ll •ltS•
H(Uatc n

et,1
Ch ,,C,Jm

I

·'•I
I

::: t )e ~ I ,AAO;t I ,.
1,.,,;n-.om1;f:c1J c, .. -.o nu j!

_ - ),.!4'1 ll' t !•111 '""~

1

J
t,,, <rf ,,c 1 ;w;~ 1, C1" Y.I I~ I ""'.,...,..._..."'"'"";:;.,'"'""""~~

• •
~ f960C §I

..L ---- ....,_.J.,..E'L- - - - ~.::'.'·-4
' .

;H ~•"' ..,....._,..._ ..,....._-.._-"-.._ .,-.; ;;--,""""""' :'<<c'.'

,.
r- }.·g
''
'

,------,-------
! I ,.,
I I ;
I I
I I
I I
I I
I I
I I
I
I
l 882o'3" 39.99'

Cfh,.,,.,.

r7;,il;;;r,· =•u~5!..f!!._g';!UL'l"-1!£!! - .!":!3.!'.!....!."!-"~ -- r _,
/_j - ---- - ,wr.i··, 1t•"'1

I;,;;
7 ,;

I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I

'
''.

' '

HO

(IMFCIT)
I Inch " 60 1t.

GRAPHIC SCALE
110 0 25 110 120r---.-.-

'Cr: 'vtl"lt aeeeettetee¢pert{cert}, ad :re it:., ,.., ,, 1
et toteteto ypecesea ow«tatteeadsoastesire atatee

tePery,tseaterebountarei, teoat o' a stestutre

EEEEE±EEEE;; EEEEs
f-t, l MOOC •
~ : S-21

CHAPUT
LAND@SURVEYS

SU'10'JI "W J99.79'

NY'
CS.. -.OS!TI

----------7
I
I
I
I
I
I
I

20 '31w
50.00'

S88' 20'Jl "W 150.00'

I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
Ir----------



APPROVAL

REPORTS AND
RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE A 3 YEAR
AGREEMENT WITH SOUTHEAST WISCONSIN
CHAPTER OF PHEASANTS FOREVER FOR

CONDUCTING PRESCRIBED FIRE TO MAINTAIN
PLEASANT VIEW PARK PRAIRIE

MEETING DATE
02/04/2025

BACKGROUND
Milwaukee Metropolitan Sewerage District (MMSD) purchased land in the early 2000s under their
Greenseams® program. Greenseams® 1s an innovative flood management program that
permanently protects key lands containing water-absorbing soils. In 2012 and 2015, MMSD
transferred the properties to the City of Franklin. In 2003 and 2016, MMSD, with the United
States Fish and Wildlife Department, completed restoration work of prairie seeding. During a site
visit this past summer, a prairie ecosystem was observed and prescribed fire was recommended to
enhance the existing prairie. Current management of the land has been occasional mowing with a
flail mower to keep woody vegetation down. It is best management practices for this landscape to
be maintained using prescribed fire. This will eliminate the need for city crews to mow the area
besides required fire breaks.

ANALYSIS
MMSD still has a management interest in the property and, through research and discussions, it

was determined that the best approach to managing the prairie ecosystem is to reintroduce fire.
Prescribed fire controls many undesirable and invasive woody plants and herbaceous weeds, while
stimulating desirable plants, and improving wildlife habitat. Prairie grasses and flowers develop
deep roots and buds beneath the soil, enabling them to withstand the heat of a fire while shallow
rooted invasive brush succumbs. Prairies need frequent fires to remove build-up of dead leaves
and non-native plants, allowing prairie plants more nutrients and room to grow. Fire stimulates
growth of grasses and wildflowers and prevents woody species to take over. MMSD
recommended Southeast Wisconsin Chapter of Pheasants Forever to develop & execute a burn
plan. Pheasants Forever has a trained/professional burn crew certified and insured in conducting
prescribed burns. During a site visit, it was determined the site has 3 burn groups and 9 different
burn units, and should be burned on a 3-year rotation.

Group A= Units l through 4 burn spring of 2025
Group B= Units 8 and 9 Spring 2026 cost shared with MMSD
Group C= Units 5 through 7 Spring 2027

OPTIONS
A. Pass a Resolution to direct Staff to sign a 3-year agreement with Southeast Wisconsin
Chapter of Pheasants Forever.
B. Elect to not sign 3-year agreement with Southeast Wisconsin Chapter of Pheasants Forever.

FISCAL NOTE
2025 Cost $3,500
2026 Cost $3,500 (shared with MMSD)
2027 Cost $4,000

Funds will be covered through the Parks Maintenance Budget (01.0551.5247)



COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

(Option A) Motion to adopt Resolution No 2024- A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE A
3 YEAR AGREEMENT WITH SOUTHEAST WISCONSIN CHAPTER OF PHEASANTS
FOREVER FOR CONDUCTING PRESCRIBED FIRE TO MAINTAIN PLEASANT VIEW
PARK PRAIRIE.

DPW: TR



STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN . MILWAUKEE COUNTY

RESOLUTION NO. 2025 ----

A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE A 3-YEAR AGREEMENT WITH SOUTHEAST
WISCONSIN CHAPTER OF PHEASANTS FOREVER FOR CONDUCTING PRESCRIBED

FIRE TO MAINTAIN PLEASANT VIEW PARK PRAIRIE

WHEREAS, the CIty of Franklin, Wisconsin, (FRANKLIN), acknowledges that a
potentially restorable praine exists on lands at Pleasant View Park

WHEREAS, FRANKLIN acknowledges that prescribed fire 1s a beneficial management
practice in mamtainmg native prairie ecosystems, by encouraging native plant regeneration, and
control of mvasive woody species

WHEREAS, FRANKLIN requests a three-year maintenance agreement with Southeast
Wisconsmn Chapter of Pheasants Forever, to conduct said prescribed burns.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Contractor, Southeast Wisconsin Chapter
of Pheasants Forever, will comply with all local, state, and federal rules, regulations and
ordinances relating to thus project;

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin
theday of>2025, by Alderman _

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Common Council of the City of Franklin on the
day of,2025

APPROVED·

John R. Nelson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Shurley J. Roberts, CIty Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT



AGREEMENT

This AGREEMENT, is made and entered into this 2nd day of February, between the City of
Franklin, 9229 West Loomis Road, Franklmn, Wisconsin 53132 (hereinafter "CLIENT") and
Pheasants Forever, Inc (hereinafter "CONTRACTOR"), whose principal place of busmess 1s 1783
Buerke Cir, Samnt Paul, MN 55110

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, the CONTRACTOR Is duly qualified and experienced as a municipal services
contractor and has offered services for the purposes specified in this AGREEMENT; and

WHEREAS, 111 the Judgment of CLIENT, it is necessary and advisable to obtain the services
of the CONTRACTOR to implement a prescnbed burn

NOW, THEREFORE, m consideration of these premises and the following mutual
covenants, terms, and cond1t1ons, CLIENT and CONTRACTOR agree as follows.

I. BASIC SERVICES AND AGREEMENT ADMINISTRATION

A. CONTRACTOR shall provide services to CLIENT for a prescribed burn, as
descnbed m CONTRACTOR's proposal to CLIENT dated August 27, 2024,
annexed hereto and incorporated herein as Attachment A

B. CONTRACTOR shall serve as CLIENT's professional representative in matters
to which thus AGREEMENT applies. CONTRACTOR may employ the services
of outside consultants and subcontractors when deemed necessary by
CONTRACTOR to complete work under this AGREEMENT following approval
by CLIENT

C. CONTRACTOR is an independent contractor and all persons furnishing services
hereunder are employees of, or mdependent subcontractors to, CONTRACTOR
and not of CLIENT. All obligations under the Federal Insurance Contribution Act
(FICA), the Federal Unemployment Tax Act (FUTA), and income tax
withholding are the responsibility of CONTRACTOR as employer. CLIENT
understands that express AGREEMENTS may exist between CONTRACTOR
and its employees regardmg extra work, competition, and nondisclosure.

D. Durmg the term of this AGREEMENT and throughout the period of performance
of any resultant AGREEMENT, mcludmg extensions, modifications, or additions
thereto, and for a period of one (I) year from the conclusion of such activity, the
parties hereto agree that neither shall solicit for employment any technical or
professional employees of the other without the prior written approval of the
other party

II. FEES AND PAYMENTS

Page-1



CLIENT agrees to pay CONTRACTOR, for and m consideration of the performance of Baste
Services further described m Attachment A, with a not-to-exceed budget of $11,000, subject to the
terms detailed below

A CONTRACTOR may 6111 CLIENT and be paid for all work satisfactorily
completed hereunder on a monthly basts. CLIENT agrees to pay
CONTRACTOR's invoice wthmn 30 days of Invoice date for all approved work

B. Total pnce will not exceed budget of$ I 1,000. For services rendered, monthly
111vo1ces will mclude a report that clearly states the type of work completed and
the fee earned during the month being invoiced.

C, In consideration of the faithful performance of this AGREEMENT, the
CONTRACTOR will not exceed the fee for Basic Services and expenses without
written authorization from CLIENT to perform work over and above that
described in the original AGREEMENT

D. Should CLIENT find deficiencies in work performed or reported, it will notify
CONTRACTOR 111 writing within thirty (30) days of receipt of invoice and
related report and the CONTRACTOR will remedy the deficiencies within thu1y
(30) days of receivmg CLIENT's review. This subsection shall not be construed
to be a limttaton of any rghts or remedies otherwise available to CLIENT

III. MODIFICATION AND ADDITIONAL SERVICES

A CLIENT may, m writmg, request changes in the Baste Services required to be
performed by CONTRACTOR and require a specification of incremental or
decremental costs pnor to change order agreement under this AGREEMENT.
Upon acceptance of the request of such changes, CONTRACTOR shall submit a
"Change Order Request Form" to CLIENT for authorization and notice to
proceed signature and return to CONTRACTOR. Should any such actual
changes be made, an equitable adjustment will be made to compensate
CONTRACTOR or reduce the fixed price, for any incremental or decremental
labor or direct costs, respectively. Any claim by CONTRACTOR for adjustments
hereunder must be made to CLIENT in writing no later than forty-five (45) days
after receipt by CONTRACTOR of notice of such changes from CLIENT.

IV. ASSISTANCE AND CONTROL

A Tom Riha will coordmate the work of the CONTRACTOR, and be solely
responsible for communication within the CLIENT's organization as related to all
Issues originating under thus AGREEMENT.

B. CLIENT will timely provide CONTRACTOR with all available information
concerning PROJECT as deemed necessary by CONTRACTOR.

C CONTRACTOR will appomt, subJect to the approval of CLIENT, Clay Frazer
CONTRACTOR's Project Manager and other key providers of the Bas1c
Services. Subst1tut10n of other staff may occur only with the consent of CLIENT

Page-2



V. TERMINATION

A This AGREEMENT may be term111ated by CLIENT, for its convenience, for
any or no reason, upon written notice to CONTRACTOR. This
AGREEMENT may be termmated by CONTRACTOR upon thirty (30) days
wntten notice Upon such termination by CLIENT, CONTRACTOR shall be
entitled to payment of such amount as shall fairly compensate
CONTRACTOR for all work approved up to the date of termination, except
that no amount shall be payable for any losses of revenue or profit from any
source outside the scope of this AGREEMENT, including but not limited to,
other actual or potential agreements for services with other parties.

B. In the event that this AGREEMENT Is terminated for any reason,
CONTRACTOR shall deliver to CLIENT all data, reports, summaries,
correspondence, and other written, printed, or tabulated material pertaining 111
any way to Basic Services that CONTRACTOR may have accumulated. Such
material 1s to be delivered to CLIENT whether in completed form or 111
process CLIENT shall hold CONTRACTOR harmless for any work that 1s
incomplete due to early termination.

C The rights and remedies of CLIENT and CONTRACTOR under this section
are not exclusive and are 111 addition to any other rights and remedies
provided by law or appearing 111 any other article of this AGREEMENT.

VI. INSURANCE

The CONTRACTOR shall, during the life of the AGREEMENT, mamtain insurance coverage with
an authorized insurance earner at least equal to the minimum limits set forth below:

A General/Commercial Ltabtlity

B. Automobile Liability

C Contractor's Pollution Liability

$1,000,000 per each occurrence for bodily injury,
personal injury, and property damage
$2,000,000 per general aggregate,

CITY shall be named as an add1t10nal msured on a
prunary, non-contrbutory bass

$1,000,000 combined single limit

CITY shall be named as an addtonal mnsured on a
primary, non-contrbutory bass

$1,000,000 per occurrence
$2,000,000 aggregate

CITY shall be named as an addtonal insured on a
primary, non-contributory bass

Page-3



D Umbrella or Excess Liability $10,000,000 per occurrence for bodily myury,
Coverage for General/Commerc1al, personal inJury, and property
Automobile Liability, and Contractor's
Pollution L1ability

CITY shall be named as an addtonal insured on a
prunary, non-contrtbutory ba.51s

E. Worker's Compensation and Statutory
Employers' L1ability

Contractor wll provde a waver of subrogaton
and/or any nghts of recovery allowed under any
workers ' compensat10n law

F Professional Liability (Errors & $2,000,000 smngle limit
Om1ss1ons)

Upon the execution of this AGREEMENT, CONTRACTOR shall supply CLIENT with a suitable
statement certifying said protection and defining the terms of the policy issued, which shall specify
that such protection shall not be cancelled without thnty (30) calendar days pror notice to CLIENT,
and nammg CLIENT as an additional insured as required above.

VII. INDEMNIFICATION AND ALLOCATION OF RISK

A. To the fullest extent permitted by law, CONTRACTOR shall indemnify and hold
harmless CLIENT, CLIENT'S officers, directors, partners, and employees from and
against costs, losses, and damages (including but not limited to reasonable fees and
charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals, and reasonable
court or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) caused solely by the negligent
acts or omissions of CONTRACTOR or CONTRACTOR'S officers, directors,
partners, employees, and consultants in the performance of CONTRACTOR'S
services under this AGREEMENT.

B. Nothing contamed withm this AGREEMENT is mtended to be a waiver or estoppel
of the contractmg municipality CLIENT or its insurer to rely upon the l11rntat1ons,
defenses, and 1mmu111ties contained within Wisconsin law, including those contained
within Wisconsin Statutes $$ 893.80, 895.52, and 345.05. To the extent that
mdemmfication is available and enforceable, the municipality CLIENT or its msurer
shall not be liable in indemnity or contribution for an amount greater than the limits
of hab1hty for municipal claims established by Wisconsin Law.

VIII. TIME FOR COMPLETION

CONTRACTOR shall commence work as weather conditions allow and mutually agreed upon by
CLIENT and CONTRACTOR having received a Notice to Proceed and Burn Authorization.
Annually as of when weather conditions permit during Spring. If conditions don't allow in Spring a
Fall burn may be allowed. Work shall be completed by 12/31/2027.

Page-4



IX. DISPUTES

This AGREEMENT shall be construed under and governed by the laws of the State of Wisconsin.
The venue for any actions arising under this AGREEMENT shall be the Circuit Court for Milwaukee
County The prevailmg party shall be awarded its actual costs of any such lit1gat1on, including
reasonable attorney fees

X. RECORDS RETENTION

CONTRACTOR shall mamntamn all records pertaining to this AGREEMENT during the term of this
AGREEMENT and for a period of 7 years following its completion. Such records shall be made
available by the CONTRACTOR to CLIENT for inspection and copying upon request.

XI. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

A. Profess10nalism The same degree of care, skill and diligence shall be exercised in the
performance of the services as is possessed and exercised by a member of the same
profession, currently practicing, under similar circumstances, and all persons
providing such services under this AGREEMENT shall have such active
ce11ifications, licenses and permissions as may be required by law.

B Pursuant to Law. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary anywhere else set forth
within thus AGREEMENT, all services and any and all materials and/or products
provided by CONTRACTOR under this AGREEMENT shall be in compliance with
all applicable governmental laws, statutes, decisions, codes, rules, orders, and
ordmances, be they Federal, State, County or Local.

C. Conflict of Interest. CONTRACTOR warrants that neither it nor any of its affiliates
has any financial or other personal interest that would conflict in any manner with the
performance of the services under thus Agreement and that nerther it nor any of 1ts
affiliates will acquire directly or indirectly any such interest. CONTRACTOR
warrants that 1t w1ll 1mmediately notify the CLIENT if any actual or potential conflict
of mnterest arises or becomes known to the CONTRACTOR. Upon receipt of such
notification, a CLIENT review and written approval is required for the
CONTRACTOR to contmue to perform work under this Agreement

D. This AGREEMENT may only be amended by written instrument signed by both
CLIENT and CONTRACTOR.

XII. CONTROLLING TERMS AND PROVISIONS

The aforesaid terms and provisions shall control over any conflicting term or provs1on of any
CONTRACTOR proposal, Attachment, Exhibrt, and standard terms and provisions annexed hereto.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this AGREEMENT to be executed on the day
and year first above wntten.

Page-5



CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN

BY _

PRINT NAME John R Nelson

TITLE Mayor

DATE _

BY _

PRINT NAME Danielle L Brown

TITLE Director of Finance and Treasurer

DATE

BY _

PRINT NAME Shurley J Roberts

TITLE CIty Clerk

DATE

Approved as to form

Jesse A Wesolowski, City Attorney
DATE _

PHEASANTSFOREVER,INC

BY _

PRINT NAME Clay Frazer

TITLE Burn Boss

DATE

Page-6



ACORD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE I DATE (MMIDDIYYYY)

~ 12/17/2024
THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.
IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER ZN"wanna Beil
Cartier Agency, LLC dba Cartier Insurance %!I,2, •• 218-625-4223 I 7e • 218-727-8601310 E Superior St Suite 220
Duluth MN 55802 {}ks. abet@cadututh com

INSURER/SI AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC#

INSURER A PhiladelDhia Insurance Co 23850
INSURED PH00000001 INSURER B The Princeton Excess & Surplus Lines lnsuranc
Pheasants Forever Inc Accident Fund Insurance ComDanv 101661783 Buerkle Cir INSURERC

White Bear MN 55110 INSURER D Travelers Casualtv and Suretv Co of America 31194
INSURERE

INSURERF

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 510352475 REVISION NUMBER:
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS

INSR TYPE OF INSURANCE
ADDL SuBR 4M81# 2$.% LIMITSLTR titer [un nr POLICY NUMBER

A X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY PHPK2628576-004 11/24/2024 11/24/2025 EACHOCCURRENCE $1,000,000~U CLAIMS-MADE [8J OCCUR
DARE TO RENTED

- PREMISES /Ea occurrence\ $ 100,000
MED EXP (Any one person) $ 5 000-
PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $1,000,000-

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMITAPPLIES PER GENERAL AGGREGATE $ 2,000,000

~ □PRO- Lls. PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG $ 2,000,000POLICY JECT

OTHER. $

A AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY PHPK2628576-004 11/24/2024 11/24/2025 g"%22,wewr $1,000,000~
ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) $~
OWNED X SCHEDULED
AUTOS ONLY AUTOS BODILY INJURY (Per accident) $

X HIRED X NON-OWNED PROPERTYDAMAGE $AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY Per accident)
$

A X UMBRELLA LIAB MOCCUR PHUB890875-004 11/24/2024 11/24/2025 EACH OCCURRENCE $ 10,000,000
B - 82A3FF0002919-04 11/24/2024 11/24/2025

EXCESS LIA CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $10,000 000

DED [ X ] pETENT1oN$ +« ooo $
C WORKERS COMPENSATION WCP 100100333 11/24/2024 11/24/2025 x [Zoe l IOTH-ERAND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY Y/N

ANYPROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE (] NIA
EL. EACH ACCIDENT $1,000,000

OFFICER/MEMBEREXCLUDED?
(Mandatory In NH) E L DISEASE EAEMPLOYEE $1,000,000
II yes describe under

E L DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT $1,000,000DESCRIPTION OFOPERATIONS below
B Excess Liability 82A3FF0002919-04 11/24/2024 11/24/2025 Limit $5,000,000
D Crime/Fidelity 105711986 11/24/2024 11/24/2025 Limit $1,000,000

Deductible $5,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS/ LOCATIONS/ VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Addltlonal Remarks Schedule, may be attached If more space Is required)
Covering Southeast Wisconsin Chapter #190 Prescribed Burn events starting in Spring of 2025

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

City of Franklin ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS

Pleasant View Park
West Evergreen St AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE
Franklin W1 53132

-- ----·~" 7 /~ ..e .
I

ACORD 25 (2016/03)
© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



fies
PARTNERS FOR A CLEANER ENVIRONMENT

January 21, 2025

Mr. Tom Riha, City Forester
Franklin City Hall
9229 W. Loomis Road
Franklin, WI. 53132

Re: Prescribed burn on MMSD conservation easement parcels

Dear Mr. Riha:

Thank you for reaching out regarding prescribed burning. I understand the City of Franklin wants to
initiate a burn on a number of parcels over which the Milwaukee Metropolitan Sewerage District
(District) maintains a conservation easement. These parcels are generally identified as Victory Creek
(70 acres), St. Nikola (17 acres), Leung (9 acres), and Dilworth (8 acres). You have asked for the
District's opinion as to whether the proposed burn would otherwise conflict with the District's rights
under the conservation easements.

After consultation with Legal, I can confirm that the prescribed burn is permitted under the terms of
the District's conservation easements. The easements generally prohibit "... any activity on or use of
the Property inconsistent with the Conservation Purposes of this Conservation Easement..." The
easement also allows for the "disturbance of trees or other vegetation" in order to manage the
property. A prescribed burn does not interfere with the parcels' ability to hold stormwater, the
primary purpose for the District's conservation easement. Moreover, we agree the burn is necessary
to maintain a healthy native, vegetative corridor that contributes to floodwater and stormwater
management.

Please move forward with the prescribed burn, and do not hesitate to contact me with any questions
or concerns.

Sincerely,

Kristin Schultheis
Senior Project Planner

Milwaukee Metropolitan Sewerage District
260 W. Seebolh Street, Milwaukee, WI 53204-1446

414-272-5100 www.mmsd.com $}







....g .....

'!1111t:a ,n

0
G)

E 0

t G) 0

Q.
0

Cl) 0
.....

I..
Q) D..

c3 e w ,n
ca ·-

%
0 .C
en ·ca
(.) - 0

a 5i Q. 0·c: "C LO
,.. G) "C 0
~

I.. >, 0

'ii i! 0
LO

70



ai
oCI>
oLLo,-





Tom Riha, City Forester
City of Franklin
7979 W Ryan Road
Franklin, WI 53132

Re: Pleasant View Park Prescribed Burn

Dear Mr Riha,

The Southeast Wisconsm Chapter of Pheasants Forever is pleased to present this proposal to work with
you and the City of Franklin on the maintenance of the Pleasant View Park prairies. This proposal once
signed will establish an agreement for the applcaton of prescribed fire needed to maintain the
beautiful prairies of Pleasant View Park. This proposal includes a Scope of Services, Schedule, Fees
and Special Conditions.

Scope of Services:

Southeast Wisconsin Chapter of Pheasants Forever will apply prescnbed fre on the nine units of the
park, as seen on the attached map. The burns will be further broken down into a three year cycle for the
nine units grouped as follows:
A Group= Units 1 through 4
B Group = Units 8 and 9
C Group = Units 5 through 7

For each Group a prescribed burn plan will be prepared, per Wisconsin Prescribed Fire Council
standards. In accordance with the prescnbed burn management plans we will:

• Acquire permission or permits from the appropriate local government agencies and notify
appropriate emergency personnel.

• Conduct the controlled burns with appropriate wind speeds, humidity and temperatures per the
burn plan.

• The burn crew wll be lead by a burn boss with prescribed fire management credentials.
• Crew will be supplied with personal protective eqmpment as well as site eqmpment such as

ATV's water tanks and sprayers, drip torches and various hand tools needed for the successful
completion of the work.

• Crews wll extinguish all burned material to ensure no burning material remains on-site prior to
the crew leaving the site.

Schedule:

The burn management plan will be prepared mn advance of the actual site work. The burn site work will
be addressed on a three year cycle as follows:
Group A- fall of 2024 or spring of 2025
Group B- fall of 2025 or spring of 2026
Group C- fall of 2026 or spring of 2027

All schedules may vary due to weather conditions.



Fees:

Work will be invoiced on a Lump Sum basis per Group completed. The lump sum fees per Group are:
Group A- $3,500
Group B- $3,500
Group C- $4,000

Work to be invoiced upon completion of each Group burn.

Special Conditions:

The agreement is established with a three year contract cost reduction. This agreement is not to be
divided or parsed out without revisions to the agreement including fees.
The City of Franklin will maintain all firebreaks with minimal thatch left in the breaks. Since firebreaks
are critical to the project, firebreaks must meet the firebreak standards indicated on the attached
document.
The City of Franklin will notify residential and other impacted parties of the impending work including
smoke implications. This will include signage at and around the park as well as direct or mail notices as
necessary prior to and on the day of the burn.
Crews will not be held responsible for mud, rutting or other conditions of the work effort.
A Certificate of Insurance will be available each year upon request.
This proposal is valid for 30 days of submittal.
All invoices are to be paid within 30 days of the date sent.

Please let me know if you have any questions, comments or concerns.

If this proposal in acceptable to the City of Franklin, please sign below as the City's authorized
representative.

Sincerely,

Patrick T. Zimmer
Southeast Wisconsin Chapter
Pheasants Forever

Signature: _

Date:

Authorized by (print name): _

Title:

City of Franklin



• Well-Equipped, Fully-Insured, Experienced Burn Crew

• Burn Boss, Crew Bosses, and core crew members are NWCG
Certified

• Service includes: fire break installation/inspection, drafting and
submittal of burn plan, and burn permit acquisition (if
applicable}, burn execution and mop-up

• Reasonable Rates
• Woodlands, Grasslands, Wetlands
• Call 608-416-3400 to schedule a consultation and receive a price
quote.

• Roster fills quickly - Call Today!



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

REPORTS &

RECOMMENDATIONS

BACKGROUND

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

RESOLUTION TO APPROVE ADDENDUM NO. I IN THE
AMOUNT OF $2,500- $3,000 TO FOTH

INFRASTRUCTURE AND ENVIRONMENT, LLC.

MEETING DATE

2/4/2025

ITEM NUMBER

The City adopted Resolution 2024-8116 to enter into an agreement with Foth Infrastructure and
Environment, LLC for the design of the Department of Public Works Campus Utilities in the vicinity of S.
80" Street, S. 76" Street, and W. Ryan Road for $85,000.

Foth Infrastructure and Environment, LLC is submitting Addendum No. 1 to cover the extra work to revise
the original sewer design and prepare plan/bid documents for the proposed sewer on the southeast corner of
the DPW site in order to include this work with the new building bid last spring. The original design contract
of $85,000 covered the fees associated with only one set of plan/bid documents. The additional sewer design
was eventually deleted from the building contract.

FISCAL NOTE

The project is intended to be funded by ARPA (American Rescue Plan Act) funds.

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends that the Council approve Addendum No. 1 in the amount of $2,500-$3,000 to Foth
Infrastructure and Environment, LLC.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

(Optional) Motion to adopt Resolution No. 2025- a resolution to approve Addendum No. 1 in the
amount of $2,500-$3,000 to Foth Infrastructure and Environment, LLC.

DOA- KH; EngineeringMNP



STATE OF WISCONSIN: CITY OF FRANKLIN: MILWAUKEE COUNTY

RESOLUTION NO. 2025---

A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE ADDENDUM NO. 1 IN THE AMOUNT OF $2,500
$3,000 TO FOTH INFRASTRUCTURE AND ENVIRONMENT, LLC

WHEREAS, The City adopted Resolution 2024-8116 to enter into an agreement with
Foth Infrastructure and Environment, LLC for the design of the department of Public Works
Campus Utilities in the vicinity of S. 80 Street, S. 76 Street, and W. Ryan Road for
$85,000, and

WHEREAS, the addendum amount covers the extra work to revise the origmal sewer
des1gn and prepare plan/bud documents to the proposed sewer on the southeast corner of the
DPW site in order to include this work with the new building bd last spring; and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Common Council of the
City of Franklin, Wisconsin, to approve addendum No. 1 in the amount of $2,500-$3,000 to
Foth Infrastructure and Environment, LLC.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
day of_,2025 by Alderman

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of
Franklin this day of,2025.

APPROVED:

John R. Nelson, Mayor
ATTEST:

Shirley J. Roberts, City Clerk

AYES NOESABSENT



Foth AGREEMENTFOR SERVICES
ADDENDUM No. 1

Project Title: DPW Campus Utilities FOTH Project Number:

CLIENT Project Number:
(If applicable)

24F007.02

This Addendum (in addition to and subject to the conditions contained in the Agreement for Services dated March 25, 2024,
(hereinafter "Addendum"), is made and entered into 23rd day of May, 2024 by and between FOTH INFRASTRUCTURE &
ENVIRONMENT, LLC, (hereinafter "Consultant") and CITY OF FRANKLIN (hereinafter "Client"), for the services described
under the Scope of Services (the "Services").

9229 W Loomis Road, Franklin, Wisc. 53132
CLIENT
Address:
Phone No:

Cit of Franklin

414-425-7510 Email Address: GMorrow@Fran!kinWi.gov

Scope of Services:
Client hereby agrees to retain Consultant to prepare a Phase 1 Sanitary sewer plan and prepare and
submit agency approval applications. The Phase 1 plan will be added to the DPW building
construction project due to scheduling constraints.

Schedule:

Compensation:

Services shall be performed according to the following schedule:

Work to start immediately due to the building bid schedule.

In consideration of these Services, the Client agrees to pay Consultant compensation as follows:

D]Lump-Sum in the amount of$ .00

[] Unit Cost/Time Charges (Standard Rates) with a total amount not-to-exceed $2,500.00 10 $3,000.00

Jut Cost/Time Charges (Standard Rates) for a total amount estimated at $.00

D Other as stated here:

ETEE:III

5/22/2024

State Operations Director

Thomas J. Ludwig PEName (printed):

Title:

Date:

Signed:

FOTH INFRASTRUCTURE & ENVIRONMENT, LLC

~/,/__ /Y.z,
Signed.

Name (printed):

Title:

Date:

Entire Agreement: This Addendum, along with other approved Addendums, together with and subject to the Agreement for
Services referenced above, constitutes the entire understanding between the parties with respect to the subject matter
hereof This Addendum may be modified by subsequent written addenda mutually agreeable by both parties.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement is accepted on the date last written below, subject to the terms and conditions
above stated and the provisions set forth herein.

City of Franklin

Signed:

Name (printed):

Title:

Date:

Carrie L Voskuil

Senior Contracts Manager

5/22/2024

Page 1 of 2 Rev. 03/31/2021



Page 2 of 2 Rev 03/31/2021



APPROVAL

REPORTS AND
RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

Consideration of an Initial Resolution Regarding
Industrial Development Revenue Bond Financing for
Gebruder Peter LLC Project. Information with
respect to the job impact of the project will be

available at the time of consideration of the Initial
Resolution.

MEETING
DATE
2/4/2025

ITEM NUMBER

BACKGROUND
The request before the Council is to approve an Initial Resolution with respect to the issuance of Industrial
Revenue Bonds for Gebruder Peter LLC. Industrial Revenue Bonds (IRBs) are designed to help Wisconsin
municipalities support industrial development through the sale of tax-exempt bonds. IRBs can be used to
stimulate capital investments and job creation by providing private borrowers with access to financing at
interest rates that are typically lower than conventional bank loans. Effectively, the borrower utilizes the City's
credit rating and the tax exempt nature of the bonds in order to obtain financing at lower interest rates than they
might be get on the market. However, the Bonds do not represent a general obligation of the City, and the
borrower bears the risks and responsibilities.

In this case, the Borrower's project consists of financing the (i) acquisition of land located at 9846 South 60th
Street in the City of Franklin, Wisconsin (the "Project Site"), (ii) acquisition and rehabilitation of an existing
approximately 55,700 square foot facility located at the Project Site (the "Facility") to be owned by the
Borrower and operated by JAX Inc., a Wisconsin corporation, which manufactures aerosol products, (iii)
acquisition and installation of equipment at the Facility, and (iv) payment of certain professional costs and costs
of issuance (collectively, the "Project"). A representative of the project team will attend the meeting to answer
questions regarding the Project and provide job estimate information to the Common Council. Additional
information can be found on the attached Summary sheet.

ANALYSIS
The key point to remember is that the City will be considering, from a policy standpoint, whether to encourage
the location of the Project in the City. By issuing the bonds, the City will give the Borrower an interest rate
benefit because the bonds will be tax-exempt in the hands of the Purchaser. It must be emphasized that the City
will not be liable in any way on the bonds; the bonds are special, limited obligations of the City. Given the low
risk to the City and the creation of additional tax base and jobs within the City, the Initial Resolution should be
approved.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

A motion to approve an Initial Resolution Regarding Industrial Development Revenue Bond Financing for
Gebruder Peter LLC Project, or such other action as the Common Council deems appropriate.

City Atty/BCS



STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN MILWAUKEE COUNTY

RESOLUTION NO 2025 -----

INITIAL RESOLUTION REGARDING INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT REVENUE BOND
FINANCING FOR GEBRUDER PETER LLC PROJECT

WHEREAS, Sect1on 66 1103 of the Wisconsmn Statutes (the "Act") author1zes the City of
Franklin, Wisconsm (the "Issuer"), to authorize the issuance and sale of bonds by the Issuer to
construct, eqmp, re-eqmp, acqmre by gift, lease or purchase, install, reconstruct, rebuild, rehabilitate,
improve, supplement, replace, mamtain, repatr, enlarge, extend or remodel industrial projects; and

WHEREAS, Gebruder Peter LLC, a Wisconsm limited liability company, and/or a related
entty, and/or a l1muted liability entity to be formed (collectively, the "Borrower"), desires to
complete a project to be owned by the Borrower consisting of financing the (i) acqmsition of land
located at 9846 South 60 Street in the City of Franklin, Wisconsin (the "Project Site"), (1)
acquisition and rehabilitation of an existing approximately 55,700 square foot facility located at
the Project Site (the "Facility") to be owned by the Borrower and operated by JAX Inc., a
Wisconsin corporation, whuch manufactures aerosol products, (iii) acquisition and installation of
equipment at the Facility, and (iv) payment of certain professional costs and costs of issuance
(collectively, the "Project"), all of which would contribute to the well-being of the City of Franklin,
Wisconsin; and

WHEREAS, the cost of the Project is presently estimated to be $3,600,000, and the amount
proposed to be financed with one or more issues or senes of tax-exempt and/or taxable industrial
development revenue bonds (the "Bonds") issued under the Act does not exceed $3,600,000; and

WHEREAS, it is the public interest of the Issuer to promote, attract, stimulate, rehabilitate
and revitalize commerce, industry and manufacturing, to promote the betterment of the economy of
the Issuer; and

WHEREAS, the Borrower has requested that the Issuer now approve an initial resolution (the
"Initial Resolut10n") providmg for the financing of the Project in an amount not to exceed $3,600,000;
and

WHEREAS, the Issuer is a municipality organized and existing under and pursuant to the
laws of the State of Wisconsin, and is authorized to enter into revenue agreements with eligible
participants wIth respect to the Project whereby eligible participants agree to cause said Project to be
constructed and to pay the Issuer an amount of funds sufficient to provide for the prompt payment
when due of the principal and mterest on said industrial development revenue bonds.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Franklin,
Wisconsin, as follows

HB 4924-7905-1024 I



1 Based upon representations of the Borrower, it is the finding and deteimmation of the
Common Council that the Project is a qualified "project" within the meaning of the Act and that the
Borrower 1s an "eligible participant" within the meaning of the Act. The Issuer shall:

(a) Fmance the Project 111 an amount not to exceed $3,600,000; and

(b) Issue mdustnal development revenue bonds in one or more senes of tax-
exempt and/or taxable bonds (the "Bond(s)), 1n an amount not to exceed $3,600,000 in order
to finance costs of the Project.

2. The aforesaid plan of financing contemplates, and is conditioned upon, the following:

(a) The Bonds shall never constitute an indebtedness of the Issuer within the
meaning of any state constitutional provision or statutory limutation;

(b) The Bonds shall not constitute or give rise to a pecumary liability of the Issuer
or a charge agamst its general credit or taxing powers,

(c) The Project shall be subject to property taxaton in the same amount and to the
same extent as though the Project were not financed with industrial development revenue
bonds,

(d) The Borrower shall find a purchaser for all of the Bonds;

(e) The City's out-of-pocket costs, 111cluding but not limited to legal fees and
trustee's fees, mn connect1on wIth the issuance and sale of the Bonds shall be paid by the
Borrower, and

(f) A notice of public hearing required by federal law for purposes of Section
14 7(f) of the Internal Revenue Code, as amended, shall be published in a newspaper of general
circulation 111 the City of Frankl111 and a public hear111g shall be held to provide interested
individuals or patties the opportunity to testify as to the Project and the issuance of the Bonds.

3. The aforesaid plan of financing shall not be legally binding upon the Issuer nor be
finally implemented unless and until.

(a) The details and mechanics of the same are authorized and approved by a
further resolution of the Common Council which shall be solely within the discretion of the
Common Council;

(b) The City Clerk shall cause notice of adoption of this Initial Resolution, m the
form attached hereto as Exhibit A, to be published once in a newspaper of general circulat10n
in the City of Franklm, and the electors of the City of Franklin shall have been given the
opportunity to petition for a referendum on the matter of the aforesaid Bond issue, all as
required by law;

2
HB 4924 7905-1024 1



(c) Either no such petition shall be timely filed or such pet1t10n shall have been
filed and said referendum shall have approved the Bond issue,

(d) The City Clerk shall have received an employment impact estnnate issued
under Section 238.11 of the Wisconsmn Statutes,

(e) All documents requured to consummate the financing have been duly
author1zed and delivered, and

(f) The Issuer and the Borrower have resolved all land use and special use issues
with respect to the affected property and the Project.

4 Pursuant to the Act, all requirements that the Project be subject to the contracting
reqmrements contained m Section 66.1103 are waived, the Borrower having represented that it is able
to negotiate satisfactory anangements for completmg the Project and that the Issuer's interests are not
prejudiced thereby.

5 The City Clerk 1s directed, following adoption of this Initial Resolution (1) to publish
notice of such adoption not less than one time in the official newspaper of the City of Franklin,
Wisconsin, such notice to be in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit A and (ii) to file a
copy ofthis Imtial Resolution, together with a statement indicating the date the Notice to Electors was
published, with the Wisconsin Economic Development Corporation withm twenty (20) days
following the date of publication of such notice.

6. This Imtrnl Resolution is an "initial resolution" within the meaning of the Act and
official action toward issuance of the Bonds for purposes of Sections 103 and 144 of the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the regulations promulgated thereunder. Furthermore, it is
the reasonable expectation of the Issuer that proceeds of the Bonds may be used to reimburse
expenditures made on the Project prior to the issuance of the Bonds The maximum principal amount
of debt expected to be issued for the Project on the date hereof is $3,600,000 This statement of
official mtent 1s made pursuant to Treasury Regulations § 1.150-2.

Passed and adopted at a regular meetmg of the Common Council of the City of Franklin,
Wisconsin thus 4th day of February, 2025.

APPROVED.

John Nelson, Mayor
ATTEST

Shirley Roberts, City Clerk

3
HB 4924-7905 1024 1



EXHIBIT A

NOTICE TO ELECTORS OF THE CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN

TAKE NOTICE that the Common Council of the City of Franklin, Wisconsin (the
"Issuer"), at a regular meeting held at City Hall, 9229 West Loomis Road, Franklin, Wisconsin,
on February 4, 2025, adopted an Imtial Resolution pursuant to Section 66.1103 of the Wisconsm
Statutes, as amended, expressing the mtention to issue not to exceed $3,600,000 of industrial
development revenue bonds of the Issuer (the "Bonds") on behalf of Gebruder Peter LLC, a
Wisconsin limited liability company, and/or a related entity, and/or a limited liability entity to be
formed (collectively, the "Borrower") The Borrower desires to complete a project consisting of
financmng the (1) acquisition of land located at 9846 South 60 Street in the Crty of Franklin,
Wisconsin (the "Project Site"), (ii) acquisition and rehabilitation of an ex1sting approximately
55,700 square foot facility located at the Project Site (the "Facility") to be owned by the Borrower
and operated by JAX Inc, a Wisconsin corporation, which manufactures aerosol products, (iii)
acquisition and installation of eqmpment at the Facility, and (iv) payment of certain professional
costs and costs of issuance (collectively, the "Project"). The Borrower has represented that the net
number of full-time equivalent jobs which the Project is expected to create on the Project site
within three years is 2

Pursuant to the terms of Section 66 1103 of the Wisconsin Statutes, all requirements that the
Project be subject to the contracting requirements contained m Sect1on 66 1103 are waived, the
Borrower having represented that it is able to negotiate satisfactory arrangements for completmg the
Project and that the Issuer's mterests are not prejudiced thereby.

THE BONDS SHALL NEVER CONSTITUTE AN INDEBTEDNESS OF THE ISSUER,
NOR SHALL THE BONDS GIVE RISE TO ANY PECUNIARY LIABILITY OF THE ISSUER,
NOR SHALL THE BONDS BE A CHARGE AGAINST THE GENERAL CREDIT ORTAXING
POWERS OF THE ISSUER. RATHER, THE BONDS SHALL BE PAYABLE SOLELY FROM
THE REVENUES AND OTHER AMOUNTS TO BE DERIVED PURSUANT TO THE
REVENUE AGREEMENT RELATING TO SAID PROJECT TO BE ENTERED INTO
BETWEEN THE ISSUER AND THE BORROWER

The Initial Resolution may be mspected in the office of the City Clerk at 9229 West Loomis
Road, Franklm, Wisconsm, during busmess hours.

TAKE FURTHER NOTICE THAT THE ELECTORS OF THE CITY OF FRANKLIN
MAY PETITION FOR A REFERENDUM ON THE QUESTION OF THE BOND ISSUE. Unless
within thirty (30) days from the date of the publication ofthis Notice a petition signed by not less than
five percent (5%) of the registered electors of the City of Franklin is filed with the City Clerk
requesting a referendum on the question of the issuance of the Bonds, the Issuer will issue the Bonds
without submittmg the proposit10n for the electors' approval If such petition 1s filed as aforesaid,
then the Bonds shall not be 1ssued until approved by a majority of the electors of the City of Franklin
voting thereon at a general or special election.

Shurley Roberts, City Clerk
City of Franklin, Wisconsm

HB 4924-7905-l024 I



CERTIFICATION BY CITY CLERK

I, Shirley Roberts, duly sworn, hereby certify that I am the duly qualified and acting City
Clerk of the City of Franklin, Wisconsin (the "City"'), and as such I have in my possess1on, or have
access to, the complete corporate records ofthe City and of its Common Council; that I have carefully
compared the transcript attached hereto with the aforesaid records; and that said transcript attached
hereto is a true, correct and complete copy of all the records in relation to the adoption of Resolution
No entitled INITIAL RESOLUTION REGARDING INDUSTRIAL
DEVELOPMENT REVENUE BOND FINANCING FOR GEBRUDER PETER LLC PROJECT.

I hereby further certify as follows

1. Saud Inital Resolution was considered for adoption by the Common Council at a
meetmg held at City Hall, 9229 West Loomis Road, Franklin, Wisconsin, atp.m. on February
4, 2025. Said meetmg was a regular meeting of the Common Council and was held mn open sess1on

2. Said Imtial Resolution was on the agenda for said meeting and public notice thereof
was given not less than twenty-four (24) hours prior to the commencement of said meeting in
compliance with Section I 9.84 of the Wisconsm Statutes, including, without lnmtation, by posting
on the bulletin board mn the City Hall, by notice to those news media who have filed a wntten request
for notice of meetmgs, and by notice to the official newspaper of the City.

3. Said meeting was called to order by , who chaired the meeting. Upon
roll, I noted and recorded that the followmg members were present:

and that the following members were absent

I noted and recorded that a quorum was present. Various matters and business were taken up
during the course ofthe meeting without intervent10n of any closed session. One of the matters taken
up was said Initial Resolution, which was introduced, and its adoption was moved by

and seconded by•Following discussion and
after all members who desired to do so had expressed their views for or against said Initial Resolution,
the quest1011 was called, and upon roll being called and the contmued presence of a quorum being
noted, the recorded vote was as follows.

HB 4924-7905 I 024 I



AYE:

NAY·

ABSTAINED.

Whereupon the meeting chairperson declared sand Initial Resolution adopted, and I so
recorded it

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have signed my name and affixed the seal of the City hereto on
thus 4th day of February, 2025

[SEAL]
Shirley Roberts, City Clerk

HB 4924 7905 1024 1



HUSCH BLACKWELL

Lynda R. Templen
Senior Counsel

511 North Broadway, Suite 1 100
Milwaukee, WI 53202
Direct 414-978-5505
Fax 414-223-5000
Lynda.Templen@huschblackwell com

January 24, 2025

Shirley Roberts, City Clerk
City of Franklin
9229 West Loonus Road
Franklin,WIS3132

Steve Sabatke, Financial Underwnter
Wisconsin Economic Development Corporation
2352 South Park Street, Suite 303
Madison, WI 53713

RE: Not to Exceed $3,600,000 City of Franklin, Wisconsin
Industrial Development Revenue Bonds, Series 2025
(Gebruder Peter LLC Project)

Greetings:

We understand that ill the near future, the Common Council of the City of Franklin, Wisconsill
(the "City"), will take action on an Inutal Resolution for industrial development revenue bond financillg
under Section 66.1103 of the Wisconsin Statutes on behalf of Gebruder Peter LLC, a Wisconsin
hnuted habihty company, and/or a related entity, and/or a hmtted liability entity to be formed.

Section 66.1103 of the Wisconsin Statutes reqU1tes that pnor to the adoption of the Inital
Resolution, a document containing a good faith estimate of the legal fees which will be paid from the
bond proceeds must be filed with the City Clerk of the City and with the Wisconsill Economic
Development Corporation. This letter 1S that document.

Estmatng legal fees at this stage ill the proceedings 1s difficult because many of the most
significant factual matters which may affect legal costs are not known ill detail at thus time. The size and
structure of the bond issue have not been finalized. These and other matters normally are negotiated
and determined after the Imtial Resolution is adopted. As a result, the scope and amount of work
which the various parties may choose to refer to their lawyers can vary considerably as the economic
aspects of the financing develop.

HB 4900-6450-8176 1



January 24, 2025
Page2

The relationship of these vanables to an estimate of aggregate legal fees is evident from the
principles which lawyers apply in chargng fees for their services. Fees for services rendered by any
Wisconsin lawyer should be consistent with, and grounded upon, the Rules of Professional Conduct for
Attorneys of the Amencan Bar Association, as currently enforced ID WisconsID. Those rules set forth
the following basic guidelines:

A lawyer's fee shall be reasonable. Factors to be considered as gwdes m determming
the reasonableness of a fee include the following:

(1) The time and labor required, the novelty and the difficulty of the questions
mvolved, and the skill reqmsite to perform the legal service properly.

(2) The likehhood, if apparent to the client, that the acceptance of the particular
employmentwill preclude other employment by the lawyer.

(3) The fee customarily charged in the locality for similar legal services.

(4) The amount involved and the results obtained.

(5) The time bum1tatons 1mposed by the clent or by the circumstances.

(6) The nature and length of the professional relationship with the chent.

(7) The expenence, reputation and ability of the lawyer or lawyers performing the
services.

(8) Whether the fee is fixed or contingent.

The maximum principal amount of the bonds will not exceed $3,600,000.

The following 1s a good faith estimate of the legal fees which wtll be prud from the proceeds of
the bonds with respect to this financing;

HB 4900-6450-8176 I



COUNSEL

Bond Counsel

Counsel to the Ehgible Partucipant

Attorneys who have not yet been
1dentfied who may be involved 1n

the transact1on, including, without
limitatton, counsel to any Trustee
1volved, any real estate counsel
involved, and any counsel to the
mitial bond purchaser(s)

January 24, 2025
Page 3

FEE ESTIMATE

$39,100 plus disbursements

It1s unknown whether the legal fees
and disbursements of such counsel will
be paid from the proceeds of the
bonds.

It is unknown whether the legal fees
and disbursements of such counsel will
be pa1d from the proceeds of the
bonds.

The actual fee charged by each of the lawyers acting m this matter may vary considerably from
the estimates provided above. Without purporting to be exhaustive, the following are reasons why
actual fees may be higher or lower than the estimate: (@) assumptions regarding the size, structure,
complexity and tuning of the bond financing may change; (ri) chents may alter the scope of then
lawyers' engagement; (it) parties may require legal opinions or legal advice beyond that normally
requested m smular financings; and (iv) unforeseen legal problems may arise.

We are wntng and filing this letter to comply with the requirements of Section 66.1103 of the
Wisconsm Statutes. To the extent that we have estimated attorneys' fees other than our own, we did so
on the basis of prior expenence and information available to us at the time of writing thus letter.

Please complete and return the receipt below by email. Thank you.

Very trulyyours,

£2e
Estimate only, based on par.

HB 4900-6450-8176 I



January 24, 2025
Page4

The undersigned acknowledge receipt of the foregomg this '3 I~y of ·-:s({\\\..t':1(~2025.

WISCONSINECONOMICDEVELOPMENT
CORPORATION

By:. _
Steven Sabatke, F1nanc1al Underwriter

CITYOF FRANKLIN,WISCONSIN

·Ste,}SWssShirley R C1ty\::lerk

HB 4900-6450-8176 I



Notice of Intent to Obtain a Municipal Industrial Revenue Bond

Section 66.1103 (4m) (a) 1 of the Wisconsin Statutes requires the person or business who intends to obtain an industrial revenue bond
Issue from a Wisconsin municipality to notify this intention to the Wisconsin Economic Development Corporation and to any collecti ve
bargaining agent in the state with whom the person or business has a collective bargaining agreement. This notification must occur at
least 30 days prior to entering into the revenue agreement or signing the loan contract. The person or business must provide
information on the number of full-time jobs 1hat are expected to be eliminated, created, or maintained at the project site and elsewhere
In Wisconsin as a result of the project which is the subject of this notice. The person or business named below hereby gives notice of
Intent to obtain an Industrial Revenue Bond pursuant to s. 66.1103 of the Wisconsin Statutes.

I. Project
A. Person:

Business:
Address:
Post Office/ZIP:

B. Project site:

Evan Gillen
Gebruder Peter LLC
N59 W13330 Manhardt Drive
Menomonee Falls, WI 53051

City of Franklin, Wisconsin
(Name of city, village or town in which the project is located)

C. Project type: D Expansion at Present Location D Relocation Within Same Municipality

[_] Relocation From wthin state

[X] Branch-Wisconsin Operation

D. Maximum amount of IRB financing:

[] Retoaiono from Out-of-State

[] Branch-out-or-sate Operation

$3,600,000

D New Business

□
Net Total
Number of

J b
To Be

Eii' td
To Be
Cr ted

To Be
M I tained

Before
P 'ect

Number of Full-Time Jobs
ro an ea mun1a e 0 S

A. At the Project Site 8 8 2 -0- 10

B. At Al Other Wisconsin Operations 70 70 0 -0- 70

C. Net Totals 78 78 2 -0- 80

II. Employment Estimates (to result within the next 3 years)

D. WII any jobs transfer from one or more locations to the project site? v. [I » [E]
lurbf of jobs to transfer;_flh

Location(s) the jobs will transfer from: (municipality)

2
Signed/Person completing this fonn

(262) 844-0412

NIA

Evan Gillen
Name

1]2]z6
Date

Telephone Number

HB. 4933-3788-8528.1



CERTIFICATE OF GEBRUDER PETER LLC

Gebruder Peter LLC, a Wisconsin limited liability company, and/or a related entity, and/or
an entity to be formed (the "Borrower), has requested that the Common Council of the City of
Franklin, Wisconsin consider an "Initial Resolution Regarding Industrial Development Revenue
Bond Financing for Gebruder Peter LLC Project" on or about February 4, 2025, for the purpose of
financing a project located in the City of Franklin with industrial development revenue bonds in an
amount not to exceed $3,600,000.

The Borrower's project consists of the (i) acquisition of land located at 9846 South 60"
Street in the City of Franklin, Wisconsin (the "Project Site"), (ii) acquisition and" rehabilitation of an
existing approximately 55,700 square foot facility located at the Project Site (the "Facility') to be
owned by the Borrower and operated by JAX Inc., a Wisconsin corporation, which manufactures
aerosol products, (iii) acquisition and installation of equipment at the Facility, and (iv) payment of
certain professional costs and costs of issuance (collectively, the "Project"). This certificate is
delivered in connection with the Borrower's request for the City of Franklin to issue conduit
industrial development revenue bonds pursuant to Section 66.1103 of the Wisconsin Statutes in an
amount not exceed $3,600,000, on behalf of the Borrower to finance the Project.

The undersigned hereby certifies, represents, and warrants to the City of Franklin as follows:

1. The undersigned is familiar with the Borrower's affairs, properties and records, and
in particular, with the Project and the conduit bond financing request to which this certificate
relates.

2. The Borrower represents that it is able to negotiate satisfactory arrangements for
completing the Project and that the interests of the City of Franklin are not prejudiced thereby.

Dated: January 21 , 2025.

GEBRUDER PETER LLC

By:_~----r-----
Name:Evev
Tide:VE(S0ETfses

HB: 4905-8295-1696.1



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

REPORTS &

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

Agreement for Professional Services to provide
Assessment Services between the City of Franklin

and Accurate Appraisal, LLC. The Common
Council may enter closed session pursuant to Wis.
Stat.§ l9.85(1)(e), for competitive and bargaining

reasons, to deliberate and consider terms relating to
the Agreement for Professional Services to provide
Assessment Services between the City of Franklin
and Accurate Appraisal, LLC entered into on

February 7, 2022, and the performance thereof, and
the investing of public funds and governmental
actions in relation thereto, and pursuant to Wis.

Stat.$ 19.85(1)(g), to confer with legal counsel for the
Common Council who is rendering advice

concerning strategy to be adopted by the body with
respect to litigation in which it is likely to become
involved, and to re-enter open session at the same
place thereafter to act on such matters discussed

therein as it deems appropriate.

MEETING DATE

2/4/2025

ITEM NUMBER

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

A motion to enter a closed session Agreement for Professional Services to provide Assessment Services
between the City of Franklin and Accurate Appraisal, LLC. The Common Council may enter closed session
pursuant to Wis. Stat.§ 19.85(1)(e), for competitive and bargaining reasons, to deliberate and consider terms
relating to the Agreement for Professional Services to provide Assessment Services between the City of
Franklin and Accurate Appraisal, LLC entered into on February 7, 2022, and the performance thereof, and
the investing of public funds and governmental actions in relation thereto, and pursuant to Wis. Stat.§
19.85(1)(g), to confer with legal counsel for the Common Council who is rendering advice concerning
strategy to be adopted by the body with respect to litigation in which it is likely to become involved, and to
re-enter open session at the same place thereafter to act on such matters discussed therein as it deems
appropriate.

Mayor - JRN; DOA KH:; Legal - 1W



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

JW

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

MEETING
DATE

February 4, 2025

REPORTS AND Request from Krones, Inc. for Krones Manufacturing ITEM NUMBER
RECOMMENDATIONS Facility Geothermal Pond Use of Pond on CDA Property

Outlot at 5400 West Ashland Way, Tax Key No. 899- Ald. District 4
0032-000. The Common Council may enter closed

session pursuant to Wis. Stat. $ 19.851)e). for market },\),
competition and bargaining reasons, to deliberate and Jo

consider terms relating to the potential authorization for
the use of the CDA property outlot pond at 5400 West
Ashland Way, Tax Key No. 899-0032-000 by Krones,

Inc., and the governmental actions in relation thereto and
to effect such use, and to reenter open session at the same
place thereafter to act on such matters discussed therein

as it deems appropriate
Attached is a Krones Franklin Manufacturing Facility Geothermal Pond Use Concept presentation document,
and a copy of the GIS map depicting the Krones, Inc. property and the CDA outlot with the pond property
adjacent to the east thereof.

CDA ACTION REQUESTED

A motion to enter closed session pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 19.85(l)(e), for market competition and bargaining
reasons, to deliberate and consider terms relating to the potential authorization for the use of the CDA property
outlot pond at 5400 West Ashland Way, Tax Key No. 899-0032-000 by Krones, Inc., and the governmental
actions in relation thereto and to effect such use, and to reenter open session at the same place thereafter to act
on such matters discussed therein as it deems appropriate.

Legal Services Dept.. jw



Franklin Property Viewer

F Franklin Property Viewer

r
1/15/25, 3: 09 PM

oaik sat Guide MyNote wiscon@e 4 fJ#$2

https://frankllriwi.maps.arcgis.cam/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=6a48f24a7df94f0098145a0dc65ed257 Page 1of 1



b-\;I\
·z>-{ U.I

♦-(Dz_
00. >- 0.. LU_Q

zZ
~

-0>< QJ

OLLI,._
ro
0..'--- .,,..
QJ-. ,._
a..



a..
0
0
_J

·a
Ecu

_r:_
}

0
cu
D
o
C
Oa-

C
0

-1...J
C
QJ
'""O
C
cu
Cl..
QJo .
>-+-'
£
·- QJE
Q_(l)
m>
uO
oE€.:.= cu
O4o ro0z

C
0
.µu
::>
I....
.µ
V'l
C
0u
O
c
I....
::>
-0
V'l
0...
0
0
_J

ro
E
I....
(lJ

..c
.µ
0
(lJ

1..9
..c
.µ

>o
C
0
Q_ ......,

n
0u

Iz
0

I....
(lJ

..c
.µ
0
(lJ
O





o
C
:::>
00)-.
QJ
-0 (lj
C C
:::> 0) •QJo C +-'·-QJ U C
o o Cl..- :::> 00 ..0 C 04- (lj·-C 0 Cl.. 0)
(lj +-'

E C E C·-
O :::> Cl..

(lJ
C CL CL..c 0

C E +-' (lj
(lj 0 l/') Eu u -1,-..J -.
en u QJQJ (]J
C • c ...c
·- 0 +-'
..0 4- C 0
::) QJ 0 QJ
}- o u 0)

• •

en
c·-O

l/')

Cl..
0
0

o-0
>- }·-
+-' C
C (lj

QJ Eo •C 0QJ
Cl.. QJQJ +-'
""'O C
C

0)
C·-z
0
...c
l/')

QJ-O..-o
€ro +-'
X ::::,
LU e

:::)eca
0
I-
0z
C(l

::>
1--
_J
<(
~

a::::
LU
I

@H-o
UJ
0



-0
C
ro

eo..
0
0
_J

ro
E•QJ
.c
ml-'
0

·,%

C
0
Vl
C
roa..
X
ClJ

2 [jislijis&R@Egg
..D '
E
ClJ
+-'Vl .
>Vl
CJ) •
C
a..
E

-ro
E
I....
ClJ
...c
+-'
0
ClJ

t..9-ro
I....
+-'
C
ClJu

ti44l
'7" jf,
$ #%l¥
sit.. --- .•\l , ·,

( ..... ,,
,· y ~
\ I I -..

•-c
QJ C,_ 0
os
" g »

-~ ~ QJ ..c
> "> +-' Co E=
c :::> QJ QJre en......, Vl

e
C c - !

•-= U1 u
-....QVlOJ00 C ~ -0
) k '-
~ u cu 0
(LJ 0) ~ OJ$s
E ~ > ~=> (lJ cu u

U1 I ~ CO-.



-0 >-.......,
C aaa

C0 ::,
CL ~

e 00 Cl..ta aa......., o
C 0QJ
4-J ro(1J
0. EOJ
£
~

C 0
·0 z

LL l9

l/l
rn
...c
'""CJ
C +-' Cl..oo .9 +-'

o_ Vl (0
C QJ QJo=,·- ( '-'
+-1 ·- QJ
C (lJ > Ecu- 0
+=' '"O ~ ·cu C 0...-+-'
-. (0 L.u OJ
QJ .£ C: +.,I

- ( Curn ·-
ro ·.;:; o2

I CCM -~ -!-'
QJ- C

(U +-' 0o 6 (o
~ Cl. u CL

C
ro
Q..
V)
QJ U)

C
0
!....
V

0
+-'
+-'
C
QJu
ro·--.-0
(0

-0
C
0
CL
C
0
+-'
C
Q)
+-'
Q)
l,.,,,.

C

•C
ro
l,.,,,.

LL
}.

0
>+-'
ul. 

QJ m
E 1=
E ru
5E
l/l QJ



'
I
Iz :

QJ·->
-0

1QJ
-0
C
ro-~LU ►
~
l-
ro
CL-ro·-a.
-1-'
U'l l::)
-0 I
C i- I

C 1
I·--e%2 1

I,v ro
~

" !LL



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

LICENSES AND

PERMITS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

MISCELLANEOUS LICENSES

MEETING DATE

02/04/2025

ITEM 02/NUMBER

H.

See attached License Committee Meeting Minutes from the License Committee Meeting of
February 4, 2025.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Approval of the Minutes of the License Committee Meeting of February 4, 2025.

CITY CLERK'S OFFICE



414-425-7500
License Committee Agenda*

Franklin City Hall Aldermen's Room
9229 West Loomis Road, Franklin, WI

February 4, 2025 - 6:00 p.m.

1. Call to Order & Roll Call Time:
2. Applicant Interviews & Decisions

Recommendations
Type/ Time Applicant Information Approve Hold Deny

Operator James Chase
2024-2025 Ricky's Double Barrell Inn
New

Operator Josiah McDonald
2024-2025 Iron Mike's
New

Operator Jasbir Singh
2024-2025 7-Eleven
New

Operator Jaskiran Singh
2024-2025 7-Eleven
New

Operator Kaitlyn Sutton
2024-2025 Ricky's Double Barrell Inn
New

Operator John Bergner
2025-2026 Franklin Civic Celebration
Renewal

3. Adjournment Time:

Notice is given that a majority of the Common Council may attend this meeting to gather information about an agenda item over which they have
decision-making responsibility. This may constitute a meeting of the Common Council per State ex rel. Badke v. Greendale Village Board, even

though the Common Council will not take formal action at this meeting.



APPROVAL

Bills

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

Vouchers and Payroll Approval

MEETING DATE

2/4/2025

ITEM NUMBER

I

Attached are vouchers dated January 17, 2025 through January 30, 2025 Nos. 200996 through Nos. 201461
in the amount of$ 4,220,706.62. Also included in this listing are EFT Nos. 5949 through EFT Nos. 5967,
Library vouchers totaling$ 23,424.41, Tourism vouchers totaling$ 11.78, Water Utility vouchers totaling
$777,439.76 and Property Tax Refunds in the amount of$ 134,618.38.

Early release disbursements dated January 17, 2025 through January 29, 2025 in the amount of
$ 1,119,556.22 are provided on a separate listing and are also included in the complete disbursement listing.
These payments have been released as authorized under Resolutions 2013-6920, 2015-7062 and 2022-7834.

Attached is a list of property tax disbursements, EFT Nos. 535 through Nos. 537 dated January 20, 2025
through January 30, 2025 in the amount of$ 134,618.38. These payments have been released as authorized
under Resolutions 2013-6920, 2015-7062 and 2022-7834.

The net payroll dated January 24, 2025 is$ 574,278.05, previously estimated at$ 587,000. Payroll
deductions dated January 24, 2025 are$ 587,196.01, previously estimated at$ 600,000.

The estimated payroll for February 7, 2025 is$ 476,000 with estimated deductions and matching payments
of$ 272,000.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion approving the following

• City vouchers with an ending date of January 30, 2025 in the amount of$ 4,220,706.62

• Payroll dated January 24, 2025 in the amount of$ 574,278.05 and payments of the various payroll
deductions in the amount of$ 587,196.01 plus City matching payments and

• Estimated payroll dated February 7, 2025 in the amount of$ 476,000 and payments of the various payroll
deductions in the amount of$ 272,000, plus City matching payments.

ROLL CALL VOTE NEEDED

Finance Dept- SB


